
 

 

Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date/Time:  Tuesday, July 24, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m. 

Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 

   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 

Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 

Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 

(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 

the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 

hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  

 Stoughton Landmarks Grant Program Update 

 

2.  Minutes and Reports:  

Planning Commission (6/11/2018), Rivers & Trails Taskforce (5/7/2018), Landmarks Commission 

(6/14/2018), Utilities Committee (6/18/2018) Food Pantry Committee (4/19/2018, 5/21/2018), 

Library Board Minutes (6/20/2018) 

 

3. Public Comment Period:  

 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. July 10, 2018 Council Minutes 

B.  R-135-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 

Operator Licenses to various applicants. 

C. Stoughton Utilities Payments due List Report, Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Financial 

Summary, Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Statistical Report  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. R-136-2018- Lifting of the Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 305-315 E. Main 

Street (Presented by Alder Boersma)  

   

  

NEW BUSINESS 

 

6.  R- 137-2018- Designating Proposed Boundaries and Approving a Project Plan for Tax 

Incremental District No. 8, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin  

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 

  

 

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us


 

 

7. R-138-2018-Amending the Boundary and approving a 3-year life extension for Tax Incremental 

District  No. 5, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin  

 

8. R-139-2018- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Ron Grosso to allow more than one 

principal structure on a lot at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning 

Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018)  

 

9. R-140-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) 

request by Shelby Hoops for property located on Skyline Drive, Town of Pleasant 

Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 

 

10. R-141-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) 

request by Tim Thorson for property located at 810 US Highway 51, Town of Dunkirk, 

Dane County, Wisconsin(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 

 

11. R-142-2018- Lifting of Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 193 W. Main Street 

(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 

 

12. O-21-2018- Amending the zoning classification of certain lands located southeast of the 

intersection of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – 

Rural Holding and SR-4 Single Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family (Planning 

Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018)    FIRST READING 

 

13. R-143-2018- Resolution by the City of Stoughton Common Council regarding a Certified 

Survey Map approval request for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page 

Street and County Highway B, City of Stoughton (Planning Commission approved 6-0 

on July 9, 2018) 

 

14. R-144-2018- Accepting the Turf Management Plan draft as policy for managing City of 

Stoughton Green Spaces Utilizing the Practices and Procedures therein (Public Works 

and Parks and Recreation Committees approved 8-0 on July 17, 2018)  

 

15. R-145-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an 

agreement with Norcon Corporation to perform bridge rehabilitation work on four 

bridges within the City of Stoughton (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on July 17, 

2018)  

 

16. R-146-2018- Accepting the Cemetery and Cemetery Board Rules draft changes as 

reviewed and approved by the Cemetery Board (Cemetery Board approved 5-0 on June 

18, 2018)  

 

17. R-147-2018- Approving the Release and Re-establishment of Stormwater Management 

Easements for Lots 134 -137 in the Nordic Ridge Plat, City of Stoughton, Dane County, 

Wisconsin (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on July 17, 2018)  

 

18. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Advisory Referendum – TIF Funding for 



 

 

Kettle Park West Phase II.” 

A. Report from City Staff regarding the procedure needed to conduct an advisory 

referendum election on November 6, 2018. 

B. Consideration and possible action directing staff to prepare resolution to conduct 

advisory referendum on November 6, 2018, including providing direction to staff 

regarding the specific language of the referendum question. 

 

19. Consideration and possible direction to staff regarding the negotiation of an agreement 

with Stoughton Fair Association, Inc. regarding Mandt Park.  ***The Council may 

consider this item in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1) (e) *** 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 

Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  

 





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, July 24, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Stoughton Landmarks Grant Program Update 


 


2.  Minutes and Reports:  


Planning Commission (6/11/2018), Rivers & Trails Taskforce (5/7/2018), Landmarks Commission 


(6/14/2018), Utilities Committee (6/18/2018) Food Pantry Committee (4/19/2018, 5/21/2018), 


Library Board Minutes (6/20/2018) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. July 10, 2018 Council Minutes 


B.  R-135-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 


Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


C. Stoughton Utilities Payments due List Report, Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Financial 


Summary, Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Statistical Report  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. R-136-2018- Lifting of the Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 305-315 E. Main 


Street (Presented by Alder Boersma)  


   


  


NEW BUSINESS 


 


6.  R- 137-2018- Designating Proposed Boundaries and Approving a Project Plan for Tax 


Incremental District No. 8, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


7. R-138-2018-Amending the Boundary and approving a 3-year life extension for Tax Incremental 


District  No. 5, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


8. R-139-2018- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Ron Grosso to allow more than one 


principal structure on a lot at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning 


Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018)  


 


9. R-140-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) 


request by Shelby Hoops for property located on Skyline Drive, Town of Pleasant 


Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 


 


10. R-141-2018- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) 


request by Tim Thorson for property located at 810 US Highway 51, Town of Dunkirk, 


Dane County, Wisconsin(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 


 


11. R-142-2018- Lifting of Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 193 W. Main Street 


(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018) 


 


12. O-21-2018- Amending the zoning classification of certain lands located southeast of the 


intersection of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – 


Rural Holding and SR-4 Single Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family (Planning 


Commission approved 6-0 on July 9, 2018)    FIRST READING 


 


13. R-143-2018- Resolution by the City of Stoughton Common Council regarding a Certified 


Survey Map approval request for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page 


Street and County Highway B, City of Stoughton (Planning Commission approved 6-0 


on July 9, 2018) 


 


14. R-144-2018- Accepting the Turf Management Plan draft as policy for managing City of 


Stoughton Green Spaces Utilizing the Practices and Procedures therein (Public Works 


and Parks and Recreation Committees approved 8-0 on July 17, 2018)  


 


15. R-145-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an 


agreement with Norcon Corporation to perform bridge rehabilitation work on four 


bridges within the City of Stoughton (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on July 17, 


2018)  


 


16. R-146-2018- Accepting the Cemetery and Cemetery Board Rules draft changes as 


reviewed and approved by the Cemetery Board (Cemetery Board approved 5-0 on June 


18, 2018)  


 


17. R-147-2018- Approving the Release and Re-establishment of Stormwater Management 


Easements for Lots 134 -137 in the Nordic Ridge Plat, City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on July 17, 2018)  


 


18. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Advisory Referendum – TIF Funding for 







 


 


Kettle Park West Phase II.” 


A. Report from City Staff regarding the procedure needed to conduct an advisory 


referendum election on November 6, 2018. 


B. Consideration and possible action directing staff to prepare resolution to conduct 


advisory referendum on November 6, 2018, including providing direction to staff 


regarding the specific language of the referendum question. 


 


19. Consideration and possible direction to staff regarding the negotiation of an agreement 


with Stoughton Fair Association, Inc. regarding Mandt Park.  ***The Council may 


consider this item in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1) (e) *** 
 


 ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


Grant year: 2017 (project completion due summer 2018)


Total amount of grant funds available: $4,000.00


Awarded three grants:


Dragon House: $625 (owner requested and was granted a 1-year
extension) 


Village Players Theater: $2,500 Completed! Final approval pending


South School: $875 Completed! Final approval pending







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


Grant year: 2018 (project completion due summer 2019)


Total amount of grant funds available: $5,000.00


Awarded three grants:


1892 High School: $1,000 Completed! (Project close-out approved)


Ole K. Roe House: 2,500


Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad Depot: $1,500







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


begun in 2017, and continued in 
2018, offers mini grants for 


exterior repair







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


demand outpaces budget:
$12,000 requested against $4,000 


budget (2017)
$30,000 requested against $5,000 


budget (2018) 







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


provides façade improvement and 
repair matching grants to help 
facilitate reinvestment in our 


community







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


exterior repair although interior 
projects may be considered if 


those projects involve structural 
issues or mechanical 


improvements.







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


facilitate reinvestment in 
downtown buildings while grants 
to other local landmarks will help 


maintain the character of our 
historic neighborhoods 







Stoughton Landmarks Mini Grant Program


Update


demonstrate the City’s commitment 
to local reinvestment in our historic 


Main Street and neighborhoods while 
supporting residents who own 


historic buildings in our community


Thank you.








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Ron Grosso to allow more than one principal structure on a 


lot at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Common Council approval 6 – 0. 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-139-2018 


 
Date Introduced: July 24, 2018 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on July 9, 2018 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and reviewed 


the proposed conditional use permit request by Ron Grosso, for property located at 300 Business Park Circle, 


Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to allow more than one principal structure on a lot; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


 


 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 


with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 


Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 


in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 


environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-


way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 


or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 


chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 


consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 


to guide development; 


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 


land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 


impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 


public agencies serving the subject property; 


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 


impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 


any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use 


permit will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a 


whole; now therefore 


 


 


 







BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 


Ron Grosso to allow more than one principal building on a lot and more specifically to construct one 


additional duplex style building and one mini-warehouse style building at 300 Business Park Circle, 


Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved as presented. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


  


  


 


  


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Grosso 300 BP Circle CUP Resolution18.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Grosso CUP Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 27, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting and July 24, 2018
Common Council Meeting


Request by Ron Grosso for a conditional use permit to allow more than one principal
structure on a lot and for site plan approval to construct 2 additional buildings at 300
Business Park Circle.
This request is for a conditional use permit to allow 2 more principal structures at 300 Business
Park Circle. The proposal is to construct 1 more duplex style building and 1 mini-warehouse style
building. A conditional use permit is required for more than one principal structure. The
resolution, plans, staff review letter and related materials are provided. A recommendation from the
Business Park North Committee is anticipated prior to the Plan Commission meeting. A
recommendation to Council is necessary for the conditional use. The Plan Commission has review
authority for the site plan. Staff recommends approval contingent on the staff review letter.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, July 9, 2018 at
6:00 p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public Safety
Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed
Conditional Use Permit Application by Ron Grosso, for multiple principle buildings on a lot and for a
personal storage facility at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton, Wisconsin. The property at 300
Business Park Circle is currently listed in Dane County records as being owned by the GIP Stoughton
LLC, and is more fully described as follows:


Parcel Number: 281/0511-051-0144-3,


STOUGHTON BUSINESS PARK NORTH LOT 14 SUBJ TO ACCESS ESMT SUBJ TO
CONSERVATION ESMT IN DOC #3897154


(This property description is for tax purposes and may be abbreviated)


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published June 14, 2018 Hub
Published June 21, 2018 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\300 BPN Grosso CUP Notice18.doc







/1+/!JXVVT[Z^f!I^PS'!JdXcT!8!!!!!DR>Pa[P]S'!NXbR^]bX]!0.003!!!!!fff)`dP\T]VX]TTaX]V)R^\!


!


GW^]T!%1+3&!3.3(220+!!!!!>Pg!%1+3&!3.3(220-!!!!!=(\PX[!a`dP\7`dP\T]VX]TTaX]V)R^\!


0,'..&)!%&-$,'+.'*)!


!


K^5!! ;Xch!^U!Jc^dVWc^]!<T_c)!^U!G[P]]X]V!$!<TeT[^_\T]c!


! .3,!=Pbc!DPX]!JcaTTc!


! Jc^dVWc^]'!NA!0.034!


!


Ga^YTRc5! <d_[Tg!9dX[SX]V!P]S!Jc^aPVT!9dX[SX]V!


! .++!9dbX]Tbb!GPaZ!;XaR[T!


!


!


$?>C23CB#!


Ff]Ta5!!!!! ?AG(Jc^dVWc^]'!CC;! ! ! ;XeX[!! ! HdP\!=]VX]TTaX]V'!CC;!


! /++!N!FPZ!Jc! ! ! =]VX]TTa5!!!! /1+/!JXVVT[Z^f!I^PS'!JdXcT!8! !


! ;^ccPVT!?a^eT'!NXbR^]bX]! ! ! ! DPSXb^]'!NXbR^]bX]!0.003!! !


! ! 8cc]5!I^]!?a^bb^! ! ! ! ! 8cc]5!8Pa^]!>P[Z^bZh! !


! 1+3(./0(+/+1! ! ! ! ! 1+3(3.3(220+! ! ! !


! ! ! ! !


CXVWcX]V!! BaP]ci!=[TRcaXR'!A]R)! ! ! CP]SbRP_T!! GPd[!JZXS\^aT'!CP]SbRP_T!8aRWXcTRc'!CC;!


<TbXV]Ta5!!!! -10+!EX]T!D^d]S!I^PS!",! ! 8aRWXcTRc5! ,.!ITS!DP_[T!KaPX[!


! MTa^]P'!NXbR^]bX]!0.04.! ! ! ! DPSXb^]'!NXbR^]bX]!0.2,2!


! 8cc]5!JR^cc!BaP]ci! ! ! ! ! 8cc]5!GPd[!JZXS\^aT!


! 1+3(3/0(4,01! ! ! ! ! 1+3(3-1(++.-!


! !


!


+A?;53C!%5B3A9@C9?>#!


KWT!bXcT!Xb![^RPcTS!^]!C^c!,/!^U!Jc^dVWc^]!9dbX]Tbb!GPaZ!E^acW)!KWT!TgXbcX]V!bXcT!R^]bXbcb!^U!/!Sd_[Tg!bch[T!QdX[SX]Vb!


U^a!bcPacd_!R^\_P]XTb'!_PaZX]V'!P]S!SaXeT!PXb[T)!KWT!_a^_^bTS!_a^YTRc!X]e^[eTb!cWT!R^]bcadRcX^]!^U!P!-'/++!b`dPaT!U^^c!


Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]V'!/'-++!b`dPaT!U^^c!R^[S!bc^aPVT!QdX[SX]V'!PSSXcX^]!^U!,+!_PaZX]V!bcP[[b'!SaXeT!PXb[T!TgcT]bX^]'!P]S!QX^(


aTcT]cX^]!QPbX]!c^!_a^eXST!bc^a\fPcTa!\P]PVT\T]c)!KWT!Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]V!Xb!XST]cXRP[!c^!cWT!/!TgXbcX]V!Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]Vb!


^]!cWT!bXcT)!


!


!


+A?;53C!-3854D=5#!


;^]bcadRcX^]!fX[[!QTVX]!X]!>P[[!-+,3!P]S!QT!R^\_[TcTS!X]!Jd\\Ta!-+,4)!


!


!


1?>9>7!"!(2>4!/B5!%2C2#!


=gXbcX]V!O^]X]V!$!CP]S!LbT5! G[P]]TS!A]SdbcaXP[!


JTcQPRZb5! ! ! ! -+j!Ua^]c'!,+j!bXST'!-+j!aTPa'!20j!aTPa!VaTT]!b_PRT!aTbTaePcX^]!


!


/B5!?6!C85!+A?@5ACF#!


FUUXRT'!bW^_'!$!QPcWa^^\!b_PRT!U^a!bcPacd_!R^\_P]XTb5!,-'+++!b`dPaT!UTTc!c^cP[!


9dbX]Tbb!Jc^aPVT5!/'-++!b`dPaT!UTTc!


Ga^YTRcTS!]d\QTa!^U!T\_[^hTTb5!d_!c^!.!_Ta!d]Xc!


@^dab!^U!F_TaPcX^]5!]^a\P[!QdbX]Tbb!W^dab!PaT!Tg_TRcTS'!Qdc!\Ph!ePah!Pb!]TTSTS!


!


!







+A?;53C!%2C2#!


CTVP[5!! ! C^c!,/!^U!Jc^dVWc^]!9dbX]Tbb!GPaZ!E^acW!


C^c!8aTP5! 42'304!b`dPaT!UTTc!6!-)-/!PRaTb!


C^c!;^eTaPVT5! A\_TaeX^db!6!./'-0+!b`)!Uc)!%.0)+#!^U!bXcT&!


(! ,1'-++!b`)!Uc)!c^cP[!QdX[SX]V!kU^^c_aX]cl!%,1)0#!^U!bXcT&!


(! ,3'+0+!b`)!Uc)!c^cP[!_PaZX]V!P]S!SaXeT!PXb[Tb!


GTaeX^db!6!1.'1+4!b`)!Uc)!%10)+#!^U!bXcT&!


(! CPf]'![P]SbRP_TS!PaTPb'!SaPX]PVT!fPhb!


9dX[SX]V!WTXVWc5! <d_[Tg!QdX[SX]V5!,!bc^ah'!,-j!


! ! Jc^aPVT!QdX[SX]V5!,!bc^ah'!,1j!


! ! !


!


+2A<9>7#!


8dc^\^QX[T!_PaZX]V5!=PRW!d]Xc!fX[[!WPeT!P!\X]X\d\!^U!/!_PaZX]V!b_PRTb)!KWTaT!PaT!./!TgXbcX]V!_PaZX]V!bcP[[b!^]!cWT!


bXcT'!fWXRW!X]R[dSTb!-!8<8!bcP[[b)!,+!_PaZX]V!bcP[[b!PaT!_a^_^bTS!U^a!P!c^cP[!^U!//!_PaZX]V!bcP[[b)!


9XRhR[T!_PaZX]V5!KWTaT!PaT!0!TgXbcX]V!QXZT!bcP[[b!^]!cWT!_a^_Tach!P]S!P]^cWTa!.!PaT!_a^_^bTS!U^a!P!c^cP[!^U!3)!


!


!


-9C5!-97>275#!


E^!bXcT!bXV]PVT!Xb!_a^_^bTS)!


!


!


&EC5A9?A!%5B97>#!


KWT!QdX[SX]Vb!fX[[!WPeT!_a^(aXQ!bcTT[!_P]T[!bXSX]V!\PcRWX]V!cWT!TgXbcX]V!QdX[SX]Vb)!KWT!bXSX]V!R^[^ab!fX[[!QT!^RTP]!Q[dT!


X]!R^[^a)!DTcP[!bRaTfb!fX[[!QT!WXSST]!Ua^\!eXTf)!KWT!Ua^]c!^U!TPRW!QdX[SX]V!fX[[!WPeT!/j!^U!D^STaaP!QaXRZ!fPX]bR^c'!


fWXRW!fX[[!QT!VaPh*fWXcT!X]!R^[^a)!


!


-9C5!(978C9>7#!


KWT!/!TgXbcX]V!Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]Vb!WPeT!-!C=<!fP[[!_PRZb!\^d]cTS!^]!cWT!TgcTaX^a!QdX[SX]V!fP[[!cWPc!UPRT!cWT!SaXeT!PXb[T)!


KWT![XVWcX]V!^]!cWT!_a^_^bTS!Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]V!fX[[!\X\XR!cWT![XVWcX]V!^]!cWT!^cWTa!TgXbcX]V!QdX[SX]Vb)!KWT!bc^aPVT!


QdX[SX]V!fX[[!WPeT!/!C=<!fP[[!_PRZb!\^d]cTS!^]!cWT!TgcTaX^a!QdX[SX]V!fP[[!cWPc!UPRTb!cWT!SaXeT!PXb[T)!KWT![XVWcX]V!


b_TRXUXRPcX^]b!PaT!PccPRWTS)!


!


(2>4B32@9>7#!


KWTaT!PaT!bTeTaP[!TgXbcX]V!caTTb!P[^]V!cWT!]^acW!P]S!TPbc!bXST!^U!cWT!bXcT!cWPc!fX[[!aT\PX])!Ga^_^bTS![P]SbRP_X]V!fX[[!


\X\XR!cWT!/!TgXbcX]V!Sd_[Tg!QdX[SX]V![P]SbRP_X]V)!


!


!


!


!


!


!


>E5!;K(+,(,3!







8]]YVPN[a CNZR5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


8]]YVPN[a 8QQ_R``5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


8]]YVPN[a EU\[R N[Q <ZNVY5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


E_\]R_af Dd[R_ CNZR %VS QVSSR_R[a aUN[ N]]YVPN[a&5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


E_\]R_af Dd[R_ EU\[R5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


GbOWRPa E_\]R_af 8QQ_R``5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


HUV` S\_Z V` QR`VT[RQ a\ OR b`RQ Of aUR 8]]YVPN[a N` N TbVQR a\ `bOZVaaV[T N P\Z]YRaR N]]YVPNaV\[ S\_ N
P\[QVaV\[NY b`R _RcVRd -80 Of aUR 9Vaf a\ ]_\PR`` `NVQ N]]YVPNaV\[) EN_a` @@ N[Q @@@ N_R a\ OR b`RQ Of aUR 8]]YVPN[a
a\ `bOZVa N P\Z]YRaR N]]YVPNaV\[) %GRR P\[QVaV\[NY b`R _RcVRd N[Q N]]_\cNY ]_\PRQb_R` NaaNPURQ&


2% 7A?KN@ KB 0@IEJEOPN=PERA 6NK?A@QNAO BKN 1EPT 9OA


8]]YVPNaV\[ S\_Z SVYRQ dVaU K\[V[T 8QZV[V`a_Na\_ ;NaR5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


8]]YVPNaV\[ SRR \S "MMMMM _RPRVcRQ Of K\[V[T 8QZV[V`a_Na\_ ;NaR5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


22 0LLHE?=PEKJ 8Q>IEPP=H 6=?GAP 7AMQENAIAJPO


E_V\_ a\ `bOZVaaV[T aUR SV[NY P\Z]YRaR N]]YVPNaV\[ N` PR_aVSVRQ Of aUR K\[V[T 8QZV[V`a_Na\_' aUR 8]]YVPN[a `UNYY
`bOZVa N[ V[VaVNY Q_NSa N]]YVPNaV\[ S\_ `aNSS _RcVRd Na YRN`a .+ QNf` ]_V\_ a\ N EYN[[V[T 9\ZZV``V\[ ZRRaV[T'
S\YY\dRQ Of \[R _RcV`RQ Q_NSa SV[NY N]]YVPNaV\[ ]NPXRa ON`RQ b]\[ `aNSS _RcVRd N[Q P\ZZR[a`) HUR SV[NY
N]]YVPNaV\[ ZNaR_VNY` N_R _R^bV_RQ a\ OR `bOZVaaRQ Na YRN`a - dRRX` ]_V\_ a\ aUR EYN[[V[T 9\ZZV``V\[ ZRRaV[T)


@[VaVNY ENPXRa


%, RYRPa_\[VP ,, e ,2 P\]f \S ]YN[` a\ K\[V[T 8QZV[V`a_Na\_& ;NaR5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


=V[NY ENPXRa


%, RYRPa_\[VP ,, e ,2 P\]f \S ]YN[`


N[Q \[R YN_TR `PNYNOYR P\]f \S ]YN[` a\ K\[V[T 8QZV[V`a_Na\_& ;NaR5 MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM


!=" 0 I=L KB PDA LNKLKOA@ ?KJ@EPEKJ=H QOA/


" GU\dV[T NYY YN[Q` b[QR_ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R P\[`VQR_NaV\[)


" 8YY Y\a QVZR[`V\[` \S aUR `bOWRPa ]_\]R_af ]_\cVQRQ)


" >_N]UVP `PNYR N[Q [\_aU N__\d ]_\cVQRQ)


!?" 0 SNEPPAJ @AO?NELPEKJ KB PDA LNKLKOA@ ?KJ@EPEKJ=H QOA @AO?NE>EJC PDA PTLA KB =?PEREPEAO# >QEH@EJCO# =J@
OPNQ?PQNAO LNKLKOA@ BKN PDA OQ>FA?P LNKLANPT =J@ PDAEN CAJAN=H HK?=PEKJO%


!@" 0 OEPA LH=J !?KJBKNIEJC PK PDA NAMQENAIAJPO KB 8A?PEKJ ,-$.&-!)"" KB PDA OQ>FA?P LNKLANPT =O
LNKLKOA@ BKN @ARAHKLIAJP 57 EB PDA LNKLKOA@ ?KJ@EPEKJ=H QOA EO = H=NCA @ARAHKLIAJP !LAN


8A?PEKJO ,-$(&*!''""% 0 LNKLKOA@ LNAHEIEJ=NT LH=P KN ?KJ?ALPQ=H LH=P I=T >A OQ>OPEPQPA@ BKN PDA


NAMQENA@ OEPA LH=J# LNKRE@A@ O=E@ LH=P ?KJP=EJO =HH EJBKNI=PEKJ NAMQENA@ KJ O=E@ OEPA LH=J LAN


8A?PEKJ ,-$.&-%


!A" <NEPPAJ FQOPEBE?=PEKJ BKN PDA LNKLKOA@ ?KJ@EPEKJ=H QOA EJ@E?=PEJC NA=OKJO SDT PDA 0LLHE?=JP
>AHEARAO PDA LNKLKOA@ ?KJ@EPEKJ=H QOA EO =LLNKLNE=PA SEPD PDA NA?KIIAJ@=PEKJO KB PDA 1EPT KB


8PKQCDPKJ 1KILNADAJOERA 6H=J# L=NPE?QH=NHT =O ARE@AJ?A@ >T ?KILHE=J?A SEPD PDA OP=J@=N@O OAP


KQP EJ 8A?PEKJ ,-$.&*!*"!?"'%$+# =O BKHHKSO%


%%&







222 3QOPEBE?=PEKJ KB PDA 6NKLKOA@ 1KJ@EPEKJ=H 9OA 7AMQAOP%


?\d V` aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R N[Q Y\PNaV\[ V[ UN_Z\[f dVaU aUR ]b_]\`R`' T\NY`' \OWRPaVcR`'
]\YVPVR` N[Q `aN[QN_Q` \S aUR 9Vaf \S Ga\bTUa\[ 9\Z]_RUR[`VcR EYN[' aUR K\[V[T D_QV[N[PR' N[Q N[f
\aUR_ ]YN[' ]_\T_NZ' \_ \_QV[N[PR NQ\]aRQ7


;\R` aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R' V[ Va` ]_\]\`RQ Y\PNaV\[ N[Q N` QR]VPaRQ \[ aUR _R^bV_RQ `VaR ]YN[
%`RR GRPaV\[ 23(4+0%/&%Q&&' _R`bYa V[ N[f `bO`aN[aVNY \_ b[QbR NQcR_`R VZ]NPa \[ [RN_Of ]_\]R_af' aUR
PUN_NPaR_ \S aUR [RVTUO\_U\\Q' R[cV_\[ZR[aNY SNPa\_`' a_NSSVP SNPa\_ '̀ ]N_XV[T' ]bOYVP VZ]_\cRZR[a '̀
]bOYVP ]_\]R_af \_ _VTUa`(\S(dNf' \_ \aUR_ ZNaaR_` NSSRPaV[T aUR ]bOYVP URNYaU' `NSRaf' \_ TR[R_NY dRYSN_R'
RVaUR_ N` aURf [\d ReV`a \_ N` aURf ZNf V[ aUR Sbab_R OR QRcRY\]RQ N` N _R`bYa \S aUR VZ]YRZR[aNaV\[ \S
aUR ]_\cV`V\[` \S aUR K\[V[T D_QV[N[PR' aUR 9\Z]_RUR[`VcR EYN[' \_ N[f \aUR_ ]YN[' ]_\T_NZ' ZN] \_
\_QV[N[PR NQ\]aRQ7


-74 @B?@?C43 2?>38D8?>0< EC4 G8<< >?D B4CE<D 8> 0>I CE1CD0>D80< ?B E>3E4 03F4BC4 8=@02D


?> >40B1I @B?@4BDI" D74 270B02D4B ?5 D74 >48671?B7??3" 4>F8B?>=4>D" DB05582" @0B;8>6"


@E1<82 8=@B?F4=4>DC" @E1<82 @B?@4BDI ?B B867DC#?5#G0I" ?B ?D74B =0DD4BC 05542D8>6 D74


@E1<82 740<D7" C054DI" ?B 64>4B0< G4<50B4 0C 0 B4CE<D ?5 8=@<4=4>D8>6 D74 /?>8>6


@B?F8C8?>C" (?=@B474>C8F4 ,<0>" ?B 'EC8>4CC ,0B; *?BD7 (?F4>0>DC$


-74 @B?@4BDI 8C <?20D43 G8D78> D74 'EC8>4CC ,0B; *?BD7" G7827 8C 8> D74 ,<0>>43 )>3ECDB80<


<0>3 EC4 0B40$ -74 ,<0>>43 )>3ECDB80< 0B40 20<<C 5?B 7867 AE0<8DI 8>3??B =0>E502DEB8>6"


0CC4=1<I" 0>3 CD?B064 EC4C" G8D7 64>4B?EC <0>3C20@8>6" =8>8=0< C86>064" 0>3 D74 EC4 ?5


7867 AE0<8DI 1E8<38>6 =0D4B80<C G78<4 =44D8>6 D74 B42?==4>343 C8D4" 1E8<38>6" 0>3 <0>3C20@4


B4AE8B4=4>DC$ -74 @B?@?C43 EC4 8C ?55824 ! C7?@ C@024 5?B CD0BDE@ 2?=@0>84C 0>3 1EC8>4CC


CD?B064" G7827 8C 2?>C8CD4>D G8D7 D74 <0>3 EC4$ -74 @B?@4BDI =44DC D74 =8>8=E= <?D 0B40"


G83D7" 0>3 CDB44D 5B?>D064 B4AE8B4=4>DC ?5 D74 /?>8>6 +B38>0>24 0>3 D74 @B?942D =44DC D74


C4D102;" 74867D" @0B;8>6" <0>3C20@4" 0>3 <867D8>6 B4AE8B4=4>DC 0>3 8>2<E34C D74 EC4 ?5


7867 AE0<8DI 1E8<38>6 =0D4B80<C$ -74 @B?942D G8<< 0<C? 2?=@<I G8D7 D74 'EC8>4CC ,0B; *?BD7


34F4<?@=4>D CD0>30B3C$







?\d Q\R` aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R ZNV[aNV[ aUR QR`V_RQ P\[`V`aR[Pf \S YN[Q b`R`' YN[Q b`R
V[aR[`VaVR`' N[Q YN[Q b`R VZ]NPa` N` _RYNaRQ a\ aUR `b__\b[QV[T` \S aUR `bOWRPa ]_\]R_af7


@` aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R Y\PNaRQ V[ N[ N_RN aUNa dVYY OR NQR^bNaRYf `R_cRQ Of N[Q dVYY [\a VZ]\`R
N[ b[QbR Ob_QR[ \[ N[f \S aUR VZ]_\cRZR[a`' SNPVYVaVR '̀ baVYVaVR` \_ `R_cVPR` ]_\cVQRQ Of ]bOYVP NTR[PVR`
`R_cV[T aUR `bOWRPa ]_\]R_af7


;\ aUR ]\aR[aVNY ]bOYVP OR[RSVa` \S aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R \badRVTU NYY ]\aR[aVNY NQcR_`R VZ]NPa`
\S aUR ]_\]\`RQ P\[QVaV\[NY b`R %N` VQR[aVSVRQ V[ GbO`RPaV\[` 23(4+0%0&%P&,(0)&' NSaR_ aNXV[T V[a\
P\[`VQR_NaV\[ N[f ]_\]\`RQ \]aV\[` a\ ZV[VZVgR `bPU VZ]NPa`7


-74 @B?@4BDI 8C <?20D43 8> D74 'EC8>4CC ,0B; *?BD7" G7827 8C 8> D74 ,<0>>43


)>3ECDB80< <0>3 EC4$ -74 @B?@?C43 EC4 8C 2?>C8CD4>D G8D7 D74 ,<0>>43 )>3ECDB80< <0>3 EC4"


8>D4>C8D84C" 0>3 8=@02DC$


-74 @B?@4BDI 8C C4BF43 1I 4H8CD8>6 @E1<82 8>5B0CDBE2DEB4 0>3 ED8<8D84C$ -74 @B?942D G8<<


>?D 8=@?C4 0> E>3E4 1EB34> ?> D74 @E1<82 8>5B0CDBE2DEB4 0>3 ED8<8D84C$


-74 @E1<82 14>458DC ?5 D74 @B?@?C43 EC4 ?EDG4867 0>I @?D4>D80< 03F4BC4 8=@02DC$



















!


7
_N


d
[


!5
e
3


9
VY
R
[
N
Z


R
3!


6
3L
I


`
R
_`


L=
[
`
VQ


R
!G


N
YR


`
L7


\
P
b
Z


R
[
a`


L4
[
Q
_R


d
L4


;
=,


+
L+


)
*
1
LA


N
e
L6


8
7


!G
a\


b
T
U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`


!̀D
N
_X


!@
\


a!
*
-
'4


;
=


G
P
N
YR


3!
N
`
![


\
aR


Q


9
VYR


[
N
Z


R
3!


6
8


7
!G


a\
b
T


U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`
`
!D


N
_X


!@
\


a!
*


-
'4


;
=


7
N
aR


3/
(*


-
(+


)
*
1


;
E
B
!


8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
3
K


>
I
V


P
F
P


&
!
B


W
8


>
V
L


R
Q
&


!
7
K


B
O
D


V
!
3


K
>


I
V
P


F
P
!


>
K
A


(
L
O


!
<
F


P
R


>
I
!


9
F
J


R
I
>


Q
F
L


K
!
$


"
8
F


D
E


Q
F
K


D
!
6


B
P
F


D
K
%


M
O
L
S


F
A


B
A
!


?
V
!


4
>
V


!
7
I


B
@
!


O
B
M


O
B


P
B
K


Q
P
!


>
K
!


>
K
Q


F
@
F


M
>
Q


B
A


!
M
O


B
A
F


@
Q
F


L
K
!


L
C
!


I
F
D


E
Q


F
K
D


!
P
V


P
Q
B


J
!
M


B
O
C


L
O
J


>
K


@
B


?
>
P
B


A
!
R


M
L
K


!
A
B


P
F


D
K
!


M
>
O


>
J
B


Q
B
O


P
!
>


K
A


!
F
K


C
L
O


J
>
Q


F
L
K


!
P
R


M
M


I
F
B


A
!
?


V
!
L


Q
E
B


O
P
'


!
!
;


E
B


P
B
!


A
B
P


F
D
K


!
M
>


O
>
J


B
Q


B
O
P


!
>
K


A
F


K
C
L


O
J
>


Q
F
L


K
!
M


O
L
S


F
A


B
A
!


?
V
!


L
Q
E


B
O
P


!
E
>


S
B
!


K
L


Q
!
?


B
B
K


!
C
F


B
I
A


!
S
B


O
F
C


F
B


A
!
?


V
!
4


>
V
!


7
I
B


@
!
>


K
A


!
Q
E


B
O
B


C
L
O


B
!
>


@
Q
R


>
I


!
J
B


>
P
R


O
B
A


!
O
B


P
R
I


Q
P


J
>


V
!


S
>
O


V
!
C


O
L
J


!
Q
E


B
!
>


@
Q


R
>
I


!
C
F


B
I
A


!
@
L


K
A
F


Q
F


L
K
P


'
!
4


3
=
!


7
8
7


5
!
O


B
@
L


J
J


B
K
A


P
!
Q


E
>
Q


!
A
B


P
F
D


K
!
M


>
O


>
J
B


Q
B
O


P
!
>


K
A
!


L
Q
E


B
O
!


F
K


C
L
O


J
>
Q


F
L
K


!
?
B


C
F


B
I
A


!
S
B


O
F


C
F
B


A
!
Q


L
!
O


B
A
R


@
B
!


S
>


O
F
>


Q
F
L


K
'
!


4
3
=


!
7
8


7
5


!
K
B


F
Q
E


B
O
!


T
>
O


O
>
K


Q
F
B


P
&


!
B
F


Q
E
B


O
!
F


J
M
I


F
B
A


!
L


O
!
P


Q
>
Q


B
A
!


T
F
Q


E
!
O


B
D
>


O
A


!
Q
L


!
>
@


Q
R
>


I
J
B


>
P
R


O
B
A


!
I


F
D
E


Q
!
I


B
S
B


I
P
!


L
O
!


B
K
B


O
D


V
!
@


L
K
P


R
J
M


Q
F
L


K
!
I


B
S
B


I
P


!
>
P


!
@
L


J
M
>


O
B
A


!
Q
L


!
Q
E


L
P


B
!
F


I
I
R


P
Q
O


>
Q
B


A
!
?


V
!


Q
E
B


!
8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
6
B


P
F
D


K
'


4
3


=
!
7


8
7
5


!
K


B
F
Q


E
B
O


!
T
>


O
O
>


K
Q
F


B
P
&


!
B


F
Q
E


B
O
!


F
J
M


I
F
B


A
!
L


O
!
P


Q
>


Q
B
A


&
!
K


L
O
!


O
B
M


O
B
P


B
K
Q


P
!


Q
E
B


!
>
M


M
O
L


M
O
F


>
Q
B


K
B


P
P
&


!
@
L


J
M
I


B
Q
B


K
B
P


P
!
L


O
!


P
R
F


Q
>
?


F
I
F


Q
V


L
C


!
Q
E


B
!
8


F
D
E


Q
F
K


D
!


6
B
P


F
D
K


!
F
K


Q
B
K


Q
!
>


P
!


@
L
J


M
I
F


>
K
Q


!
T
F


Q
E
!


>
K
V


!
>


M
M
I


F
@
>


?
I
B


!
O
B


D
R
I


>
Q


L
O
V


!
@
L


A
B
!


O
B
N


R
F
O


B
J
B


K
Q


P
!
T


F
Q
E


!
Q
E


B
!
B


U
@
B


M
Q
F


L
K


!
L
C


Q
E


L
P
B


!
P
M


B
@
F


C
F
@


>
I
I


V
!
P


Q
>


Q
B
A


!
L
K


!
A
O


>
T
F


K
D
P


!
@
O


B
>


Q
B
A


!
>
K


A
!
P


R
?
J


F
Q
Q


B
A


!
?
V


!
4
3


=
!
7


8
7
5


'
!
;


E
B


!
8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
A
B


P
F
D


K
!
F


P
!


F
P
P


R
B
A


&
!
F


K
!
T


E
L
I


B
!


L
O


F
K
!


M
>


O
Q
&


!
>
P


!
>
A


S
F
P


L
O
V


!
A


L
@
R


J
B
K


Q
P
!


C
L
O


!
F
K


C
L
O


J
>


Q
F
L


K
>
I


!
M
R


O
M
L


P
B
P


!
>
K


A
!


F
P
!


K
L
Q


!
F
K


Q
B
K


A
B
A


C
L
O


!
@


L
K
P


Q
O
R


@
Q
F


L
K
!


K
L
O


!
>
P


!
?


B
F
K


D
!
M


>
O
Q


!
L
C


>
!
M


O
L
G


B
@
Q


#
P


!
@
L


K
P
Q


O
R
@


Q
F
L


K
!
A


L
@
R


J
B


K
Q
>


Q
F
L


K
!
M


>
@
H


>
D
B


'


D
_R


]
N
_R


Q
!9


\
_3


!6
8


7
!A


N
Q


V
\̀


[
A


R
T
U


N
[


!5
R


U
[


@
VT


U
aV
[
T


!@
N


e
\
b


a
J


R
_̀


V\
[


!4


>
\
O


!B
N
Z


R
3


!G
a\


b
T


U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`
`
!D


N
_X


4
[


Q
_R


d
!?


b
R
U


[


2


2


2


2


2


2


)') )') )'+ )'*


)') )'0 )'. )', )'+ )'+


,'- +'- *'- )'1 )'. )', )'+ )'*


*'. ,'* .'/ .'1 ,'0 *'2 *') )'/ )'- )'+ )'+ )'*


+'+ +') +'+ ,'- .') -'2 ,', *'2 *'* )'/ )'- )'+ )'+


,'- .', -'/ ,') +'- +'0 ,'* ,') +', *'. *') )'/ )'- )'+ )'+


*'1 +'/ -'1 /', .') ,'+ +'+ +') +') *'1 *'. *'* )'2 )'/ )', )'+


,'2 ,'* +'. +'0 ,'0 -'+ ,'/ +'. *'1 *'. *'- *'+ *'* )'2 )'1 )'+


*'1 ,', .'1 /'+ -'+ +'1 +', +'. +'/ +', *'1 *'- *'* *') )'2 )'1 )'1 )'0


+'. +'+ +'- ,'/ .'* .'* ,'0 +'. *'2 *'0 *'0 *'. *'+ *') )'2 )'1 )'0 )'0 )'0


)'* )'+ )'+ ,'/ .'/ -'1 ,'+ +'/ +'2 ,', ,', +'/ *'2 *'. *', *'+ *'* )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'/ )'/ )'/


)'* )'* )'+ )'+ *'* +'- -'1 /'- .'+ ,'- +'. +'+ +'+ +'* *'1 *'- *'+ *') )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'/ )'. )'. )'.


)'* )', )'- )'0 *', +', ,'/ -'- ,'1 +'1 +'* *'1 *'/ *'- *', *'* )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'/ )'. )'. )'- )'. )'.


)'+ )', )'. )'1 *', +') +'0 ,') +'1 +'+ *'1 *'. *', *'* *') )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'. )'. )'- )'- )'- )'-


)'+ )', )'. )'2 *'- +'* +'/ +'0 +'- *'2 *'/ *', *'* *') )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'. )'. )'- )'- )', )', )', )'+


)', )'. *') *'0 +'0 ,'. ,', +'/ *'2 *'. *'+ *') )'2 )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'. )'- )'- )', )', )', )'+ )'+ )'*


)'* )'. )'2 +') ,'2 .'- -'0 ,'+ +'* *'. *'+ *'* *') )'2 )'1 )'0 )'/ )'. )'- )'- )', )', )'+ )'+ )'* )'*


)'* )'* )'+ *'/ ,'2 /'- .'/ ,'. +'* *'. *', *'+ *', *'+ *'* )'2 )'0 )'/ )'- )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'+ )'+


)'* )'* )'* ,'. ,'1 +'/ *'1 *'- *'- *'/ *'1 *'1 *'. *'+ )'1 )'/ )'. )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'+ )'*


)'* )'* *'. *', *'+ *'. +'* +'2 ,') +'- *'/ *') )'0 )'. )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'+ )'*


)'* *') *'/ +'1 -'/ -'2 ,'. +'* *'+ )'0 )'. )', )', )'+ )'+ )'*


+'/ .'+ /'* -'* +'+ *'+ )'0 )'. )', )'+ )'+ )'+ )'*


,'0 +'2 *'0 *') )'/ )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'*


)'* )'2 )'/ )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'* )'*


)') )'* )'* )'- )', )'+ )'+ )'+ )'*


)') )'* )'* )'* )'* )'+ )'+ )'* )'*


)') )') )'* )'* )'* )'*


)'*











Uqwtegu< !Gutk-!JGTG-!Ictokp-!Kpvgtocr-!kpetgogpv!R!Eqtr/-!IGDEQ-!WUIU-!HCQ-!PRU-!PTECP-!IgqDcug-!KIP -!Mcfcuvgt!PN-!Q tfpcpeg!Uwtxg{-!Gutk!Lcrcp-


OGVK-!Gutk!Ejkpc!)Jqpi!Mqpi*-!uykuuvqrq-!«!QrgpUvtggvOcr !eqpvtkdwvqtu-!cpf!vjg!IKU!Wugt!Eq oowpkv{-!Rctegnu


411!Dwukpguu!Rctm!Ekteng


Vcz!Rctegnu


Lwpg!39-!3129


!


!


1 731 2-351421 Hggv


2!kpej!?!611!hggv







!


9
VY
R
[
N
Z


R
3!


6
3L
I


`
R
_`


L=
[
`
VQ


R
!G


N
YR


`
L7


\
P
b
Z


R
[
a`


L4
[
Q
_R


d
L4


;
=,


+
L+


)
*
1
LA


N
e
L6


8
7


!G
a\


b
T
U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`


!̀D
N
_X


!@
\


a!
*
-
'4


;
=


G
P
N
YR


3!
N
`
![


\
aR


Q


9
VYR


[
N
Z


R
3!


6
8


7
!G


a\
b
T


U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`
`
!D


N
_X


!@
\


a!
*


-
'4


;
=


7
N
aR


3/
(*


-
(+


)
*
1


%!A\b[aV[T!URVTUa!QRaR_ZV[NaV\[! V̀ ! W\O!`VaR!`]RPVSVP&!\b_!YVTUaV[T!`VZbYNaV\[`!N``bZR!N!Z\b[aV[T!URVTUa
#V[`R_aV\[!]\V[a!\S!aUR!YbZV[NV_R!`eZO\Y$!a\!OR!aNXR[!Na !aUR!a\]!\S!aUR!`eZO\Y!S\_!PRVYV[T!Z\b[aRQ! YbZV[NV_R`


BCH8G3
%!HUR!YVTUa!Y\``! SNPa\_!#@@9$!V`!N!]_\QbPa!\S!ZN[e!cN_VNOYR`&!\[Ye!YNZ]!YbZR[!QR]_RPVNaV\[!#@@7$
UN`!ORR[!N]]YVRQ!a\!aUR!PNYPbYNaRQ!_R`bYa`!b[YR``!\aUR_dV`R![\aRQ'!HUR!@@7! V̀ ! aUR!_R`bYa! #̂ b\aVR[a$


\S!ZRN[!YbZR[`!(!V[Va VNY!YbZR[ !̀]R_!YNZ]!ZN[bSNPab_R_`"!`]RPVS VPNaV\[ '̀


%!= YYbZV[NaV\[!cNYbR`!`U\d[!#V[!S\\aPN[QYR`$!N_R!aUR!]_RQVPaRQ!_R`bYa`!S\_!]YN[R`!\S!PNYPbYNaV\[!RVaUR_
a\!aUR!]YN[R!\S!PNYPbYNaV\['


%!HUR!PNYPbYNaRQ!_R b̀Ya`!\S!aUV̀ ! YVTUaV[T!`VZbYNaV\[!_R]_R`R[a!N[!N[aVPV]NaRQ!]_RQVPaV\[!\S! è`aRZ!]R_S\_ZN[PR'


4PabNY!ZRN`b_RQ!_R`bYa`!ZNe!cN_e!S_\Z!aUR!N[a VPV]NaRQ!]R_S\_ZN[PR!N[Q!N_R!`bOWRPa
a\!ZRN[`!N[Q!ZRaU\Q`!dUVPU!N_R!ORe\[Q!aUR!P\[a_\Y!\S!aUR!QR V̀T[R_'


N[Q!Na!aUR!O\aa\Z!\S!aUR!`eZO\Y!S\_!NYY!\aUR_!YbZV[NV_R!Z\b[aV[T!P\[S VTb_Na V\[`'


%!F45!@VTUaV[T!=[P'!YbZV[NV_R!N[Q!]_\QbPa!QR`VT[`!N_R!]_\aRPaRQ!b[QR_!I'G'!N[Q!=[aR_[NaV\[NY!V[aRYYRPabNY!]_\]R_ae!YNd`'
U\_Vf\[aNY&!cR_aVPNY!\_!V[PYV[RQ!N`!QR`VT[NaRQ!V[!aUR!PNYPbYNa V\[!`bZZN_e'!ARaR_!\_VR[aNa V\[!V`![\_ZNY
DNaR[a`!V``bRQ!\_!]R[QV[T!N]]Ye'


7
_N


d
[


!5
e
3


;
E
B
!


8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
3
K


>
I
V


P
F
P


&
!
B


W
8


>
V
L


R
Q
&


!
7
K


B
O
D


V
!
3


K
>


I
V
P


F
P
!


>
K
A


(
L
O


!
<
F


P
R


>
I
!


9
F
J


R
I
>


Q
F
L


K
!
$


"
8
F


D
E


Q
F
K


D
!
6


B
P
F


D
K
%


M
O
L
S


F
A


B
A
!


?
V
!


4
>
V


!
7
I


B
@
!


O
B
M


O
B


P
B
K


Q
P
!


>
K
!


>
K
Q


F
@
F


M
>
Q


B
A


!
M
O


B
A
F


@
Q
F


L
K
!


L
C
!


I
F
D


E
Q


F
K
D


!
P
V


P
Q
B


J
!
M


B
O
C


L
O
J


>
K


@
B


?
>
P
B


A
!
R


M
L
K


!
A
B


P
F


D
K
!


M
>
O


>
J
B


Q
B
O


P
!
>


K
A


!
F
K


C
L
O


J
>
Q


F
L
K


!
P
R


M
M


I
F
B


A
!
?


V
!
L


Q
E
B


O
P
'


!
!
;


E
B


P
B
!


A
B
P


F
D
K


!
M
>


O
>
J


B
Q


B
O
P


!
>
K


A
F


K
C
L


O
J
>


Q
F
L


K
!
M


O
L
S


F
A


B
A
!


?
V
!


L
Q
E


B
O
P


!
E
>


S
B
!


K
L


Q
!
?


B
B
K


!
C
F


B
I
A


!
S
B


O
F
C


F
B


A
!
?


V
!
4


>
V
!


7
I
B


@
!
>


K
A


!
Q
E


B
O
B


C
L
O


B
!
>


@
Q
R


>
I


!
J
B


>
P
R


O
B
A


!
O
B


P
R
I


Q
P


J
>


V
!


S
>
O


V
!
C


O
L
J


!
Q
E


B
!
>


@
Q


R
>
I


!
C
F


B
I
A


!
@
L


K
A
F


Q
F


L
K
P


'
!
4


3
=
!


7
8
7


5
!
O


B
@
L


J
J


B
K
A


P
!
Q


E
>
Q


!
A
B


P
F
D


K
!
M


>
O


>
J
B


Q
B
O


P
!
>


K
A
!


L
Q
E


B
O
!


F
K


C
L
O


J
>
Q


F
L
K


!
?
B


C
F


B
I
A


!
S
B


O
F


C
F
B


A
!
Q


L
!
O


B
A
R


@
B
!


S
>


O
F
>


Q
F
L


K
'
!


4
3
=


!
7
8


7
5


!
K
B


F
Q
E


B
O
!


T
>
O


O
>
K


Q
F
B


P
&


!
B
F


Q
E
B


O
!
F


J
M
I


F
B
A


!
L


O
!
P


Q
>
Q


B
A
!


T
F
Q


E
!
O


B
D
>


O
A


!
Q
L


!
>
@


Q
R
>


I
J
B


>
P
R


O
B
A


!
I


F
D
E


Q
!
I


B
S
B


I
P
!


L
O
!


B
K
B


O
D


V
!
@


L
K
P


R
J
M


Q
F
L


K
!
I


B
S
B


I
P


!
>
P


!
@
L


J
M
>


O
B
A


!
Q
L


!
Q
E


L
P


B
!
F


I
I
R


P
Q
O


>
Q
B


A
!
?


V
!


Q
E
B


!
8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
6
B


P
F
D


K
'


4
3


=
!
7


8
7
5


!
K


B
F
Q


E
B
O


!
T
>


O
O
>


K
Q
F


B
P
&


!
B


F
Q
E


B
O
!


F
J
M


I
F
B


A
!
L


O
!
P


Q
>


Q
B
A


&
!
K


L
O
!


O
B
M


O
B
P


B
K
Q


P
!


Q
E
B


!
>
M


M
O
L


M
O
F


>
Q
B


K
B


P
P
&


!
@
L


J
M
I


B
Q
B


K
B
P


P
!
L


O
!


P
R
F


Q
>
?


F
I
F


Q
V


L
C


!
Q
E


B
!
8


F
D
E


Q
F
K


D
!


6
B
P


F
D
K


!
F
K


Q
B
K


Q
!
>


P
!


@
L
J


M
I
F


>
K
Q


!
T
F


Q
E
!


>
K
V


!
>


M
M
I


F
@
>


?
I
B


!
O
B


D
R
I


>
Q


L
O
V


!
@
L


A
B
!


O
B
N


R
F
O


B
J
B


K
Q


P
!
T


F
Q
E


!
Q
E


B
!
B


U
@
B


M
Q
F


L
K


!
L
C


Q
E


L
P
B


!
P
M


B
@
F


C
F
@


>
I
I


V
!
P


Q
>


Q
B
A


!
L
K


!
A
O


>
T
F


K
D
P


!
@
O


B
>


Q
B
A


!
>
K


A
!
P


R
?
J


F
Q
Q


B
A


!
?
V


!
4
3


=
!
7


8
7
5


'
!
;


E
B


!
8
F


D
E
Q


F
K
D


!
A
B


P
F
D


K
!
F


P
!


F
P
P


R
B
A


&
!
F


K
!
T


E
L
I


B
!


L
O


F
K
!


M
>


O
Q
&


!
>
P


!
>
A


S
F
P


L
O
V


!
A


L
@
R


J
B
K


Q
P
!


C
L
O


!
F
K


C
L
O


J
>


Q
F
L


K
>
I


!
M
R


O
M
L


P
B
P


!
>
K


A
!


F
P
!


K
L
Q


!
F
K


Q
B
K


A
B
A


C
L
O


!
@


L
K
P


Q
O
R


@
Q
F


L
K
!


K
L
O


!
>
P


!
?


B
F
K


D
!
M


>
O
Q


!
L
C


>
!
M


O
L
G


B
@
Q


#
P


!
@
L


K
P
Q


O
R
@


Q
F
L


K
!
A


L
@
R


J
B


K
Q
>


Q
F
L


K
!
M


>
@
H


>
D
B


'


A
R


T
U


N
[


!5
R


U
[


D
_R


]
N
_R


Q
!9


\
_3


!6
8


7
!A


N
Q


V
\̀


[
>
\
O


!B
N
Z


R
3


!G
a\


b
T


U
a\


[
!5


b
`
V[


R
`
`
!D


N
_X


@
VT


U
aV
[
T


!@
N


e
\
b


a
J


R
_̀


V\
[


!4


4
[


Q
_R


d
!?


b
R
U


[


19;C!<3H?ED!=66DC!D96!@9?D?=6D6B;4!B6AE;B6=6>DC!?7!D96!,B?CC?!06F;6G!<6DD6B"


(F6B386!7??D43>5<6!B635;>8!;C!$"&%!74!;>!D96!43<4E3<D65!3B63"


'JD7B;<;!+HA?B7?E<!+C97G?CB!1HAA7EK
+HA-C 27= 5 6 ,2)!*2 .E?<BG 2?@G


%7@9H@7G?CB!1HAA7EK


+HA?B7?E<!19><;H@<


1KA8C@ 0GK 27= +78<@ $EE7B=<A<BG +HA"!+HA<BF $EE"!+HA"!+HA<BF ++( &<F9E?DG?CB +HA"!47GGF $EE"!47GGF 2CG7@!47GGF


* K *,1'- *,.'- *+ +21'1**


+78<@


)
+ K *0/ *..'. *+ +21',)* )
. K *-, 2,', *+ /.'0.. )
/ K *0)'.,,


%7@92KD<


1)'2


3B?GF $I= ,7J ,?B $I=#,?B ,7J#,?B &<F9E?DG?CB


*+ /.'0.. )


/G1D9+E /G1D928 ,<G<E!2KD<


6NYPDa`M* =YYbZV[N[PR 9P *'-+ /'-


0 K *20'2/0 /1'. *+ /.'0.. )
1 K


)') B'4' B'4' . . <\_Vf\[aNY


*+ /.'0.. )
H\aNY!EbN[aVae3!/


/ K KDH@87-)!7*)!D6+ G=B;@8 -)+* -)+* *'))) KDH@87-)M7*)MD6+ ,1'+ ,1'+ ++2'+


++.'. ./'*


.E=;>3;B6!-=386!'!2/1.+*&#!*$#!/)%























CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


June 26, 2018


Ron & Kathy Grosso
400 W. Oak Street
Cottage Grove, WI 53527


Dear Applicant:


I have completed a final review of the proposed conditional use permit and site plan for property
located at 300 Business Park Circle, Lot 14, Business Park North, Stoughton, WI. 53589. As
noted, additional information may be required to be provided or shown on the plan. This review
is for the construction of one duplex style building and a cold storage/mini-warehouse style
building.


1. The property at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton is zoned PI – Planned Industrial. The
proposed plan is for 1 additional duplex style incubator building for a small startup company
and for a cold storage/mini-warehouse style building. The original conditional use permit
approval was for 4 duplex style buildings which have recently been completed. Any
proposed uses will need to meet the requirements of the Planned Industrial District.
Multiple principle buildings on a lot requires a conditional use permit and compliance
with the group development regulations. A personal storage facility or mini-warehouse
also requires a conditional use permit including specific regulations. A conditional use
and site review applications and fees have been provided. A public hearing is planned
for July 9, 2018 of which you will receive notice. On July 9, 20189 at 5:30 pm, the
Business Park North Committee will review your plans for compliance with the
restrictive covenants and provide a recommendation to the Plan Commission. The Plan
Commission will hold a public hearing regarding the conditional use request and
review the site plan at approximately 6:00 pm on July 9, 2018. You and/or a
representative must be present at both meetings to present materials and answer
questions if necessary.


2. The following requirements shall be applied to the group development as a whole, and to
individual uses within the group development:
a. The group development shall contain a sufficient number of waste bins to accommodate


all trash generated by the land uses in a convenient manner; Expected. See also #25.
b. All structures shall meet the setbacks of the zoning district; The proposed setback are


compliant.







c. The development shall provide for full and safe pedestrian and bicycle access and
appropriate connections to existing and planned pedestrians and bicycle facilities in the
surrounding neighborhoods, including sidewalk connections to all building entrances
from public streets. There are no public sidewalks required within the Business
Park, except through the driveway. Bike parking shall be provided according to
zoning. See #12 below.


3. The parking requirement for many uses within the Planned Industrial District is one space per
300 square feet of gross floor area. In these cases, the total parking requirement will be
40 stalls including inside parking. 44 stalls are proposed. The parking requirement
will need to be revisited for each potential use prior to occupancy.


4. The requirements for personal storage facilities are as follows:
a. Facility shall be designed so as to minimize adverse visual impacts on nearby


developments. The color, exterior materials, and orientation of proposed buildings and
structures shall complement surrounding development. The buildings are proposed to
match the existing buildings. Photo provided.


b. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .80 along all property
borders abutting residentially zoned property (see section 78-610). N/A


c. Shall comply with section 78-905, standards and procedures applicable to all
conditional uses. This references the conditional use process.


d. No electrical power shall be run to the storage facilities, except for exterior lighting.
Expected.


5. The parking requirement for personal storage facilities is one space for each employee on the
largest work shift. There likely will not be any employees associated with this cold
storage use. This will need to be verified prior to occupancy for each unit.


6. The property is required to meet the following zoning requirements: minimum lot area
(20,000 sq. ft.); minimum lot width (100 feet); and minimum street frontage (50 feet). The
property meets these requirements.


7. The minimum building setback and maximum building height requirements are as follows:
Front yard setback: 20 feet; Side yard setback: 10 feet; Rear yard setback: 20 feet; Maximum
building height: 40 feet; Minimum building separation: 20 feet. The plan meets these
requirements. The site will need to be staked prior to pouring a foundation to confirm
setbacks will be met. Footings need to be inspected prior to pouring concrete. Once
constructed, an as built survey will need to be provided to the Department of Planning
& Development for confirmation.


8. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Planned
Industrial which is consistent with the zoning.


9. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather
surface and completed prior to building occupancy. All parking spaces shall be clearly
marked to indicate required spaces. This is expected. Backing into or from the street is
not allowed.







10. Handicap parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. This is expected.


11. Except for handicap parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet. This is expected.


12. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile
parking space requirement. 4 bicycle parking spaces are required while there are 5
existing stalls. Bike spaces shall be placed within 50 feet of building entrances or where
bicyclists would naturally transition to pedestrian zone and placement should minimize
conflicts with motorized traffic.


13. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet. The plan
meets this requirement.


14. Public sidewalk will need to be installed through the drive entrance at 5 feet in width and a
minimum of 6” thick. Expected.


15. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%. The plan meets this requirement.


16. The maximum floor area ratio is 1. This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all
buildings by the gross site area. The plan meets this requirement.


17. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared between
the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be
exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval. The curb opening is existing as
previously approved.


18. The minimum paved surface setback from a side lot line is 5 feet while the minimum is 10
feet from a right-of-way line. The plan meets this requirement.


19. Off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705. If deliveries from large trucks are
anticipated, one off-street loading stall will need to be shown per section 78-705. A
diagram shall be provided detailing how trucks will be able to maneuver onsite.
Backing into or from the street is not allowed. No deliveries are anticipated at this time.


20. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-
single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures:


" Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned
property; N/A


" Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way;
" Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street… The following


exterior construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”:
non-decorative concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or







panels, non-decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed
fastener systems or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning
Commission. However, such materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission
as decorative elements.


The proposed buildings are proposed to match the existing buildings.


21. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and
community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan
commission. Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on
a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building. This material is not allowed
within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance. This will be determined by the
Planning Commission.


22. A landscaping plan which meets the requirements of Article VI of the zoning code is
required. The landscaping requirements are as follows:


" Building foundations: 40 points of landscaping are required per 100 feet of
foundation perimeter. 490 feet of foundation requires 196 points of landscaping
which is required to be planted within 10 feet of the building foundations. Climax
and tall trees cannot be used to meet this requirement. This plan appears to be meet
this requirement.


" Street frontages: 40 points of landscaping are required per 100 feet of frontage. 158
feet of frontage requires 63 points of landscaping. All landscaping shall be within 10
feet of the public right-of-way and cannot be within the public right-of-way. Shrubs
shall not be used to meet this requirement. A minimum of 50% of the points shall be
used for climax or tall trees and a minimum of 30% of all points shall be devoted to
medium trees. The plan appears to meet this requirement.


" Paved areas: 60 points of landscaping are required for every 20 required parking stalls
or 10,000 square feet of pavement (whichever yields the greater landscaping
requirement). 40 total required parking stalls requires 120 points of landscaping.
Plants used to fulfill this requirement shall visually screen parking, and circulation
areas from view from public streets. A minimum of 360 square feet of landscaped
area shall be provided and located within 10 feet of the paved area for every 100
paved area points. Said area does not have to be provided in one contiguous area.
The plan appears to meet this requirement.


" Developed lots: 10 points of landscaping are required for every 1,000 square feet of
gross floor area. 6600 square feet will require 66 points of landscaping. The plan
appears to meet this requirement.


23. Bufferyards landscaping is required where two different zoning classifications abut one
another. The adjacent properties are the same classification, so there are no bufferyard
requirements.


24. Exterior lighting standards.
All off-street parking areas shall be lit to ensure safe and efficient use. An illumination level
of between 0.4 and 1.0 footcandles are recommended and said illumination shall not exceed
the standards of section 78-707. The maximum lighting as measured at the property line is







0.5 footcandles. The maximum average on-site lighting shall be 2.4 footcandles. The
minimum lighting standard for parking areas used after sunset shall be 0.2 foot-candles. The
lighting element shall not be visible from the residentially zoned properties. Information
has been provided to confirm compliance.


25. All exterior trash storage areas shall be located within a gated enclosure which completely
screens the view a said trash. The exterior of said enclosure shall be constructed of some or
all of the materials used on the main building. No exterior trash areas are proposed
rather each unit will have their own bins.


26. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required. Dane
County Land Conservation, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform
inspections. The plan, application and fees shall be submitted to the Department of
Planning & Development office at Stoughton City Hall. We will provide copies to Dane
County for review.


27. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on
the utility plan. Provided. Contact Robert Kardasz, Stoughton Utilities at 608-873-3379
for electric, water and wastewater services.


28. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage. This is expected.


29. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation. Signage
must meet the requirements of zoning code, articleVIII. A permit is required for
signage prior to installation. No signage is proposed at this time.


30. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process.


Business Park Covenants:
The following items are contained in the Business Park Covenants and will need to be addressed
as noted:


1. Plan Submittal
a. Name and mailing address of developer/owner. Provided.
b. Utilities and utility right of way easements. There is a 12-foot easement along


the front of the lot and an easement at the rear that is contained within the
75-foot conservation easement. Contact Stoughton Utilities regarding
electric, water and wastewater services.


c. Exterior signs. A plan shall be submitted if signage is planned.
d. Exterior Lighting. A compliant photometric plan has been provided.
e. Clearing, grading, and drainage plan showing proposed clearing limits, existing


and proposed contours at two foot intervals. A grading plan has been provided.
f. Site statistics, including site square footage, percent of site coverage’s and percent


of park or open space. Provided







g. All exterior materials and colors, including manufacturer’s name and catalogue
numbers or samples of the same. New buildings are proposed to match


existing buildings
h. Location and dimensions of all proposed outdoor storage areas, and the location


and dimensions of all fencing and screening. There are no outdoor storage
areas or fencing proposed. For future reference: Outdoor storage is a
conditional use in the Planned Industrial District and is required to be
screened from view.


2. Development Standards
a. “All electrical and air conditioning structures, including towers and air handling


units, regardless of location and whether on the roof or otherwise, shall be
concealed by landscaping or by decorative screening materials which form an
integral part of the design.” All units proposed to be screened per landscape
plan.


b. All areas intended to be utilized for parking space and driveways shall be surfaced
with bituminous asphalt or concrete.” Expected to be paved as proposed.


c. “All parking stalls shall be marked with painted lines not less than 4” wide.”
Expected.


d. “No parking areas will be permitted within the building set back lines with the
following two exceptions:
1. Office employee and visitor parking may be permitted within the front


yard setback lines subject to approval of the Committee. N/A.
2. Lots bounded by more than one road may have parking areas within the


building set back lines along roads other than the one on which the
building fronts subject to approval by the Committee.” NA


e. “A scale drawing of any sign, trademark or advertising device to be used on any
Lot or the exterior of any building or structure will be submitted to the Committee
in triplicate or the written approval by the Committee.” None proposed.


f. “The front yard setback area shall be landscaped with an effective combination of
trees, ground cover and shrubbery. All unpaved areas not utilized for parking
shall be landscaped in a similar manner. The entire area between the curb and a
point 0 feet in back of the front property line shall be landscaped, except for any
access driveway in said area. Notwithstanding the above, the entire area between
the right-of-way and the building setback line shall be densely landscaped with a
combination of effective visual screening on all use areas.” Expected to be
consistent with existing development and previous approvals.


g. “Areas used for parking shall be landscaped and/or fenced in such a manner as to
interrupt or screen said areas from view of access streets, freeways, and adjacent
properties. Plant materials used for this purpose shall consist of lineal or grouped
masses of shrubs and/or trees.” Expected to be consistent with existing
development and previous approvals.


h. “All outdoor storage shall be visually screened from access streets and adjacent
property.” No outdoor storage is allowed unless reviewed and approved as
part of a conditional use process.


i. “Outdoor storage shall be meant to include parking of all company owned and
operated vehicles, with the exception of passenger vehicles.” See h above.







j. “All outdoor refuse collection areas shall be visually screened from access streets
and adjacent property by a complete opaque screen.” N/A. See #2a and #25.


k. “Architectural Review. The Business Park North Committee will take into
account the appearance of all buildings, parking areas and storage areas.”


3. Any other information considered pertinent by the Committee.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Okejcgn R/ Uvceg{


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


cc. Aaron Falkosky, via email
Ron Grosso, via email


s:\planning\property log folder\300 business park circle\2018 submittals\grosso review letter 2018.doc





		08a-R-139-2018 Grosso 300 BP Circle CUP Resolution18.pdf

		08b-Grosso - 300 Business  Park Circle CUP.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by Shelby Hoops for 


property located on Skyline Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval 6 - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-140-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, the land division request is proposed to split off 3.1 acres from the farmland along Skyline 


Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs with the intent to building a residential home; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 


determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s 


Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), but beyond the City’s Long-Term Urban Growth area as identified in City 


planning area (currently depicted as agricultural lands); and 


 


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-602 (3) provides for a 1 acre minimum lot size and a 2.5 acre maximum lot 


size in the ETJ area; and  


 


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-1301 provides for exceptions and waivers on a case by case basis if all of 


the following conditions are met: 


(1) The granting of the exception or waiver conditions will not be detrimental to the public safety, 


health, or welfare or injurious to other property; 


(2) The conditions upon which the request is based are unique to the property for which the relief is 


sought and are not applicable generally to other property except as allowed through planned unit 


development, cluster development or traditional neighborhood development; 


(3) Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific 


property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from a mere 


inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried out; 


(4) The relief sought will not in any manner vary the provisions of the comprehensive plan, zoning 


ordinance, or official map, except that those documents may be amended in the manner prescribed 


by law; 


(5) In approving exceptions or waivers of conditions, the plan commission may require such conditions 


so as to carry out the purpose and intent of this chapter described in section 66-102; and  


 


WHEREAS, on July 9, 2018 the Stoughton Plan Commission finds the conditions necessary to grant a 


waiver are met; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 


division request by Shelby Hoops to split off 3.1 acres from the farmland along Skyline Drive, Town of 


Pleasant Springs with the intent to build a residential home is hereby approved as presented contingent on 


Town of Pleasant Springs and Dane County approval. 


 







Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                                     


Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Hoops - Pleasant Springs ETJ CSM 18.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Hoops CSM ETJ Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 27, 2018


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting and
July 24, 2018 Common Council Meeting.


Request by Shelby Hoops for an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM)
request to create a residential parcel on Skyline Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs.
This property is within the City of Stoughton’s 1.5 mile extra-territorial jurisdiction but beyond the
City’s Long-Term Urban Growth area as identified on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
Map. This request is to split off 3.1 acres from the family farmland. The new residential parcel is
over the maximum 2.5 acres allowance within the land division ordinance so an exception is
required for this approval. We see no reason not to approve the exception and land division request.
The resolution, CSM and related materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is
necessary.















Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


Skyline Drive ETJ


Tax Parcels
June 29, 2018


 
 


0 1,100 2,200550 Feet
1 inch = 900 feet



mstacey

Arrow









































		09a-R-140-2018 Hoops - Pleasant Springs ETJ CSM 18.pdf

		09b-Hoops - Skyline Drive ETJ CSM.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by Tim Thorson for 


property located at 810 US Highway 51, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval 6 - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-141-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, the land division request is proposed to split off 1.78 acres including the existing residential 


home and add the remaining 8.97 acres to the existing commercial property at 810 US Highway 51 in the 


Town of Dunkirk; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 


determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s 


Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is proposed to be planned mixed use on the future land use map.  The 


existing uses are not planned to change and the commercial use would be allowable within the planned 


mixed use definition; and 


 


WHEREAS, the request meets City Ordinance 66-602 (3), which provides for a 1 acre minimum lot size in 


the ETJ area while non-residential uses are handled on a case by case basis.  The existing commercial use 


meets the intent of the comprehensive plan; and  


 


WHEREAS, on July 9, 2018 the Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed the ETJ request and 


recommend Common Council approval as presented;  now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 


division request by Tim Thorson for property located at 810 US Highway 51, Town of Dunkirk is hereby 


approved as presented contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                                     


Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  


  


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Thorson - Dunkirk ETJ CSM 7-18.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Thorson CSM ETJ Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 26, 2018


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting and
July 24, 2018 Common Council Meeting.


Request by Tim Thorson of Royal Oak Engineering for an extra-territorial jurisdictional
(ETJ) land division (CSM) request to split off an existing residential home and combine the
remaining acres to the adjacent commercial land at 810 US Highway 51.
This property is within the City of Stoughton’s 1.5 mile extra-territorial jurisdiction and is proposed
to be Planned Mixed Use on the City Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map. The structures
and uses are existing. The new residential parcel is proposed to be 1.78 acres which meets the land
division ordinance requirement of a minimum lot size of 1 acre. The remaining 8.97 acres is
proposed to be combined with the existing commercial parcel. We see no reason not to approve the
request. The resolution, CSM and related materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is
necessary.



























Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


Dane County Map


Tax Parcels
June 27, 2018


 
 


0 750 1,500375 Feet
1 inch = 600 feet



mstacey

Arrow





		10a-R-141-2018 Thorson - Dunkirk ETJ CSM 7-18.pdf

		10b-Thorson 810 US Highway 51 ETJ CSM.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Lifting of Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 193 W. Main Street 


Committee Action: 
 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0. 


0 
Fiscal Impact: $0 


 
File Number: 


 
R- 142-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
      July 24, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council has placed a temporary moratorium on processing 


any applications for demolition of any structure within any historic district listed on the National Register 


of Historic Places; and 


 


WHEREAS, the property at 193 W. Main Street is located in such a historic district and is a contributing 


property to the historic designation of the district; and 


 


WHEREAS, the owner of this property is proposing to demolish the rear portion of the structure with 


future plans to seek approval for the construction of an addition; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the request to lift the temporary moratorium 


on July 9, 2018 and provided a recommendation to the Common Council; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Common Council must lift the temporary moratorium before a demolition permit 


may be issued; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council hereby lifts the temporary demolition moratorium for 193 W. 


Main Street to allow for the processing of application(s) to demolish the rear portion of the structure and 


construct an addition. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


  


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2018 - 193 W. Main Street - Demolition During Moratorium.docx 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Tilleson Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 27, 2018


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting and
July 24, 2018 Common Council Meeting.


Request by Jordan Tilleson to remove 193 W. Main Street from the demolition moratorium to
allow demolition to the rear portion of the building and a proposed addition to proceed
through the review processes.
Mr. Tilleson would like to remove the back portion of this contributing downtown property and
proposes to construct an addition on the rear of the building. In order to proceed, the property will
need to be removed from the temporary demolition moratorium. Ultimately, if the property is
removed from the moratorium, there will be a zoning process for removal of the back portion and
for the proposed addition since it falls under the downtown design overlay zoning district
requirements. The resolution and related materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is
necessary.







TO: City of Stoughton – Department of Planning & Development
FROM: JNT Developments LLC - Jordan Tilleson JT


DATE: June 22, 2018
SUBJECT: Proposal to remodel 193 W. Main Street


Dear Department of Planning & Development,


As you are aware, I have purchased the building at 189/193 W Main Street having
closed on June 8, 2018. It is my intent to remodel parts of the interior of the building
and to improve a pervious addition that was added to the building and is currently
falling apart. It is my belief that these updates will bring more people to live in
downtown Stoughton, will help bring another successful business into the
commercial space, and will add parking spaces to the area.


Therefore, I am writing to you to ask that you remove my building from the building
moratorium and approve my plan for updates to the building located at 193 W Main
Street. Plans for the buildout at attached to this letter and a summary of the project
are listed below:


• Finished basement will become 1-bedroom apartment and storage space for
business operating in the commercial space


• Commercial space will get an ADA bathroom and become ADA compliant
• Improved staircase to the second floor and basement of the building
• A laundry area will be added for tenants
• The unsafe pervious addition to the back of the building will be removed
• A 2-car garage will be added to the open space on the back of the lot
• There will be a 1-bedroom apartment added above the garage


It is not my plan to change the exterior of the original building or to change the
charm of downtown Stoughton. As an established business owner in our city and
member of the community, I am taking the opportunity to grow my business while
meeting the needs of downtown Stoughton and maintaining its character. I do not
intend to use any Stoughton Redevelopment Authority money for this project, and
the buildout will be completed by local contractor Our House Realty and
Construction. After approval from the City of Stoughton, the plans will be submitted
to the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services for approval.


I appreciate your consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any
questions. I can be reached by phone at 262-227-2937 or via email at
Jordan.tilleson@gmail.com.


Respectfully,
Jordan Tilleson JT


Owner of JNT Developments LLC







Image capture: Aug 2011 © 2018 Google


Street View - Aug 2011


Stoughton, Wisconsin


Google, Inc.


318 S Water St


Page 1 of 2318 S Water St - Google Maps


6/8/2018https://www.google.com/maps/place/193+W+Main+St,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9163696,-89.2216047,3a,75y,59.16h,89.35...



mstacey

Cross-out

8 S Water St
318 S Water St - Google Maps Page 1 of 2
https://www.google.com/maps/place/193+W+Main+St,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9163696,-89.2216047,3a,75y,59.16h,89.35... 6/8/2018








whg


cd
g


cw


fg
fa


tlt


sm


re
fim


rg


UP


UP


UP


UP


E1E1


E2E2


E6E6


E8


E
le


va
tio


n
 8


39'-0"


4'-0 3/4"
4'-4 3/4"


5'-2 3/4"


3
'-


8
"


2
3


'-
0


"


2
2


'-
5


 7
/8


"


3'-1 1/4"


3
'-


0
"


3
'-


6
"


3'-6"


3
'-


8
"


71 sq ft


55 sq ft
94 sq ft


33 sq ft


48 sq ft


96 sq ft


49 sq ft


81 sq ft


176 sq ft


11 sq ft


41 sq ft


339 sq ft


mech equip


Office


Office


laundry


Bathroom


Stor.


Corr.


stairsLanding


retail storage
Kitchenette


Office


dw


no cabinets below work space or sink


ls


64
25


 O
da


na
 R


oa
d,


 S
ui


te
 #


2
M


ad
is


on
, W


I 5
37


19
(6


08
) 8


33
-3


40
0 


 w
w


w.
bo


ur
ild


es
ig


n.
co


m
 


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9


pprroojjeecctt::
ddaattee::
ddrraawwnn  bbyy::


18020
6/6/2018
abc


P
re


lim
in


a
ry


 D
e


s
ig


n
P


re
lim


in
a


ry
 D


e
s
ig


n
  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


J:
\2


0
1


8
 P


ro
je


ct
s


\1
8


0
2


0
 J


N
T


 D
e


v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
ts


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
\3


 -
 T


e
c
h


n
ic


a
l\1


8
0


2
0


 T
ill


e
so


n
.l
a


yo
u


t 
 6


/6
/2


0
1


8
 -


 5
:3


3
:1


2
 P


M


T
h


e
 d


e
s
ig


n
 r


e
p


re
s
e


n
te


d
 b


y
 t
h


e
s
e


d
ra


w
in


g
s
 is


 c
o


p
y
ri


g
h


t 
p


ro
te


c
te


d
 &


 is


th
e


 s
o


le
 p


ro
p


e
rt


y
 o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


. 
 T


h
e


s
e


 d
ra


w
in


g
s
 o


r 
d


ig
ita


l


fil
e


s
 m


a
y
 n


o
t 
b


e
 r


e
p


ro
d


u
c
e


d
 w


ith
o


u
t


th
e


 w
ri


tt
e


n
 c


o
n


s
e


n
t 
o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


 M
a


d
is


o
n


, 
W


is
c
o


n
s
in


.


A1A1SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"


Ground Floor PlanGround Floor Plan
1111


Bo
ur


il D
es


ig
n 


St
ud


io
, L


LC


rreevviissiioonn  iinnddeexx
## ddaattee rreeffeerreennccee


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


1 Unfinished space


2 HVAC trunk line


Keynotes - Bsmt/Grnd Floor Plan ##


Heated Living Area SummaryHeated Living Area Summary
basement/ground floor unfinished area x sq ft


basement/ground floor finished area x sq ft


total basement/ground floor heated area x sq ft


first floor finished area x sq ft


second floor finished area x sq ft


second floor unfinished area x sq ft


total heated interior living areatotal heated interior living area x sq ftx sq ft


Ancillary + Deck AreasAncillary + Deck Areas
first floor garage x sq ft


first floor exterior covered porches x sq ft


first floor exterior decks x sq ft


second floor exterior decks/balconies x sq ft


total ancillary areatotal ancillary area x sq ftx sq ft


gross area heated living+ ancillary & deckgross area heated living+ ancillary & deck x sq ftx sq ft







UP


DN


DN


DN


DN


tlt


UP


UP


UP


ground floor plan
1/8 in = 1 ft


1


basement floor plan
1/8 in = 1 ft


1


first floor plan
1/8 in = 1 ft


1


second floor plan
1/8 in = 1 ft


1


interior partition type P7
See floor plans for locations.  P7 is used @ safe rooms, vaults


or other secure rooms.
 


 furring may not be present in all areas; refer to the plans


interior partition type P1
 


all interior partitions are P1 unless noted otherwise


interior partition type P2
See floor plans for locations


interior partition type P3
 


all partitions between house & attached garages are P3 unless


noted otherwise


all doors within this partition between house & garage shall be 20 minute fire rated


interior partition type P4
 


all furred walls @ basement or ground floor concrete


foundation walls shall be P4 unless noted otherwise


also use type P4 without insulation @ other interior furred & fireplace walls


interior partition type P5
 


See floor plans for locations.  This is a furred wall @ basement


or ground floor concrete foundation walls where space


constraints necessitate a thinner wall.


interior partiton type P6
 


all partitions between house & screen porches or 3-season


porches are P6


E1E1


E2E2


E4E4


E6E6


E8


E
le


va
tio


n
 8


2
3


'-
0


"


39'-0"


29'-5"


3'-9 1/4"


9'-0"


3'-9 1/4" 4'-11 1/4"


3'-9 1/4"


3
'-


1
1


 1
3


/1
6


"


2
2


'-
7


 3
/8


"


3
'-


3
 1


/2
"


1'-6"


4'-10 5/8"


49 sq ft


16 sq ft


14 sq ft


28 sq ft


1023 sq ft


61 sq ft


60 sq ft


52 sq ft


19 sq ft


82 sq ft


516 sq ft


16 sq ft


Heated Finished Space x,xxx


sq.ft.


Heated Unfinished Space     xxx


sq.ft.


Ground Floor Heated AreaGround Floor Heated Area x,xxx sq.ft.x,xxx sq.ft.


Ground Floor Area SummaryGround Floor Area Summary First Floor Area SummaryFirst Floor Area Summary


Heated Finished SpaceHeated Finished Space  x,xxx sq.ft. x,xxx sq.ft.


Garage: xxx sq.ft.


Covered Front Porch xxx sq. ft.


Rear Deck under Roof   xx sq. ft.


Screen Porch xxx sq.ft.


Unheated Area under RoofUnheated Area under Roof x,xxx sq.ft.x,xxx sq.ft.


First Floor Area under RoofFirst Floor Area under Roof x,xxx sq.ft.x,xxx sq.ft.


Second Floor Area SummarySecond Floor Area Summary


Heated Finished SpaceHeated Finished Space  x,xxx sq.ft. x,xxx sq.ft.


Exterior Deck under Roof xxx sq.ft.


Unfinished space over garage xxx sq. ft.


Unheated Area under RoofUnheated Area under Roof x,xxx sq.ft.x,xxx sq.ft.


Second Flr Area under RoofSecond Flr Area under Roof x,xxx sq.ft.x,xxx sq.ft.


stair


stair


garage


stair


entry


Open
to


belowStor.


retail


porch


patio


Restroom


patio


Wall System SummaryWall System Summary
basement non-exposed foundationbasement non-exposed foundation


2" EPS exterior, 20 yr fluid applied waterproofing, 8" conc wall, 3.5"


stud w/R12 f'glass batt, 1/2" GWB


typical framed exterior walltypical framed exterior wall


siding, fabric weather resistive barrier, 1" EPS, 7/16" OSB, 2" SPF


insul, 3.5" f'glass bib insul, VR, 1/2" GWB


garage wallgarage wall


siding, weather resistive barrier, 7/16" OSB, 3.5" f'glass BIB insul,


VR, 5/8" GWB


screen porch wallscreen porch wall


siding, weather resistive barrier, 7/16" OSB, 5/8" wood panel


Vertical Dimension SummaryVertical Dimension Summary


basement wall heightbasement wall height


top of footing to top of joist bearing plate: 8' 10-1/2"


basement slab thickness: 4"


basement window head heightbasement window head height


top of window head elevation above slab: 7' 2"


1st flr wall height1st flr wall height


top of structural floor deck to top of roof or joist bearing plate: 9' 1-1/8"


garage wall heightsgarage wall heights


top of slab to top of perimeter foundation wall: 6"


top of foundation wall to top of roof or joist bearing plate: 8' 1-1/8"


1st flr framing1st flr framing


house framing depth & type: 11 7/8" I-joists @ 16" oc


ext deck framing depth & type: PT 2x10's @ 16" oc


front stoop: 4" slab


garage floor: 4: slab


1st flr window head height1st flr window head height


top of window head above subfloor: 8' 0"


1st flr elevations1st flr elevations


first flr subfloor: 0' 0"


garage elevation: -1' 2-1/8"


front porch elevation: -4"


exterior deck elevation: -1.5"


screen porch elevation: -1.5"


2nd flr wall height2nd flr wall height


top of structural floor deck to top of roof bearing plate: 8' 1-1/8"


2nd flr framing2nd flr framing


house framing depth & type: 11 7/8" I-joists @ 16" oc


space above garage framing depth & type: 11 7/8" I-joists @ 16" oc


2nd flr window head height2nd flr window head height


top of window head above subfloor: 8' 1-1/8"


2nd flr elevations2nd flr elevations


space above garage in relation to 2nd flr: -8"


Accessibility RequirementsAccessibility Requirements
elevator w/stops @ x floorselevator w/stops @ x floors


flush entry from garage to houseflush entry from garage to house


36' doors @ main floor living level36' doors @ main floor living level


ramp access from exterior to front doorramp access from exterior to front door


flush entry master bath showerflush entry master bath shower


Interior Partition ScheduleInterior Partition Schedule


exterior wall type EW1
2x6 wood framed wall with cladding
 


cavity insulation


2" of closed-cell, two-component, HFC-blown polyurethane foam* with r-15 fiberglass un-faced batt
 


performance (Ti=70°F, Te=11°F, Hi=30%)


assembly r-value of 36.87, assembly u-value of 0.027


winter heat loss rate of 1.60 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the spf insul layer


summer heat gain rate of -0.22 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the xps insul layer
 


*the use of closed-cell polyurethane foam eliminates the need for an interior vapor retarder


exterior wall type EW2
2x6 wood framed wall with adhered veneer
 


cavity insulation


2" of closed-cell, two-component, HFC-blown polyurethane foam* with r-15 fiberglass un-faced batt
 


performance (Ti=70°F, Te=11°F, Hi=30%)


assembly r-value of 37.15, assembly u-value of 0.027


winter heat loss rate of 1.59 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the spf insul layer


summer heat gain rate of -0.22 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the xps insul layer
 


*the use of closed-cell polyurethane foam eliminates the need for an interior vapor retarder


exterior wall type EW3
2x6 wood framed wall with textured applied finish system
 


cavity insulation


2" of closed-cell, two-component, HFC-blown polyurethane foam* with r-15 fiberglass un-faced batt
 


performance (Ti=70°F, Te=11°F, Hi=30%)


assembly r-value of 37.89, assembly u-value of 0.026


winter heat loss rate of 1.56 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the spf insul layer


summer heat gain rate of -0.21 btu/hr/sqft with the dew point falling within the xps insul layer
 


*the use of closed-cell polyurethane foam eliminates the need for an interior vapor retarder


Exterior Wall ScheduleExterior Wall Schedule


UP


SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"


64
25


 O
da


na
 R


oa
d,


 S
ui


te
 #


2
M


ad
is


on
, W


I 5
37


19
(6


08
) 8


33
-3


40
0 


 w
w


w.
bo


ur
ild


es
ig


n.
co


m
 


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9


pprroojjeecctt::
ddaattee::
ddrraawwnn  bbyy::


18020
6/6/2018
abc


P
re


lim
in


a
ry


 D
e


s
ig


n
P


re
lim


in
a


ry
 D


e
s
ig


n
  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


J:
\2


0
1


8
 P


ro
je


ct
s


\1
8


0
2


0
 J


N
T


 D
e


v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
ts


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
\3


 -
 T


e
c
h


n
ic


a
l\1


8
0


2
0


 T
ill


e
so


n
.l
a


yo
u


t 
 6


/6
/2


0
1


8
 -


 5
:3


3
:1


2
 P


M


T
h


e
 d


e
s
ig


n
 r


e
p


re
s
e


n
te


d
 b


y
 t
h


e
s
e


d
ra


w
in


g
s
 is


 c
o


p
y
ri


g
h


t 
p


ro
te


c
te


d
 &


 is


th
e


 s
o


le
 p


ro
p


e
rt


y
 o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


. 
 T


h
e


s
e


 d
ra


w
in


g
s
 o


r 
d


ig
ita


l


fil
e


s
 m


a
y
 n


o
t 
b


e
 r


e
p


ro
d


u
c
e


d
 w


ith
o


u
t


th
e


 w
ri


tt
e


n
 c


o
n


s
e


n
t 
o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


 M
a


d
is


o
n


, 
W


is
c
o


n
s
in


.


A2A2


First Floor PlanFirst Floor Plan
1111


Bo
ur


il D
es


ig
n 


St
ud


io
, L


LC


rreevviissiioonn  iinnddeexx
## ddaattee rreeffeerreennccee


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


1 Laundry Chute


2 Attic access hatch


Keynotes - First Floor Plan ##


Area SummaryArea Summary
basement floor remodeled  area (net) ` 964 sq ft


basement addition area (gross) 289 sq ft


first floor addition area (gross) - heated 289 sq ft


first floor addition area (gross) - garage 596 sq ft


total first floor addition 885 sq ft


second floor addtion area  -heated 897 sq ft







DN


DN


DN


cd
g


cw


refimrg


sm


fg
fa


tlt


W
H


E1E1


E2E2


E4E4


E6E6


E8


E
le


va
ti
o
n


 8


3
'-


2
 1


5
/1


6
"


39'-0"


10'-4 7/8"


7'-4 3/4"


1
5


'-
7


"
5


'-
5


 3
/4


"


3'-3 5/8"14'-7 3/8"4'-2 1/2"


2
3


'-
0


"


2
2


'-
7


 7
/8


"


2
3


'-
0


"


2'-10 7/8"


5
'-


1
 7


/1
6


"


2
1


'-
1


1
 3


/4
"


3
'-


6
 1


/4
"


4'-9 1/2"4'-0 3/4"


8'-10 1/4"


43 sq ft


11 sq ft64 sq ft


62 sq ft


559 sq ft


105 sq ft


348 sq ft


9 sq ft


153 sq ft


58 sq ft


40 sq ft


38 sq ft


19 sq ft


236 sq ft


78 sq ft


25 sq ft


12 sq ft


14 sq ft


stair


stair


Corr. Corr.hall


bedroom


clos


living


stair


Apartment 2


stair


bath


pantry


hall


clos


Apartment 1


utility


kitchen42" high partial height wall


STEP UP


64
25


 O
da


na
 R


oa
d,


 S
ui


te
 #


2
M


ad
is


on
, W


I 5
37


19
(6


08
) 8


33
-3


40
0 


 w
w


w.
bo


ur
ild


es
ig


n.
co


m
 


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


R
e


m
o


d
e


l/
A


d
d


it
io


n
 f


o
r


J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
J
o


rd
a


n
 T


ill
e


s
o


n
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9
1


9
3


 W
e


s
t 


M
a


in
 S


tr
e


e
t,


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
, 


W
I,


 5
3


5
8


9


pprroojjeecctt::
ddaattee::
ddrraawwnn  bbyy::


18020
6/6/2018
abc


P
re


lim
in


a
ry


 D
e


s
ig


n
P


re
lim


in
a


ry
 D


e
s
ig


n
  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


J:
\2


0
1


8
 P


ro
je


ct
s


\1
8


0
2


0
 J


N
T


 D
e


v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
ts


 S
to


u
g


h
to


n
\3


 -
 T


e
c
h


n
ic


a
l\1


8
0


2
0


 T
ill


e
so


n
.l
a


yo
u


t 
 6


/6
/2


0
1


8
 -


 5
:3


3
:1


2
 P


M


T
h


e
 d


e
s
ig


n
 r


e
p


re
s
e


n
te


d
 b


y
 t
h


e
s
e


d
ra


w
in


g
s
 is


 c
o


p
y
ri


g
h


t 
p


ro
te


c
te


d
 &


 is


th
e


 s
o


le
 p


ro
p


e
rt


y
 o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


. 
 T


h
e


s
e


 d
ra


w
in


g
s
 o


r 
d


ig
ita


l


fil
e


s
 m


a
y
 n


o
t 
b


e
 r


e
p


ro
d


u
c
e


d
 w


ith
o


u
t


th
e


 w
ri


tt
e


n
 c


o
n


s
e


n
t 
o


f 
B


o
u


ri
l D


e
s
ig


n


S
tu


d
io


, 
L


L
C


 M
a


d
is


o
n


, 
W


is
c
o


n
s
in


.


SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"


Second Floor PlanSecond Floor Plan
1111


A3A3


Bo
ur


il D
es


ig
n 


St
ud


io
, L


LC


rreevviissiioonn  iinnddeexx
## ddaattee rreeffeerreennccee


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
  


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
ra


w
in


g
s


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


D
e


s
ig


n
 D


e
v
e


lo
p


m
e


n
t


  


N
o


t 
fo


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n
N


o
t 


fo
r 


C
o


n
s
tr


u
c
ti
o


n


1 Laundry Chute


2 Attic access hatch


3 bottomless pit


Keynotes - Second Floor Plan 



















Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


Dane County Map


Tax Parcels
June 27, 2018


 
 


0 125 25062.5 Feet
1 inch = 100 feet



mstacey

Arrow





		11a-R-142-2018 - 193 W. Main Street - Demolition During Moratorium.pdf

		11b-Tilleson Moratorium Request.pdf

		Insert from: "CF2.pdf"

		Corner of Main St. & Water St.

		Corner of Main St. & Water St.

		Corner of Main St. & Water St.

		Kegonsa Plaza

		Corner of Main St. & Division St.

		South side of Main St.

		Corner of Main St. & Forrest St.

		South side of Main St.

		Corner of Main St. & Fourth St.

		Corner of Main St. & Fourth St.

		KOFFEE KUP

		City Hall

		Corner of Main St. & Fifth St.

		North side of Main St.

		North side of Main St.

		North side of Main St.

		Montage

		Corner of Main St. & Fourth St.

		Post Office

		Corner of Main St. & Forrest St.

		Corner of Main St. & Forrest St.

		Corner of Main St & Division St.

		Corner of Main St & Division St.

		Corner of Main St & Water St.

		Corner of Main St & Water St.

		North side of Main St.










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located southeast of the intersection 


of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 


Single Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family  


Committee 


Action:    


Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 – 0 


Fiscal Impact:        


File Number: O-21-2018 First Reading: 


 


July 24, 2018 


 


RECITALS 


 


1. By application submitted in 2016 (the “Original Application”) Norse View 


Heights LLC (the “Applicant”) applied to change the zoning classification of certain lands 


located southeast of the intersection of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of 


Stoughton.   


 


2. The Original Application was accompanied by an application for approval of a 


Certified Survey Map to consolidate multiple parcels into a single lot.  Applicant sought to 


rezone the new lot to TR-6 Two-Family Residential in anticipation of a future Group 


Development proposal.  The Original Application proposed Institutional zoning for an area 


applicant sought to dedicate to the public for a ped/bike trail. 


 


3. Applicant Norse View Heights LLC (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the 


zoning classification certain lands located southeast of the intersection of N. Page Street and 


County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 Single-Family 


Residential to TR-6 – Two-Family Residential. 


 


4. On July 11, 2016, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public 


hearing regarding the Original Application.  The public hearing was preceded by the publication 


of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.  


 


5. On May 19, 2018, Applicant submitted a revised two lot certified survey map (the 


“CSM”) proposing a group development on Lot 1 and single-family residence on Lot 2 along 


with an area dedicated to the public for a ped/bike trail. 


 


6. After May 19, 2018, Applicant informed the City that it wished to withdraw its 


certified survey map application. 


 


7. After May 19, 2018, Applicant informed the City that it wished to modify the 


Original Application, and request the following zoning changes (the “Amended Application”): 







 


a. Applicant requests to change the zoning classification of Lots 152, 153, 


154 and 155 of the Plat of Seventh Addition to Norse View Heights from SR-4 to TR-6; 


 


b. Applicant requests to change the zoning classification of Parcel No. 


281/0611-323-8510-2, being part of the NW ¼ of the SW ¼ o Section 32, T 6N, R. 11E, 


in the City of Stoughton, from RH to TR-6. 


 


8. The Planning Commission recommended that the Amended Application be 


approved, but that such approval not be effective unless the conditions set forth in Section 4 


below are first satisfied.  


 


9. The Common Council has considered the Amended Application and the Plan 


Commission’s recommendations, finds that the proposed zoning changes are consistent with the 


City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and finds that the proposed zoning changes have the 


potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base, if the conditions 


set forth in Section 4 below are satisfied. 


 


 


ORDINANCE 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as 


follows: 


 


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this 


ordinance as if set forth in full.   


 


Section 2. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall be defined as 


follows: 


 


A. “Property” means Lots 152, 153, 154 and 155 of the Plat of Seventh Addition to 


Norse View Heights, and Parcel No. 281/0611-323-8510-2, being part of the NW 


¼ of the SW ¼ o Section 32, T 6N, R. 11E, in the City of Stoughton. 


 


B. “Group Development” has the meaning provided in Section 78-205(12) of the 


Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. 


 


Section 3. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 4 below, the zoning 


classification of the Property is changed to TR-6. 


 


Section 4. The zoning changes described in Section 3 above shall not be effective 


until Applicant has satisfied the following conditions: 


 


A. The driveway currently located on Parcel No. 281/0611-323-8510-2 (providing 


access to CTH B) shall be physically removed from the Property; 


 







B. A new driveway serving Parcel No. 281/0611-323-8110-6 (the “Adjacent 


Parcel”), having a street address of 401 CTH B, shall be constructed on the 


Adjacent Parcel to provide public street access to the Adjacent Parcel.  


 


C. Covenants and Restrictions applicable to the Property must be approved by the 


Common Council and recorded with the Register of Deeds for Dane County.  The 


Deed Restrictions must contain the following provisions: 


 


 There shall be no access to the Property from CTH B. 


 


 No Group Development shall be approved for all or any part of the 


Property unless Stoughton Utilities has approved plans and specifications 


for the installation of public water, sewer and electric infrastructure to 


serve the Group Development, and the developer of the Group 


Development has entered into an agreement with the City of Stoughton 


requiring such developer to construct and install such improvements at 


such developer’s expense. 


 


 No Group Development shall be approved for all or any part of the 


Property unless the City of Stoughton has approved plans and 


specifications for access to and internal vehicular and pedestrian road, 


sidewalk and parking infrastructure, and the developer of the Group 


Development has entered into an agreement with the City of Stoughton 


requiring such developer to construct and install such improvements at 


such developer’s expense, and to the extent any such improvements will 


be privately owned, providing for the future care and maintenance of such 


improvements. 


 


 No Group Development shall be approved for all or any part of the 


Property unless the City of Stoughton has approved erosion control and 


stormwater management plans for such Group Development. 


 


 No Group Development shall be approved for all or any part of the 


Property unless the developer of the Group Development has entered into 


an agreement to install street trees on the Property in accordance with 


Section 10-2(d) of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. 


 


Section 5. If the conditions in Section 4 of this Ordinance have not been satisfied by 


12:00 noon 2 years after the date of adoption, then this Ordinance shall automatically, 


and without any further action, become null and void and of no further force or effect. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Dates 


Council Adopted:     


 


Mayor Approved:            


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:     


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Arnetts Rezoning N. Page and Cty Hwy B - Attorney draft 6-28-18.doc 


 
 


 


 


 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Arnett CSM and Rezoning Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting, July 24, 2018 and
August 14, 2018 Common Council Meeting.


AJ Arnett of Norse View Holdings LLC requests CSM and rezoning approval for property
located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway B.
This request was tabled on July 11, 2016 and June 11, 2018 to allow the applicant to provide more
information regarding the access location on N. Page Street and to provide more specific
information how the property is to be developed. The applicant has since decided to remove the
CSM from consideration and only move forward with the rezoning request. We are currently
waiting for a letter from the applicant regarding this specific request but we have not received such
letter at the time of this draft. The Comprehensive Plan designates this area as two family
residential. There are several conditions built into the rezoning ordinance that will be discussed at
the meeting. A recommendation to Council is necessary for the rezoning. The ordinance and
related materials are provided.







            CSM Request and Zoning amendment for the corner of Page and B


Norse View Holdings LLC is requesting that two item's be considered for approval that 
was tabled on July 11, 2016. 


The CSM map is amended and shows 2 lots. The driveway access is also shown on the 
CSM. The access was moved as far south as possible per the request of the planing 
commission. This will be the only access to lots 1 and 2  


The developer is also requesting a rezone change within the CSM from SR- 4 and RH 
to TR-6 and Institutional. The city has already held a public hearing on the rezone July 
11, 2016. (no one spoke in opposition)  On July 17, 2017 the city updated the 
comprehensive plan to reflect the requested zoning change.


Lot 2 is 9,088 sqft and will have 1 dwelling unit. Tr-6 requires minimum lot size of 
7,200 sqft for single-family detached. 


Lot 1 is 158,997 sqft.  Developer is proposing 26 dwelling units. (Will require group 
development conditional use.)


The Parkland dedication for a multi use trail is 2,500 sqft (Was approved by the park 
commission 4-0 on July 20, 2016 item number 5.)  


The total sqft of the overall site is 170,585 under Tr-6 group development allows for 
one dwelling unit per 5,000 sqft The site would be eligible for 34 dwelling units. 


The developer is proposing 27 total units on the overall site. 


After the rezone and CSM lot 1 would be allowed one duplex along. Under the current 
zoning ordinance only one duplex per lot is allowed unless a conditional use is 
approved for a group development. The developer plans on submitting a request for a 
group development after the rezone is finalized. 







N
O


R
TH


  P
A
G


E  STR
EET


C
A
R
L            A


V
EN


U
E


MARIE  DRIVE
unimproved


C
SM


            # 13788


Lot 1


Lot 2


Lot 3


Lot 4


N
01°11'36"W
125.08'


Invert, 24"
RCP, Elevation
= 891.23'


storm
storm


S02°06'13"E
187 .52'


S01°16'18"E  264.24'


231.25'


N88°49'42"E
19.06'


N88°46'50"E 320.00'


N83°42'50"E88.31'


storm


North Rim of
Sanitary Manhole,
Elevation = 895.88'
Invert = 884.76'


15
6


155 154 153 152


R = 440'


R = 500'


West 1/4 Corner,
Section 32-06-11,


N88°42'10"E 846.34'


Aluminum Monument 


Planned Trail


21. 00'


14.00'


11


6


23.00'


HO


21. 00'


14.00'


11


6


23.00'


HO


56'N
14°28'27"W


   169.54'
R


 = 1366.50'


Vacate Marie Drive


Norse View Holdings LLC
2255 Tower Drive
Stoughton, Wi


M
ax w


ell Ve jvoda
401  C


TH
 B


Stormwater


Easement


33'      3
3'


2" pipe


33'        33 '
SR


-3 zoning


Sanitary Manhole
Rim = 886.64'
Invert = 875.99'


8" w
ater


26'


well


shed


N88°42'10"E 450.29'


33'


v
v


448.9'


Preliminary Plat of Arnett's 


Addition to Norse View Heights


33'


N
06°29'43"W


209.52'


112'
98'


Lot 1
3.65 acres
3.31 acres 
net


306 West Quarry Street, Deerfield, Wisconsin  53531
*


C.S.M.  No.________V._______P.______
Document No._____________________
Sheet_________of_________
Dwg. No.____________Date__________


Scale 1" = 100'


200100500


(608) 764-5602


Lots 152, 153, 154, 155, and 156 of the plat of Seventh Addition to Norse View 
Heights, together with and being part of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4
of Section 32, T.6N., R.11E., City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin


R
 = 1366.50'


pavement edge


curb


20'


Prepared for :
\


4826C-16 4/13/16
1                       1


vents


drivew
ay


20' strip to be 
dedicated for 
parkland


154.5'


pole


31'


18'


75'


9'


Lot 2
9.088
 sq. ft.


rev. 5/15/18, lot 2


Shared Access
Point for Lots 1 
and 2


46' 57'


Driveway access 
for lot 1 and 2







AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Callout

2 Story Town Homes



AJ

Callout

Single Family Lot 2



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Callout

20' Wide Private Drive



AJ

Callout

2 Story Town Home



AJ

Callout

Split Level Duplex



AJ

Callout

New driveway



AJ

Callout

10' wide one way street



AJ

Polygonal Line



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line







AJ

Text Box

Lot 1 and 2 of CSM Rezone to TR-6



AJ

Callout

      Parkland Dedication Rezone to Institutional



AJ

Polygonal Line



AJ

Callout

Area to be rezonedto TR-6 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\7-11-16\Planning Info\Arnett CSM and Rezoning Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2016


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 11, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting, July 26 and
August 9, 2016 Common Council Meeting.


AJ Arnett of Norse View Holdings LLC requests certified survey map (CSM) and rezoning
approval for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway
B. This request is the initial step for a proposed group development of 12 two-family units. A
portion of Marie Drive is proposed to be vacated and used as part of a trail system. The
Comprehensive Plan designates this area as single family residential. The Planning Commission
and Common Council can make a determination that the proposed zoning meets the intent of the
Comprehensive Plan. Staff recommends any approval be contingent on approval of the group
development and providing a statement on the CSM to not allow access to County Highway B. A
public hearing is necessary for the rezoning and recommendation to Council is necessary for the
CSM and Rezoning. The ordinance, resolution and related materials are provided.



mstacey

Text Box

ORIGINAL REQUEST







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution by the City of Stoughton Common Council
approving a Certified Survey Map for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and


County Highway B, City of Stoughton


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval – 0 with the Mayor voting.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: Date Introduced:


RECITALS


1. A certified survey map dated April 13, 2016 (the “CSM”) was submitted by Norse View
Holdings LLC (the “Developer”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) for review and action
on July 11, 2016.


2. The Plan Commission review period specified in Section 66-501(b) will expire on August 7,
2016.


3. The CSM was referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City
Council.


4. The Plan Commission has reviewed the CSM.


5. The Plan Commission determined that if certain conditions are satisfied, the CSM is
consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the
City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan.


6. The Plan Commission recommended that the CSM be approved with certain conditions. The
Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation.







RESOLUTION


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to:


• The proposed future group development must be approved.
• The CSM contains language prohibiting access to County Highway B.
• The CSM being recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy provided to the City


Department of Planning and Development.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Norse View Holdings CSM Resolution.doc











CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located southeast of the intersection
of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4
Single Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I – Institutional (see attached zoning


map)


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval – with the Mayor voting


Fiscal Impact: Increased Tax Base, Parkland and Park Facilities


File Number: O - - 2016 Date Introduced:


RECITALS


1. Norse View Heights LLC (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the zoning
classification of certain lands located southeast of the intersection of N. Page
Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton. The Applicant proposes a
single lot certified survey map (CSM) for a future proposed group development
including an area to be dedicated for parkland. A copy of Applicant’s proposed
CSM (the “CSM”) is attached as Exhibit A.


2. Applicant proposes changing the zoning classification of the lands within the
proposed CSM from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 Single Family Residential to
TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I – Institutional.


3. On July 11, 2016, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public
hearing regarding Applicant’s proposed zoning changes. The public hearing was
preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.


4. The Planning Commission found that the proposed zoning changes are consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommended that the
zoning changes be approved, subject to certain conditions.


5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning changes and the Plan
Commission’s recommendations, finds that the proposed zoning changes are
consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and finds that the
proposed zoning changes have the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and
increasing the City’s tax base.







ORDINANCE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as
follows:


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this
ordinance as if set forth in full.


Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning
classification of the lands within the CSM are changed from RH-Rural Holding and SR-4 Single
Family Residential, to the following zoning classifications:


A. Lot 1 to be zoned TR-6 Two Family Residential;


B. Public dedicated area to be zoned I - Institutional


Section 3. The changes to the zoning classifications of the lots within the CSM are
attached as Exhibit B shall not be effective until the Applicant has obtained approval of a Group
Development. The zoning classifications provided for in Section 2 shall conform to the final
configuration of lots in the recorded CSM. Approval of this ordinance does not constitute
approval of the CSM.


Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to
law.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







EXHIBIT A







EXHIBIT B


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Arnetts CSM Rezoning N. Page and Cty Hwy B.doc







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, July 11,
2016 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers,
Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to
consider a proposed rezoning request by Norse View Holdings LLC for a parcel of land located
at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton, Dane
County, WI. The parcel is proposed to be rezoned from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 – Single
Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I - Institutional in the City of
Stoughton, Dane County, WI. A portion of the following map (Lot 1, CSM) shows the land
affected by the proposed zoning change:


For questions regarding this notice contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


The map will also be available online at www.cityofstoughton.com/planning See “Arnett’s
Addition to Norse View Heights”


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


For Publication June 16 and June 23, 2016 HUB


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Arnetts CSM Rezoning Hearing Notice (w map) 16.doc







Norse View Crossings
Written Justification for Rezone Request


The developer is requesting to rezone five single family lots that are currently zones SR-4 and one large
parcel that is currently zoned rural holdings to TR-6 duplex.  In doing so a one lot CSM map will be 
created to combine the current lots into one lot that will be zoned for duplex.


This rezone request is consistent with the comprehensive plan, which includes a neighborhood park, 
multi-use trail system and a mix of housing types.  The developer felt that this property with its close 
proximity to Highway B is more desirable for multi family housing.  


The developer met with the City’s planning commission to get their input to develop a PUD 
development consisting of 12 duplex style homes.  After further research requesting a conditional use is
more appropriate allowing 12 duplex units that would meet all the current set backs and requirements 
of TR-6 duplex zoning.  By rezoning the subject property no additional streets or city infrastructure 
improvements will be needed, lessoning the burden on the city since everything within the lot will be 
private improvements.


Along with this rezone there will be a parkland dedication to connect a multi-use trail system to the 
adjacent preliminary Norse View Heights subdivision. 







City of Stoughton Procedural Checklist for Amendment of Official Zoning
Map (Requirements per Section 78-903)


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application
to amend the Official Zoning Map and by the City to process said application. Parts II and III are
to be used by the Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - IV are to be used by the City
when processing said application.


Name of Applicant: ______________________________________________________________


Address & Phone of Applicant: _____________________________________________________


Property location for zoning change: _________________________________________________


Zoning Change Request from to ______________________________


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Meetings with Staff:


Date of Meeting: __________ Met with: .


Date of Meeting: __________ Met with: .


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: .


Application fee of received by Zoning Administrator Date: .


If necessary, reimbursement of consultant costs agreement executed: Date: .


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for City and Applicant Use


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the
Applicant shall submit an initial draft application for staff review, followed by one revised draft
final application packet based upon staff review and comments.


Date: .


Application (1 copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: .


 (a) A copy of the Current Zoning Map of the subject property and vicinity:
 Map and all its parts are clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 100 ft.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (b) A copy of the Planned Land Use Map of the subject property and vicinity.


Norse View Holdings LLC


2255 Tower Dr Stoughton  phone 395-4392


See attached Zoning map and preliminary CSM Map


RH and SR-  TR-6 Duplex4


X


X


X


X


X


X


(see preliminary plat map)







 (c) Written justification for the proposed text amendment
 Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed map amendment


is in harmony with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton Master
Comprehensive Plan, particularly as evidenced by compliance with the
standards set out in Section 78-903(4)(c)1.-3.


II Justification of the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Applicant Use


1. How does the proposed Official Zoning Map amendment further the purposes of the
Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 78-005 (and, for floodplains or wetlands, the
applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA))?


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


2. Which of the following has arisen that are not properly addressed in the current Official
Zoning Map? (Please provide explanation in space below.)


a) The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity
with the Comprehensive Plan.


b) A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map. (That is, an area is
developing in a manner and purpose different from that for which it is mapped.)
NOTE: If this reason is cited, it must be demonstrated that the discussed
inconsistency between actual land use and designated zoning is not intended, as the
City may intend to stop an undesirable land use pattern from spreading.


c) Factors have changed, (such as the availability of new data, the presence of new
roads or other infrastructure, additional development, annexation, or other zoning
changes), making the subject property more appropriate for a different zoning
district.


d) Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an
Amendment to the Official Zoning Map.


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


a) The current Comprehensive Plan suggests that the subject area should be rezoned from its current


classification (Rural Holding) to Residential.  With the last phase being sold out and a current waiting list
 


 


classification (Rural Holding) to Residential.    


X


The area proposed for rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (Planned Land Use Map) 


which includes neighborhood park land, multi use trail system and a mix of


single-family to duplexes.  The proposed zoning reflects this mix.  Subject property is not located


housing types ranging from 


within a mapped floodplain or wetland . The adjacent plat has a storm water retention are that was 
designed to handle and treat all storm water from this site . Sewer and water are also stubbed into the site.







3. How does the proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintain the desired
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the
environs of the subject property?


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


IV. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


Receipt of one reduced (8.5” by 11” text and 11” by 17” graphics) Date: .
copy of final application packet by Zoning Administrator


Certification of complete final application packet and Date: .
required copies to Zoning Administrator


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: .


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: .


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by Planning Staff Date: .


Class 2 legal notice published on and .


Norse View Corners is a residential development, with Twelve Duplexes within a group development.  


The zoning that the developer is requesting is consistent with the adjacent property's  


This development will provide bike/pedestrian infrastructure, public open space to adjacent developments.


The land use intensities: With adjacent Preliminary plat 3.5 dwelling units per acre. 
Site is 167,706 sqft under Duplex TR-6 Group Development 1 dwelling unit is allowed per 5,000sqft





		12a-O-21-2018 Arnetts Rezoning N. Page and Cty Hwy B - Attorney draft 6-28-18.pdf

		12b-Arnett - N. Page and Highway B - Rezoning.pdf

		rezone csm Page and B.pdf

		CSM Page and B.pdf

		ZoningMapNorseViewPageandB.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the City of Stoughton Common Council  


regarding a Certified Survey Map approval request for property located at the southeast corner of N. 


Page Street and County Highway B, City of Stoughton 


 
 
Committee 


Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Council 6 – 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-143-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, a certified survey map dated April 13, 2016 was submitted by Norse View Holdings 


LLC (the “Developer”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) for review and action on July 11, 2016; 


and  


 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission met on July 11, 2016 and considered a development proposal 


that consisted of a certified survey map and rezoning request for this location; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, with the agreement of the Applicant, tabled the CSM and 


rezoning request until additional information about the proposed development is provided by the 


Applicant; and    


 


WHEREAS, on May 19, 2018, the Applicant provided a new two-lot CSM (without the date 


changed from 4-13-2016 - the “CSM”), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A; and 


 


WHEREAS, the CSM cannot be approved as submitted due to proposed changes in easements, 


right-of-way, public land dedications; and 


 


WHEREAS, on June 11, 2018, the Plan Commission reviewed the proposed CSM and tabled 


action; and 


 


WHEREAS, after May 19, 2018, Applicant informed the City that it wished to withdraw its 


certified survey map application; and  


 


WHEREAS, The Common Council has reviewed the CSM and the Plan Commission’s 


recommendation. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby denies the CSM submitted on April 13, 2016 


and revised and submitted on May 19, 2018 (Exhibit A), due to the following: 


 


1. The applicant has requested the City remove this CSM from consideration. 


2. The CSM is missing easements that have not been properly released. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Norse View Holdings CSM Resolution-6-11-2018- updated 7-9-2018.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\7-9-18\Planning Info\Arnett CSM and Rezoning Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 9, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting, July 24, 2018 and
August 14, 2018 Common Council Meeting.


AJ Arnett of Norse View Holdings LLC requests CSM and rezoning approval for property
located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway B.
This request was tabled on July 11, 2016 and June 11, 2018 to allow the applicant to provide more
information regarding the access location on N. Page Street and to provide more specific
information how the property is to be developed. The applicant has since decided to remove the
CSM from consideration and only move forward with the rezoning request. We are currently
waiting for a letter from the applicant regarding this specific request but we have not received such
letter at the time of this draft. The Comprehensive Plan designates this area as two family
residential. There are several conditions built into the rezoning ordinance that will be discussed at
the meeting. A recommendation to Council is necessary for the rezoning. The ordinance and
related materials are provided.







            CSM Request and Zoning amendment for the corner of Page and B


Norse View Holdings LLC is requesting that two item's be considered for approval that 
was tabled on July 11, 2016. 


The CSM map is amended and shows 2 lots. The driveway access is also shown on the 
CSM. The access was moved as far south as possible per the request of the planing 
commission. This will be the only access to lots 1 and 2  


The developer is also requesting a rezone change within the CSM from SR- 4 and RH 
to TR-6 and Institutional. The city has already held a public hearing on the rezone July 
11, 2016. (no one spoke in opposition)  On July 17, 2017 the city updated the 
comprehensive plan to reflect the requested zoning change.


Lot 2 is 9,088 sqft and will have 1 dwelling unit. Tr-6 requires minimum lot size of 
7,200 sqft for single-family detached. 


Lot 1 is 158,997 sqft.  Developer is proposing 26 dwelling units. (Will require group 
development conditional use.)


The Parkland dedication for a multi use trail is 2,500 sqft (Was approved by the park 
commission 4-0 on July 20, 2016 item number 5.)  


The total sqft of the overall site is 170,585 under Tr-6 group development allows for 
one dwelling unit per 5,000 sqft The site would be eligible for 34 dwelling units. 


The developer is proposing 27 total units on the overall site. 


After the rezone and CSM lot 1 would be allowed one duplex along. Under the current 
zoning ordinance only one duplex per lot is allowed unless a conditional use is 
approved for a group development. The developer plans on submitting a request for a 
group development after the rezone is finalized. 







N
O


R
TH


  P
A
G


E  STR
EET


C
A
R
L            A


V
EN


U
E


MARIE  DRIVE
unimproved


C
SM


            # 13788


Lot 1


Lot 2


Lot 3


Lot 4


N
01°11'36"W
125.08'


Invert, 24"
RCP, Elevation
= 891.23'


storm
storm


S02°06'13"E
187 .52'


S01°16'18"E  264.24'


231.25'


N88°49'42"E
19.06'


N88°46'50"E 320.00'


N83°42'50"E88.31'


storm


North Rim of
Sanitary Manhole,
Elevation = 895.88'
Invert = 884.76'


15
6


155 154 153 152


R = 440'


R = 500'


West 1/4 Corner,
Section 32-06-11,


N88°42'10"E 846.34'


Aluminum Monument 


Planned Trail


21. 00'


14.00'


11


6


23.00'


HO


21. 00'


14.00'


11


6


23.00'


HO


56'N
14°28'27"W


   169.54'
R


 = 1366.50'


Vacate Marie Drive


Norse View Holdings LLC
2255 Tower Drive
Stoughton, Wi


M
ax w


ell Ve jvoda
401  C


TH
 B


Stormwater


Easement


33'      3
3'


2" pipe


33'        33 '
SR


-3 zoning


Sanitary Manhole
Rim = 886.64'
Invert = 875.99'


8" w
ater


26'


well


shed


N88°42'10"E 450.29'


33'


v
v


448.9'


Preliminary Plat of Arnett's 


Addition to Norse View Heights


33'


N
06°29'43"W


209.52'


112'
98'


Lot 1
3.65 acres
3.31 acres 
net


306 West Quarry Street, Deerfield, Wisconsin  53531
*


C.S.M.  No.________V._______P.______
Document No._____________________
Sheet_________of_________
Dwg. No.____________Date__________


Scale 1" = 100'


200100500


(608) 764-5602


Lots 152, 153, 154, 155, and 156 of the plat of Seventh Addition to Norse View 
Heights, together with and being part of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4
of Section 32, T.6N., R.11E., City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin


R
 = 1366.50'


pavement edge


curb


20'


Prepared for :
\


4826C-16 4/13/16
1                       1


vents


drivew
ay


20' strip to be 
dedicated for 
parkland


154.5'


pole


31'


18'


75'


9'


Lot 2
9.088
 sq. ft.


rev. 5/15/18, lot 2


Shared Access
Point for Lots 1 
and 2


46' 57'


Driveway access 
for lot 1 and 2







AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Callout

2 Story Town Homes



AJ

Callout

Single Family Lot 2



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Callout

20' Wide Private Drive



AJ

Callout

2 Story Town Home



AJ

Callout

Split Level Duplex



AJ

Callout

New driveway



AJ

Callout

10' wide one way street



AJ

Polygonal Line



AJ

Pencil



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line



AJ

Line







AJ

Text Box

Lot 1 and 2 of CSM Rezone to TR-6



AJ

Callout

      Parkland Dedication Rezone to Institutional



AJ

Polygonal Line



AJ

Callout

Area to be rezonedto TR-6 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\7-11-16\Planning Info\Arnett CSM and Rezoning Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2016


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 11, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting, July 26 and
August 9, 2016 Common Council Meeting.


AJ Arnett of Norse View Holdings LLC requests certified survey map (CSM) and rezoning
approval for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway
B. This request is the initial step for a proposed group development of 12 two-family units. A
portion of Marie Drive is proposed to be vacated and used as part of a trail system. The
Comprehensive Plan designates this area as single family residential. The Planning Commission
and Common Council can make a determination that the proposed zoning meets the intent of the
Comprehensive Plan. Staff recommends any approval be contingent on approval of the group
development and providing a statement on the CSM to not allow access to County Highway B. A
public hearing is necessary for the rezoning and recommendation to Council is necessary for the
CSM and Rezoning. The ordinance, resolution and related materials are provided.



mstacey

Text Box

ORIGINAL REQUEST







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution by the City of Stoughton Common Council
approving a Certified Survey Map for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and


County Highway B, City of Stoughton


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval – 0 with the Mayor voting.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: Date Introduced:


RECITALS


1. A certified survey map dated April 13, 2016 (the “CSM”) was submitted by Norse View
Holdings LLC (the “Developer”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) for review and action
on July 11, 2016.


2. The Plan Commission review period specified in Section 66-501(b) will expire on August 7,
2016.


3. The CSM was referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City
Council.


4. The Plan Commission has reviewed the CSM.


5. The Plan Commission determined that if certain conditions are satisfied, the CSM is
consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the
City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan.


6. The Plan Commission recommended that the CSM be approved with certain conditions. The
Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation.







RESOLUTION


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to:


• The proposed future group development must be approved.
• The CSM contains language prohibiting access to County Highway B.
• The CSM being recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy provided to the City


Department of Planning and Development.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Norse View Holdings CSM Resolution.doc











CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located southeast of the intersection
of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4
Single Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I – Institutional (see attached zoning


map)


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval – with the Mayor voting


Fiscal Impact: Increased Tax Base, Parkland and Park Facilities


File Number: O - - 2016 Date Introduced:


RECITALS


1. Norse View Heights LLC (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the zoning
classification of certain lands located southeast of the intersection of N. Page
Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton. The Applicant proposes a
single lot certified survey map (CSM) for a future proposed group development
including an area to be dedicated for parkland. A copy of Applicant’s proposed
CSM (the “CSM”) is attached as Exhibit A.


2. Applicant proposes changing the zoning classification of the lands within the
proposed CSM from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 Single Family Residential to
TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I – Institutional.


3. On July 11, 2016, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public
hearing regarding Applicant’s proposed zoning changes. The public hearing was
preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.


4. The Planning Commission found that the proposed zoning changes are consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommended that the
zoning changes be approved, subject to certain conditions.


5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning changes and the Plan
Commission’s recommendations, finds that the proposed zoning changes are
consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and finds that the
proposed zoning changes have the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and
increasing the City’s tax base.







ORDINANCE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as
follows:


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this
ordinance as if set forth in full.


Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning
classification of the lands within the CSM are changed from RH-Rural Holding and SR-4 Single
Family Residential, to the following zoning classifications:


A. Lot 1 to be zoned TR-6 Two Family Residential;


B. Public dedicated area to be zoned I - Institutional


Section 3. The changes to the zoning classifications of the lots within the CSM are
attached as Exhibit B shall not be effective until the Applicant has obtained approval of a Group
Development. The zoning classifications provided for in Section 2 shall conform to the final
configuration of lots in the recorded CSM. Approval of this ordinance does not constitute
approval of the CSM.


Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to
law.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







EXHIBIT A







EXHIBIT B


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Arnetts CSM Rezoning N. Page and Cty Hwy B.doc







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, July 11,
2016 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers,
Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to
consider a proposed rezoning request by Norse View Holdings LLC for a parcel of land located
at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway B in the City of Stoughton, Dane
County, WI. The parcel is proposed to be rezoned from RH – Rural Holding and SR-4 – Single
Family Residential to TR-6 – Two Family Residential and I - Institutional in the City of
Stoughton, Dane County, WI. A portion of the following map (Lot 1, CSM) shows the land
affected by the proposed zoning change:


For questions regarding this notice contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


The map will also be available online at www.cityofstoughton.com/planning See “Arnett’s
Addition to Norse View Heights”


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


For Publication June 16 and June 23, 2016 HUB


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Arnetts CSM Rezoning Hearing Notice (w map) 16.doc







Norse View Crossings
Written Justification for Rezone Request


The developer is requesting to rezone five single family lots that are currently zones SR-4 and one large
parcel that is currently zoned rural holdings to TR-6 duplex.  In doing so a one lot CSM map will be 
created to combine the current lots into one lot that will be zoned for duplex.


This rezone request is consistent with the comprehensive plan, which includes a neighborhood park, 
multi-use trail system and a mix of housing types.  The developer felt that this property with its close 
proximity to Highway B is more desirable for multi family housing.  


The developer met with the City’s planning commission to get their input to develop a PUD 
development consisting of 12 duplex style homes.  After further research requesting a conditional use is
more appropriate allowing 12 duplex units that would meet all the current set backs and requirements 
of TR-6 duplex zoning.  By rezoning the subject property no additional streets or city infrastructure 
improvements will be needed, lessoning the burden on the city since everything within the lot will be 
private improvements.


Along with this rezone there will be a parkland dedication to connect a multi-use trail system to the 
adjacent preliminary Norse View Heights subdivision. 







City of Stoughton Procedural Checklist for Amendment of Official Zoning
Map (Requirements per Section 78-903)


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application
to amend the Official Zoning Map and by the City to process said application. Parts II and III are
to be used by the Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - IV are to be used by the City
when processing said application.


Name of Applicant: ______________________________________________________________


Address & Phone of Applicant: _____________________________________________________


Property location for zoning change: _________________________________________________


Zoning Change Request from to ______________________________


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Meetings with Staff:


Date of Meeting: __________ Met with: .


Date of Meeting: __________ Met with: .


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: .


Application fee of received by Zoning Administrator Date: .


If necessary, reimbursement of consultant costs agreement executed: Date: .


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for City and Applicant Use


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the
Applicant shall submit an initial draft application for staff review, followed by one revised draft
final application packet based upon staff review and comments.


Date: .


Application (1 copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: .


 (a) A copy of the Current Zoning Map of the subject property and vicinity:
 Map and all its parts are clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 100 ft.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (b) A copy of the Planned Land Use Map of the subject property and vicinity.


Norse View Holdings LLC


2255 Tower Dr Stoughton  phone 395-4392


See attached Zoning map and preliminary CSM Map


RH and SR-  TR-6 Duplex4


X


X


X


X


X


X


(see preliminary plat map)







 (c) Written justification for the proposed text amendment
 Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed map amendment


is in harmony with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton Master
Comprehensive Plan, particularly as evidenced by compliance with the
standards set out in Section 78-903(4)(c)1.-3.


II Justification of the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Applicant Use


1. How does the proposed Official Zoning Map amendment further the purposes of the
Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 78-005 (and, for floodplains or wetlands, the
applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA))?


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


2. Which of the following has arisen that are not properly addressed in the current Official
Zoning Map? (Please provide explanation in space below.)


a) The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity
with the Comprehensive Plan.


b) A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map. (That is, an area is
developing in a manner and purpose different from that for which it is mapped.)
NOTE: If this reason is cited, it must be demonstrated that the discussed
inconsistency between actual land use and designated zoning is not intended, as the
City may intend to stop an undesirable land use pattern from spreading.


c) Factors have changed, (such as the availability of new data, the presence of new
roads or other infrastructure, additional development, annexation, or other zoning
changes), making the subject property more appropriate for a different zoning
district.


d) Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an
Amendment to the Official Zoning Map.


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


a) The current Comprehensive Plan suggests that the subject area should be rezoned from its current


classification (Rural Holding) to Residential.  With the last phase being sold out and a current waiting list
 


 


classification (Rural Holding) to Residential.    


X


The area proposed for rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (Planned Land Use Map) 


which includes neighborhood park land, multi use trail system and a mix of


single-family to duplexes.  The proposed zoning reflects this mix.  Subject property is not located


housing types ranging from 


within a mapped floodplain or wetland . The adjacent plat has a storm water retention are that was 
designed to handle and treat all storm water from this site . Sewer and water are also stubbed into the site.







3. How does the proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintain the desired
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the
environs of the subject property?


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


______________________________________________________________________________


IV. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


Receipt of one reduced (8.5” by 11” text and 11” by 17” graphics) Date: .
copy of final application packet by Zoning Administrator


Certification of complete final application packet and Date: .
required copies to Zoning Administrator


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: .


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: .


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by Planning Staff Date: .


Class 2 legal notice published on and .


Norse View Corners is a residential development, with Twelve Duplexes within a group development.  


The zoning that the developer is requesting is consistent with the adjacent property's  


This development will provide bike/pedestrian infrastructure, public open space to adjacent developments.


The land use intensities: With adjacent Preliminary plat 3.5 dwelling units per acre. 
Site is 167,706 sqft under Duplex TR-6 Group Development 1 dwelling unit is allowed per 5,000sqft





		13a-Norse View Holdings CSM Resolution-6-11-2018- updated 7-9-2018.pdf

		13b-Arnett - N. Page and Highway B - CSM.pdf

		rezone csm Page and B.pdf

		CSM Page and B.pdf

		ZoningMapNorseViewPageandB.pdf








 
CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
To accept the Turf Management Plan draft changes as policy for managing City of Stoughton green 


spaces utilizing the practices and procedures therein.   
 
Committee 


Action: 


 
Approved 8-0 by both the Public Works and Park and Recreation Committee’s 


 
Fiscal Impact: $0  
 
File Number: 


 
R-144-2018 


 
Date 


Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has incorporated Integrated Pest Management (IPM) 


practices into the management of city owned turf; and 


 


WHEREAS, the current Turf Management Plan has been revised to reflect the changes in 


practices and procedures and shall be the policy of the City of Stoughton to follow the practices 


and procedures therein; and 


 


 WHEREAS, both the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Committee’s met on July 17, 2018 


as part of a joint meeting to consider the proposed changes to the current plan and recommend 


adoption of the revised language and creating the Turf Management Policy to reflect the practices 


and procedures that are currently carried out by the Public Works Department; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the revisions to the 


Turf Management plan be adopted as policy as recommended by both the Public Works and Parks 


and Recreation Committee’s. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 







 


 
City of Stoughton 


 
TITLE: Turf ManagementPolicy  
 


 
POLICY SOURCE: 
Streets, Parks & Recreation 
Department of Public Works 


 
DATE APPROVED BY COMMON 
COUNCIL: 
July 23, 2013 
 


 
REVISION DATE: 
 
July 24, 2018 


 


I. Purpose 
 
It is the purpose of this policy to define turf management procedures and processes for the 
cultivation of turf in City parks and other City of Stoughton properties maintained by the Streets 
& Parks Department of Public Works (DPW).   


 
II. Policy 
 


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton Streets & Parks DPW to responsibly manage the turf for 
all turf managementCity properties based on their type of use, environmental factors and most 
importantly the health of our users. 
 
The City of Stoughton DPW shall utilize Integrated Pest Management (IPM) techniques to manage 
the turf in all parks and properties maintained by the City.   
  


 
III. Definitions 


 
Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is a science-based decision-making process that 


identifies and reduces risks from pests and pest management related strategies. IPM 


coordinates the use of pest biology, environmental information, and available technology to 


prevent unacceptable levels of pest damage by the most economical means, while 


minimizing risk to people, property, resources, and the environment. IPM provides an 


effective strategy for managing pests in all arenas from developed agricultural, residential, 


and public lands to natural and wilderness areas. IPM provides an effective, all 


encompassing, low-risk approach to protect resources and people from pests.  
 
Weeds – a plant species that is determined to be undesirable for a variety of reasons, 
including but not limited to: safety, human health hazards, ecological integrity, and 
aesthetic value.Pesticides - chemicals used to control pests, including weeds (epa.gov).  The 


term pesticides includes, but is not limited to, the following: herbicide, insecticide, animal 


repellant, fungicide, and sanitizer.  
Herbicides - chemicals used to eradicate plants such as weeds and grasses. 







Selective Herbicides - chemicals designed to eradicate specific plants, such as broad leaf 
weeds, while not harming the other plant species that share common turf areas.   
 
Non-selective herbicides -chemicals designed to eradicate all “green” plant life.   
 
Slow-release fertilizer – fertilizer formulated to release its nutrients over a 2-3 month 
period of time.   
 
Fast-release fertilizer - formulated to release its nutrients quickly.  This quick release of 
nutrients provides immediate nutrients to the turf. 
Category “A” Areas- parks, recreation facilities and other City properties that will have a 
15% or less tolerance for weeds.  These areas include athletic fields where quality turf is 
critical to player safety or turf areas around facilities that receive high public use or visibility.  
These areas are maintained with a finish mower. 
 
Category “B” Areas - parks, recreation facilities and other City properties that will have a 
16-30% tolerance for weeds.  Included in this category are areas where turf quality and 
appearance is important, but not critical.  These areas are maintained with a wide area 
mower and/or finish mower. 
 
Category “C” Areas – natural or native areas that will have a tolerance for weeds not 
greater than 50%.  Included in this category are prairies, woodlands, wetlands and other 
native areas.  Exceptions to the 50% tolerance may be used when performing a restoration 
project or if managing invasive species.  Alternative methods to treatment other than the 
use of pesticides will be given preference in this category.  For example, a prescribed burn 
or turf aeration and over seeding techniques would be used in lieu of herbicide treatment.  
 
Hard Surface Areas - sidewalks/walkways, trails, parking lots, tennis courts, basketball 
courts, etc. in parks or on other City property the DPW maintains.  
Properly trained staff - employee(s) or contractor(s) who has obtained the proper 
application certification or license where applicable, and has been trained on the proper use 
of the products being used according to the product Safety Data Sheet (SDS) to manage turf 
within the City. 
 
 
Pesticide Free Park(s) - In an effort to provide pesticide-free areas to the public, the city will 
make ongoing efforts to designate and maintain at least one or more parks free of 
pesticides.  Even though the designated park is deemed pesticide free, city staff will still 
make every effort to keep the park within the designated weed tolerance within the 
category for which the park is placed by using alternative methods other than the use of 
pesticides.     


 
IV. Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Practices 
  







It shall be the practice of the City of Stoughton to utilize IPM to manage its turf on City owned 
lands.  Under this policy, the most natural and environmentally sensitive actions will be taken 
to control weeds and other pests on an ongoing basis wherever economically feasible.  When 
the percentage of the overall turf in a designated area has exceeded or is likely to exceed 
acceptable limits, pesticides may be introduced in the most sparing, economic and safest way 
possible.  Any mitigative action taken will be designed to target the specific troublesome pest 
and aim to limit the impact to human health and the environment.   
 
Tenants of the IPM Program: 


1. Pest identification 


2. Monitoring and assessing pest numbers and damage 


3. Establishing guidelines for when management action is needed 


4. Preventing pest problems 


5. Using a combination of biological, cultural, physical/mechanical and chemical 


management tools 


6. After action is taken, staff will assess the effectiveness of pest management. 


 
 
V. Practices and Procedures 


 
1. Data Acquisition - City staff shall perform weed assessments before and after applying 


any turf treatments to determine the proper turf application and the efficacy of the 
prescribed treatment.  The assessment should identify the location of the weed 
assessment, the types of weeds that were identified, the percentage of weeds that were 
identified within the assessment grid, and indicate the type of treatment needed. 
 
 


2. Record Keeping - The City shall document all weed assessment results, pesticide 
application data, non-pesticide treatment data, any complaints received and make this 
information available to the public. 
 


3. Turf Management Categories - City staff shall provide IPM turf management practices to 
each individual city green space based on the level of service required to meet the weed 
pressure threshold indicated in Appendix A.   
  
 


4. Pesticide Application - The controlled use of selective and non-selective pesticides shall 
be applied using the following practices and procedures. 


A. Whenever the use of pesticides is necessary, City staff shall make every effort 
to select a pesticide that provides the least amount of risk to human health, 
local ecosystems and the environment, while factoring in cost and 
effectiveness. 







B. Notification – It shall the be the responsibility of the Director of Public Works 
or their designee to inform the public of all pesticide treatment dates 
utilizing the City of Stoughton web site, social media pages and an email shall 
be sent to recreation league user groups a minimum of 14 day prior to 
application. If a treatment is forced to be reschedule due to inclement 
weather, the Public Works Department will repost the new dates on the city 
website, social media and notify direct user groups of rescheduled treatment 
dates.  City staff shall make every effort possible to accommodate user 
groups practice and game schedules.   


C. The application of pesticides will only be considered when the quality of turf 
for an area does not meet the established standards and all other methods 
to improve the turf quality are ineffective or cost prohibitive. 


D. Employee(s) or contractor(s) shall poses the proper application certification 
or licenses where applicable, and must be trained on the proper use of the 
products Safety Data Sheet (SDS) before application onto turf within the 
City..  


E. The applicator shall follow all application rates and wear all personal 
protective equipment required by the product label and Safety Data Sheet. . 


F. Spray patterns for non-selective herbicides will not exceed 6” around any 
object or on either side of a fence line except for softball/baseball field 
warning tracks. 


G. Herbicide applications for broadleaf control will be applied in early spring 
and/or early fall with a systemic herbicide which shall be absorbed into the 
plant within 24 hours.   


H. No athletic field use will be permitted or scheduled for a minimum of 48 
hours, unless otherwise stated by the product manufacturer, post turf 
treatment with any pesticide. 


I. Pesticides will not be used on hard surfaces in close proximity to storm 
sewers systems. 


J. Spot application as opposed to broadcast application will be used whenever 
feasible based on weed assessment data. 


K. Caution shall be used when applying pesticides along waterways, 
playgrounds, sports courts, etc and applied according to the product label or 
manufacturers recommended setback or buffer zone requirements. 


 
5. Fertilizer Application - The controlled use of selected fertilizers shall be applied using the 


following practices and procedures.  
A. Fertilizers will be used when establishing or re-establishing new turf areas 


(sodding may be suggested more frequently). 
B. Fertilizers shall not be applied within the required setback or buffer zone of 


any waterway or water conveyance system as indicated on the product label.   
C. The amount of fertilizer applied to parks, athletic fields or other City 


properties will be determined by soil testing results, standards identified in 
Wisconsin DNR Technical Standard #1100 and the product label. . 







D. Fertilizers will be swept off or removed from paved areas. 
E.   
F. Fertilizers will be applied in the spring and/or fall depending on turf 


conditions unless additional fertilizer treatments are required when 
rehabbing an existing turf area or initiating a grow-in program for new turf.  


 
6. Other - general turf management practices and procedures: 


A. Preference will be given to non-chemical means of controlling turf growth 
around all city trees, posts, fences, or structures by utilizing mulch or other 
landscape bedding material. 


B. . 
C. All mowing equipment shall be calibrated to not cut the grass below 3”.  The 


Parks Maintenance Supervisor may exceed this threshold on athletic fields as 
determined by the type of use. 


D. It shall be the goal of the city to aerate twice yearly as time permits with 
preference given to athletic fields due to player safety  


E. Over seeding green spacesas needed in the spring or early fall.  
F. Collaboration with other local turf managers, utilizing IPM practices, should 


be sought to provide a more cohesive community wide approach to turf 
management and to look at ways to share resources.   


G. The Contractor will post the area every 75’. In addition to the 4”x5” 
Contractor required notification signs, The City of Stoughton Public Works 
Department will also post 9”x12” application warning signs in strategic 
locations throughout the park that are visible to potential users.  Signs shall 
be placed behind the sidewalk so they are visible to pedestrians. (See 
attachment for example) 


H. All contracted applicators shall be provided a copy of this policy and a pre 
spray meeting shall be scheduled to review the policies and procedures of 
this document.  


 
7. All hard surface areas will have a Category A classification if the following conditions 


exist:   
A. Undesirable weeds that grow in cracks can create an unsafe surface for 


users. 
B. Untreated weeds in hard surface cracks can lead to surface damage and 


follow-up repair. 
C. Public exposure to spot herbicide treatment is typically very minimal, usually 


limited to footwear.            
       Appendix A 


 
City of Stoughton Public Works Department  


 
Classifications of Parks and Other City Properties 


 







Category  A (15% or Less Weed Pressure) 
       


 Athletic Fields In City Parks 


 Business Park Entrance 


 City Hall/Fire Department/Public 
Safety 


  


  


 Rotary Park 


 Senior Center 
 


  
Category B (16-30% Weed Pressure) 


 Amundson Park (Disc Golf 
Course) 


 Bjoin Park 


 Chamber of Commerce 


 Circle Hair Lot 


 Criddle Park 


 Dunkirk Park 


 Division St Park 


 East Park 


 Fourth St Dam 


 Fourth/Main St Parking Lot 


 Library Parking lot  


 Lowell Park 


 Mandt Park 


 Nordic Ridge Park 


 Norse Park 


 North Parking Lot 


 Nottingham Lot 


 Page St/Williams Drive Lot 


 Public Works Facility 


 Racetrack Park 


 Riverside Cemetery 


 Riverside Park 


 Schefelker Park 


 Sixth St Parking Lot 


 South Parking Lot 


 Troll Beach 


 Veterans Park (Pesticide Free) 


 Virgin Lake Park 


 Virgin Lake Trail 


 West St Lot 







 Westview Ridge Park 


 Wheeler Prairie Cemetery  


 Yahara River Trail 


 Youth Center 
 


 
Category C (Weed Pressure Not Greater Than 50%) 


 Academy St Rail Bank 


 Amundson Park Prairie 


 Dunkirk Ave Rail Bank 


 Fourth/Chicago St Lot 


 Greenways and Storm Water Passages 


 Lowell Park Community Garden 


 Ridge St  


 Schefelker Prairie 


 Viaduct Park Row 
 
 


 
 







 







 







 
Joint Meeting of the Public Works & Parks/Recreation Committees Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, July 17, 2018 
Fire Station Training Room – 401 E Main St. 
 
Members Present:  Public Works Committee Members Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma,  Matt 


Bartlett,  Lisa Reeves, Planning Director Rodney Scheel, and Public Works Director, Brett Hebert.  Parks & 


Recreation Committee Members Alderpersons Denise Duranczyk, Phil Carravello, Regina Hirsch, and Nicole 


Wiessinger, Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn and Mayor Tim Swadley 


Absent/Excused:    


Guests:   Parks Maintenance Supervisor Patrick Groom, Melissa Huston, David Bittrick, Peggy Veregin, Emily 


Barr and John Morgan 


Call to Order:   


1) Communications - None 


New Business 


2) Discussion and Possible Approval of the Draft Update to the City Turf Maintenance Policy:   


Hebert presented a power point of the city’s current Integrating Pest Management Program (IPM) for 
turf management.  For the last two years Public Works and Parks Maintenance has continually worked 
on improving the policy.   


Weed assessments are done in the spring with a 3 X 3 grid placed randomly in different segments of 
the parks. At that time it is determined, after identifying weed types, what the proper course of treatment 
will be - not just a blanket treatment of every park - some areas may not need a treatment at all, others 
spot treatments or no treatment just fertilized.  The plan has three categories – Class A (< than 15%), B 
(16-30%), C (31-50%) the minimum standards for weeds for the parks. The parks in the city are listed 
under their current categories. 


The city has adopted Veterans Memorial Park as free park where no treatments are done ever. 


Selective herbicide are used for treatments which are done twice a year - one in the spring for 
crabgrass, clover & chickweed and in the fall for dandelions. The city consults with FS Insight for 
assessment, soil sampling and completion of the treatments. 


Park maintenance crews also do soil treatments, aerating and over seeding twice a year to improve the 
turf in parks. Parks are mowed at 3” and in different directions each time they are mow. 
 
The city notifies by the following methods: 


 Email 14 days prior to application to Rec League User Groups, City Council and Leadership 
Team 


 Facebook posting 14 days prior to application 


 City Website  


 Signage – contractor posts every 75’ and city posts additional signs to fill in gaps 
 
Reeves asked how to handle residents who reach out to their alderperson regarding concerns or have 
questions on the turf treatment of the parks or making the park treatment free – Hebert suggested 
having them contact him at the Public Works Dept. 
 
Majewski stated that the parks are a city asset and the residents who live next the park need to be 
more reasonable about what the city needs to do to keep the parks looking nice. 
 
Parks Maintenance Supervisor, Patrick Groom, is working on a mapping system that will contain 
information on each park and areas within that park on how they were treated. 







 
Duranczyk stated how much time was involved to develop the policy as this request was started in 2013 
at which time Sustainable Stoughton pushed for a policy.  Hirsch thanked Sarah Downey and Sylvia 
Lawrence for their efforts.  When she was in the field with FS Insight on 2018 spring assessments he 
stated the Stoughton was the lead in this area and other communities are following the city plan. 
 
A question of concern came up regarding shelter reservations and if park is sprayed – but the parks are 
usually treated before the shelters are open for the season.  If it should happen, Groom would 
coordinate with Glynn to not rent the park out for a designated amount of time. 
 
After the policy was reviewed, the wording and formatting requested changes will be made. 
 
Request from Carravello wants to know what the %’s for weeds were in the parks when the policy was 
first initiated in 2013 or how were they originated – are they industry standards?  A member suggested 
that we work with the school district as they use the same company as the city which would save 
money when purchasing product as it’s less expensive when purchasing in bulk. 
 
 
Motion by Duranczyk, seconded by Hirsch to recommend to the Common Council to accept the 
amended City Turf Management Policy after discussed changes are made.  Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 
 


3) Discussion on the Progress of Riverside Park Improvements:  Hebert stated for the 1 ½ years 


crews have been working in Riverside Park to improve the aesthetic look and function by defining the 


walk path, seeding, new bench installed, removing & trimming trees and stump removal.  


 


In the future a parking lot will be completed south of Riverside Dr. where seeding/mulching will be done 


around the parking area and split rail fence installed.  Signs will be installed for no driving in the park – 


city use only. A resident attending the meeting asked how many parking stalls there would be in the lot 


and stated that the area is well used for walking, fishing ,etc. but cars drive fast on Riverside Dr and 


feels no one should be parking on the street. Hebert stated there will be four stalls in the lot.  


 


4) Future Agenda Items:  None. 


Moved by Majewski, seconded by Reeves to adjourn meeting at 7:05 pm.  Motion carried 8-0.  





		14a-R-143-2018 Turf Management Policy - Resolution.pdf

		14b-.pdf

		14c-Joint PW - Parks & Rec 7-17-18 min.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Norcon 


Corporation to perform bridge rehabilitation work on four bridges within the City of Stoughton. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
Public Works Committee Approved 4-0 


  


 
Fiscal Impact:  $72,422.00 from the Preventative Maintenance Fund 


 
File Number: 


 
R-145-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton received three (3) competitive bids to perform preventative bridge 


maintenance on the Forton St, Main St and both Fourth St bridges; and 


 


WHEREAS, Strand and Associates, the City’s contracted engineering firm, along with City staff has 


reviewed the bids received and recommends awarding the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, 


Norcon Corporation, in the amount of  $72,422.00; and   


 


WHEREAS, the bid amount is within the projected project cost estimate and within the budget amount 


in the 2018 Preventative Maintenance Budget; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Norcon Corporation for $72,422.00 


contingent upon approval as to form be the City Attorney. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 























 


 


Public Works Committee  
Tuesday, May 17, 2018 @ 7:15 PM 
Fire Station, Community Room, 401 E Main St 
 
Members Present:  Alderpersons Sid Boersma, Lisa Reeves, Tom Majewski and Matt Bartlett 


Absent/Excused:   


Staff:  Mayor Swadley, Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel and 
Vickie Erdahl 


Guests:   
 
Call to Order:  Bartlett called the meeting to order 


1) Communications:   Hebert stated 1) Dave Juve is retiring on September 7, 2018.  Human 
Resources is posting the position now 2) 229 trees were planted this spring in parkrows and 
parks. 


Old Business: 


2) Public Works Facility Update:  Scheel stated that the pre-cast panels were installed and in 
the next 30 days the metal roof will be installed.  The retaining wall has been installed. Paving 
will be done in the fall.  Only one change order has been made in the amount of $1,600.  Next 
month the utilities will be installed. The contractors stated the building will be finished by late 
December for move-in. 


 


3) Reports:   Erdahl stated that street opening permits are about the average amount for this 
time of the year.  Yard Waste permits are above of the normal amount sold for the first three 
months.  Hebert stated brush will be grinded next week.  


Several committee members stated that they are receiving calls regarding the yard waste site 
for 2019 – will it be @ the Public Works Dept., will fees be charged, concerns about the 
wetland area and how the site will be used. Hebert stated that the Public Works Dept. is 
working with their consulting engineer on permitting and site preparation.  The Public Works 
Dept would like to start using the site in the fall by city staff for leaves.  The plan for the 
general public will be brought back to the Public Works Committee for future consideration 
once a timeline for the site has been set. 


Request to place this issue as a future agenda item. 


At this time a discussion started on road construction – Scheel stated that there is construction 
on Academy (East St to Veterans Rd), East St and Vernon St (Academy to Kristi).  Comments 
were made that Gjertson St and wall looked nice and questions arose regarding the costs for 
curb/gutter, sidewalk and retaining walls future assessments. 


Request to place this issue as a future agenda item. 


 


New Business: 


 


4)    Approve May 17, 2018 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Boersma, seconded by Reeves to 
approve the minutes.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 







 


 


5)    Discussion and Approval to Award the 2018 Bridge Rehabilitation Contract to the 
Lowest Responsible Bidder, Norcon Corporation:  Hebert stated that the bridges were 
previously inspected in 2016 by a third party inspector hired by WisDOT.  The inspection 
results received in 2017 stated several preventative maintenance repairs that needed to be 
taken to the following bridges – Forton St (over Yahara River), 4th St (over Mill Race), 4th St 
(over Yahara River) and USH 51 (over Yahara River).  Bids were received from three 
companies – Norcon Corporation, Joe Daniels Construction Co., LLC and Zenith Tech, Inc. 
Hebert suggested accepting the low bid of $72,422 from Norcon Corporation as recommended 
by our consulting engineer firm, Strand and Associates. 


 Majewski inquired about the status of the Pedestrian Bridge. This bridge is currently slated for 
rehabilitation in the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan and the details of the bridge construction 
would be brought back for the committee to consider at a later date in 2019. 


  


 Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Boersma to recommend to the Common Council to 
award the bid in the amount of $ 72,422.00 to Norcon Corporation for the 2018 Bridge 
Rehabilitation.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 


6) Discussion on the Use of Traffic Calming Devices:  Majewski stated that he received calls 
from constituents on Academy St regarding traffic speed.  Majewski stated that the city has 
few traffic calming measures and would like this issue looked into and discussed /considered 
when road construction projects are being planned. Majewski mentioned that there have been 
previous discussion with Public Safety regarding this issue.  Scheel stated that this issue is 
definitely discussed with new road construction several roads have been narrowed to 
accommodate speed issues and that each street needs to be managed differently, evaluated 
and a determination made on what are the safety factors involved. 


 The residents on Academy St have requested speed limit signs be placed at this time and 
reviewed at a later date if not effective. 


 


7) Discussion on the Minimum Maintenance Standards for Publicly Owned Property:  
Bartlett stated the minimum maintenance should have been for privately owned property, not 
public.  Scheel addressed this issue stating there is a model from the Village of Oregon that is 
being reviewed to adopt for Stoughton to have a Minimum Maintenance Standard. Another 
consideration – is there enough staff to enforce the rules? 


 Reeves requested we also look at having a fee for rental properties. 


 Majewski stated to be mindful of the historic district when adopting these maintenance 
standards, 


 This issue is being placed on the August agenda. 


  


8) Recap of the Stormwater Quality Management Plan Presentation: Scheel emphasized 
that we need to continually improve on our methods to meet the requirements of the 
stormwater permit. The city already has a robust leaf collection and street sweeping program.  
Modifications to street sweeping frequency has already been changed from once a month to 
twice a month for sweeping the entire city.  Scheel stated he received a grant for the Bio- 
Swale to a Wet Detention Basin Conversion on East St. 


 


9) Nordic Ridge – Release of (Stormwater Management) Easements:   Scheel stated that 
Nordic Ridge was originally platted in 2009 with stormwater a management easements on 
Lots 134 through 137 based on designs at that time. There are different standards in place for 
2018, therefore the stormwater management easements designs need to be modified.  The 







 


 


changes to the design requires modifying the configurations on the lots.  Scheel is requesting 
to follow the process necessary is to release the easements as originally platted and record 
new documents that implement the revised configuration on these lots. 


 Motion by Boersma, seconded by Reeves to recommend to the Common Council to 
approve the release and re-establishment of Stormwater Management Easements for 
Lots 134 – 137 in the Nordic Ridge Plat, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.  
Motion carried 5-0 (with the Mayor voting yes). 


    


10) Future Agenda Items:  EAB Update, City Pool, Rules when parking lots are re-designed, 
Commercial Properties –vegetation issues, Curb/gutter, sidewalk and retaining walls costs, 
Ordinance – detention ponds, Yard Waste Site, Minimal Maintenance Standards - Rental 
Property Fees & Policy, 


 


 Moved by Boersma seconded by Reeves to adjourn the meeting at 8:26 pm.  Motion 
carried 4-0.  Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant –. 7/18/18 





		15a-R-145-2018 Bridge Rehab Resolution.pdf

		15b-Bid Tabulation_Stoughton Bridge Rehabs.pdf

		15c-PW Min July 17, 2018.pdf






 
CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
To accept the Cemetery and Cemetery Board Rules draft changes as reviewed and approved 


by the Cemetery Board.   
 
Committee Action: 


 
Approved 5-0 by the Cemetery Board  


 
Fiscal Impact: $0  
 
File Number: 


 
R-146-2018  


 
Date 


Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the Cemetery Board met on June 18, 2018 and reviewed draft changes to the 


Cemetery Rules and the Rules that govern the Cemetery Board; and 


 


WHEREAS, the rule changes were primarily drafted to separate out the responsibilities of 


the Cemetery Board from the current Cemetery Rules; and 


 


 WHEREAS, formatting and other minor changes were made to the existing Cemetery 


Rules to reflect the wishes of the Cemetery Board; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the revisions 


to the Cemetery Rules be adopted as recommended by the Cemetery Board. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 


City of Stoughton 
CEMETERY RULES & RESPONSIBILITIES 


Approved July 24, 2018 


  
 


Section 1:  Lot/Grave Owners are Responsible For:  
 


1. Purchase and installation of all markers, monuments, and their 
foundations.  
 


2. Payment of all fees prior to any service performed by the city.  
 


3. An understanding of the cemetery rules and regulations.  
 


4.  Maintenance of cemetery markers and monuments according to 
satisfactory standards.  
 


5. Replacement of monuments, markers, or foundations due to condition.  
 


6. Placement and removal of cemetery decorations within the defined 
locations at the grave site.  
 


7. Removal of flowers when they wilt and become unsightly as written in in 
the Section 9.  
 


8. Removal of decorations for the annual spring and fall clean-up.  
 


9. Placement of artificial, cut flower arrangements, and plants in approved 
containers.  
 


10. Removal of vases and urns which have been abandoned for three (3) 
consecutive years or are in disrepair.  
 
 
 


 


Section 2:  The City is Responsible For:  
 
1. Monitoring and enforcement of cemetery rules and regulations.  
 


2. Recording and maintenance of all cemetery records.  The records to 
include the name(s) of the purchaser(s), date of sale, and amount received 
for each lot.  The cemetery office will also keep a record of all interments, 
stating the name, age, and date of death of the person buried.  







 


3. Provision of regular business hours at the Department of Public Works 
office.  
 


4. Sale of lots and graves.  
 


5. Preparation of all grave sites for interment.  
 


6. General care of the grounds and grave lots.  
 


7. Grass mowing and trimming of the grounds and grave spaces.  
 


8. Maintenance of the cemetery roads and water system.  
 


9.  Leveling and re-seeding of sunken graves and markers.  
 


10. Planting and care of common trees and shrubs.  
 


11. Regular inspections of the cemeteries to assure that graves are 
maintained in good condition.  
 


12. Removal of cemetery decorations which do not conform to the cemetery 
rules and regulations.  
 


 


Section 3:  Lot and Single Grave Sales  


 


1. Lot and single grave spaces are sold on a first come, first serve 
basis.  Payment must be made in full.  
 


2. Lot owners are encouraged to designate the individual grave spaces at the 
time of purchase.  
 


3. Purchasers of lots or grave spaces acquire the right and privilege of burial 
and erection of monuments and grave markers subject to the conditions and 
rules now in force, or which may hereafter be enacted by the City of 
Stoughton.  
 


4. The number of graves and interments permitted on any one lot is 
determined by the lot size.  Lots may be purchased in increments of 5 or 6 
grave spaces.  Dimensions of each individual space are 4' x 10'.  
 


5. Ownership of the cemetery lots or grave spaces shall descend to the 
owner's heirs; but any-one or more such heirs may convey to any other heir 
his or her interest in the cemetery lot. (Wisconsin Statute 157.10)  
 
 
Section 4:  Resale of Lots  
 
1. In all cases where a lot, or any part thereof, is transferred from one owner 







to another, a properly executed deed must be presented to the Director of 
Public Works or their designee for record before an interment can be made by 
the owner.  
 
2. Deed transfer is typically facilitated by a quitclaim deed.  The deed is given 
by the owner of record to a subsequent purchaser.  A quitclaim deed does not 
guarantee clear title to the property.  The deed transfers the grantors interest 
in the property, whatever that may be.  It is up to the buyer to determine 
whether anyone else may have an interest in the property.  Buyers are 
encouraged to get the original deed from the grantor when purchasing the 
property.  
 
3. A grave transfer fee, which is published in the cemetery fee schedule, is 
due upon recording at the Department of Public Works.  This fee includes 
recording the property transfer.  In the instance of an estate, a properly 
executed "affidavit for transfer of property" shall cause the transfer and 
recording.   
 
 
Section 5:  Perpetual Care  
 
1. Perpetual care fees are included with the purchase of all cemetery lots or 
graves. 
 
2. Perpetual care services performed by the city include grass mowing and 
trimming, road maintenance, and leveling and re-seeding of sunken graves 
and markers.  
 
3. Perpetual care does not include repair or replacement of markers, 
monuments, and foundations.  
 
4. The City Finance Director serves as ex-officio commissioner of the 
perpetual care trust fund.  
 
 
Section 6:  Interments  
 
1. To open a grave, the person ordering the same must contact the 
Department of Public Works with the request.  
 
2. Notice of impending burial must be given to the Department of Public 
Works no less than three (3) business days from the date of burial. For 
example, a Monday burial at 10:00 AM would require notice by 10:00 AM the 
previous Wednesday.  Exceptions may be granted by the Director of Public 
Works.  
 







3. No interments shall be allowed until the space, perpetual care, and 
opening/closing costs have been paid.  All graves will be prepared by the City 
of their contractor.  
 
4. No person, except someone acting under direction of the City, shall dig any 
grave within a cemetery owned and operated by the city.  
 
5. Funeral homes must be licensed by the state of origin and provide final 
disposition on out of state burial transit permits.  
 
6. Size of the grave shall be at least five feet deep for an adult and four feet 
deep for a child.  
 
7. No human remains may be buried in a cemetery lot except the human 
remains of one having interest in the cemetery lot, or a relative, except by 
consent of all persons having an interest in the cemetery lot (Wisconsin 
Statutes 157.11).  
 
8. All interments in lots shall be restricted to persons designated by the lot 
owner.  If an order is presented for the interment of a person not a member of 
the immediate family, written authorization from the lot owner must be filed 
with the Cemetery Office.  
 
9. Interment of two full burials in one grave will not be allowed except in case 
of parent and infant, twin infants (up to 12 months).  Internment of four (4) 
cremains in one grave will be allowed where there is no full burial.  Internment 
of three (3) cremains and one conventional burial is allowed.  An additional 
grave space fee will apply in cases of multiple interments within the same 
grave space.  Only one marker per grave space is allowed.  
 
 
 
Section 7:  Disinterment  
 
1. No removal of a body from the cemetery shall be made except by written 
approval of the City, and presentation of a legal permit granted by the County 
Coroner and the approval of the grave owner or next of kin.  No disinterment 
shall be allowed without following all applicable State Statutes.  
 
2. The City is not responsible for any damages to the vault as a result of 
disinterment.  A disclaimer must be signed in advance by the lot owner or 
next of kin. 
3.  All applicable fees must be paid in advance by the permit holder.  
 
 
Section 8:  Vaults  







 
1. All burials, except cremains or infant burials must be in a steel or concrete 
vault.  
 
2. The handling and sealing of vaults must be performed by a skilled 
professional contracted by the City.  
 
3. Cremains must be placed in a non-biodegradable container; however, no 
vault is required.  
 
 
Section 9:  Decorating Gravesites  
 
1.  No plants, including annual flowers, perennials, shrubs, and trees can be 
planted in the ground.  
 
2. No digging or fertilization of the grave spaces. 
 
3. The following decorations are not permitted unless authorized by the 
Director of Public Works: toys, mementos, figurines, lighting, border edging, 
fencing, benches, rocks, gravel, bricks, and mulch. 
 
4. Trees and shrubs are prohibited within the grave spaces. 
 
5. All shepherds’ hooks must be placed as close as possible to the left or right 
side of the marker.  The basket must hang over the marker as not to 
encroach over adjacent grave sites. 
 
6. No standing easels, except for holiday wreaths, are allowed. 
 
7. No decorations can infringe upon the adjacent grave space(s). 
 
8. Urns and vases must be placed next to either side of the cemetery marker 
and within the protected marker row. 
 
9. Artificial flowers should be in good taste and of a construction which will not 
deteriorate in the elements. 
 
10. Fresh cut flowers should be removed by lot owners when they wilt and 
become unsightly.  All funeral flowers left at the grave shall be removed from 
the cemetery when they start to deteriorate. 
 
11. Fresh flower arrangements and artificial flowers must be put in durable 
containers.  Glass, china, or other fragile vases are not permitted. 
 
12. Styrofoam constructed decorations and vases are prohibited. 







 
13. Annual flowers and perennials must be planted in urns or vases 
constructed of granite, dark marble, cement, cast iron, or durable plastic. 
 
14. All urns and vases must be kept in good condition.  Iron vases must be 
properly painted.  Broken or unpainted vases will be removed by the City. 
 
15. Vases or urns that are not planted for three consecutive years will be 
removed and disposed of by the City. 
 
16. Prohibited plants including rose bushes, Irises, Lilies of the Valley, and 
perennials that have thorns or require special care. 
 
17. Grave blankets are prohibited. 
 
18. The City is not responsible for the damage or theft of any items placed on 
a grave site. 
 
19. Waste receptacles are provided for the deposition of waste, litter, weeds, 
decayed flowers, and plants. 
 
20. All unauthorized decorations will be removed and discarded without 
notice.  The City is not responsible for these items. 
 
21. The City has the right to remove or trim any tree or shrub situated on any 
grave which becomes, by means of its roots, branches, condition or in any 
other respect, detrimental to the adjacent lots, roads, or general appearance 
of the grounds.  Trees or shrubs may also be removed or trimmed which 
restrict access to grave sites for burial purposes. 
 
22. The City has the right to remove any plants that are planted in the ground 
or landscape decorations which do not conform to the cemetery rules and 
regulations. 
 
23.  Spring Cleanup – All decorations must be removed no later than April 1st.  
24. Fall Cleanup – All artificial or annual flowers must, containers etc. must be 
removed by October 1st.   
25. The City is NOT responsible for reimbursement for any plants or 
decorations removed by cemetery staff or damage by the maintenance crews. 
  
 
 
Section 10:  Monuments and Markers 
 
1. Lot owners are encouraged to contact the Cemetery Office regarding 
procedures prior to ordering or setting of any marker or monument. 







 
2. All gravesites require a cemetery marker within one year of burial. 
 
3. For reasons of uniformity, only those markers and monuments authorized 
by the city shall be permanently placed on any gravesite. 
 
4. All private contractors performing marker and monument work within the 
cemeteries must be pre-approved by the City. 
 
5. All lot or grave fees must be paid before any placement of markers. 
 
6. Installation of markers by private contractors requires notice of at least 
three (3) business days’ notice. 
 
7. Only one marker is allowed at each grave. 
 
8. No single marker shall be more than 24" or less than 8" in width, and must 
be of one-piece construction. 
 
9. Single markers for future interments may be installed. 
 
10. Double markers are permitted where adjacent grave sites are owned by 
the same person. 
 
11. Double bases are allowed only on a case by case basis; i.e., both graves 
occupied and/or no monument on the lot. 
 
12. No triple markers allowed. 
 
13. Marker bases are made of concrete and are a minimum of 2" wider than 
the marker on all sides and 3-4" thick. 
 
14. No monument or marker, and no portion of any vault or tomb which is 
above ground level, shall be constructed of limestone, or any artificial 
material. 
 
15. All markers on the lot should be in a straight line, and parallel to the 
boundary line of the lot. 
 
16. Any stone more than twelve inches thick will be considered a monument. 
 
17. A minimum of 4 lots are required for a monument. 
 
18. No monument shall be higher than five feet above ground level and in no 
case shall the foundation of the monument be constructed closer than six 
inches from the lot line. 







 
19. Monuments are constructed of two pieces of granite a "Base" and a 
"Die".  The base has a minimum requirement of 24" x 12" x 6" (L x W x 
H).  The die or top shall not be over 5' in height and shall not exceed the 
length or width of the base.  No vertical joints are allowed in the monuments. 
 
20. Monument foundations must be at least as large as the bottom base, or 
first masonry course above the ground.  The City reserves the right to require 
a large foundation when the weight of the structure demands it. Cement 
foundation or pylon style supports shall extend down a minimum of 36 inches 
where weight of monument dictates. The first course of masonry above the 
foundation of all monuments and all other bases, must be bedded off to an 
equal thickness with cement mortar of proper proportions and mixture.  No 
building up or underpinning of chips, spoils, cement or other materials will be 
allowed.   
21.  The City shall have the right to prevent the delivery, erection, or setting of 
any marker or monument whenever weather and ground conditions could 
impair the results or damage the grounds. 
 
22. The city may prevent the erection or installation of any structure, or to 
remove any structure, which is deemed detrimental to the general 
appearance or safety of the cemeteries. 
23.  All turf restoration will be the responsibility of the monument installer and 
shall be performed within five (5) business days of monument erection, 
depending on weather conditions. Winter burials will require restoration to be 
performed the following spring.    
 
 
 
Section 11:  Cemetery Rates 
 
1. Cemetery rates are reviewed on an annual basis by the Cemetery Board. 
 
2. Rates include grave spaces, perpetual care and interments fees.  
 
3. No service will be performed by the City until all fees are paid. 
 
4. Payment for grave site opening must be paid for a minimum of two (2) 
business days prior to burial. 
 
5. Perpetual care is included within the purchase of all lots or graves. 
 
6. Additional fees will apply for burials after 5:00 pm on weekdays (Monday-
Friday), weekends and holidays.   
 
7. An additional fee will apply where two interments are permitted within one 







grave space. 
 
 
Section 12:  General Rules 
 
1.  All persons, whether employees or visitors, are expected to act with such 
decorum and respect as the occasion and premises demand. 
 
2. During the progress of burial services all work in the immediate vicinity 
shall cease and quiet shall prevail. 
 
3. No person shall injure or destroy trees, shrubs, or plants.   
4. Writing on or defacing monuments and structures is not permitted and is 
punishable by law. 
 
5. The throwing of waste and litter on the ground is prohibited.  Receptacles 
are provided for the deposit of litter, weeds, decayed flowers and plants.  
 
6. No person shall drive any motor vehicle upon the grass, or park same at 
any other place except upon established roadways, unless authorized to do 
so by an employee of the City.   
 
7. Hunting, discharging firearms, including air rifle, (except in observance of 
funeral rites) is prohibited. 
 
8. Erecting booths or stalls, selling, peddling, soliciting, or advertising, and the 
distribution or placing of any advertisement is prohibited. 
 
9. All vehicles, their drivers and passengers, and all other persons, while 
within the grounds, shall be subject to the direction of the cemetery 
management. 
 
10. Cemetery grounds are open for visitation from dawn to dusk. 
 
11. Speed limit on all cemetery roads is 15 mph. 
 
12. All pets must be on a leash no longer than 6' in length and under control 
of the owner.  Pet owners are required to curb their pet and dispose of waste 
in the waste receptacles. 
 
13. Recreational walking, running, and bicycling are allowed on paved 
surfaces only. 
 
14. Alcoholic beverages are not allowed in the cemeteries.  
 
15. The City will not be responsible for the loss or damage of any article or 







object left in any part of either cemetery. 
 
 
Section 13:  Contractor Procedures 
 
1. All contractors performing work within the cemeteries must carry liability 
insurance at levels determined by the City.  Certificates of insurance must be 
on file with the Cemetery Office. 
 
2. Contractors and others having work to do in the cemeteries must advise 
cemetery management prior to commencing work. 
 
3. Materials for any work shall not be sent to either cemetery unless 
accompanied by someone in authority who has knowledge of its use and 
destination. 
 
4. Persons engaged in placing vaults, monuments or other structures in either 
cemetery are prohibited from attaching ropes to monuments, trees, shrubs, or 
other objects, without consent of Director of Public Works. 
 
5. The Director of Public Works is given the legal right to prevent the erection 
of any structure or to remove any structure which they shall deem injurious to 
the general safety of cemetery visitors or workers or is detrimental to the 
appearance of the cemetery or the adjoining lots. 
 
6. All contractors performing monument and marker work within the 
cemeteries must be pre-approved by the City. 
 
7. Moving cemetery monuments or any heavy material over any path, lot or 
part thereof, shall only be done with the consent of the Director of Public 
Works or their designee.  The ground and turf must always be protected by a 
heavy plank. 
 
8. The obstruction of drives and paths during construction, or when material is 
being delivered must be avoided whenever possible. 
 
9. Contractors must remove all trash and excess materials immediately after 
completing marker and monument work.  The lot and surroundings must be 
restored to their original condition by or at the expense of the person, firm or 
corporation having the work done. 
 
10. Employees of contractors are expected to act with such decorum and 
respect as the occasion and premises demand.  During the progress of burial 
services all work in the immediate vicinity shall cease and quiet shall prevail. 
 







11. Contractors shall be responsible for all damages to the cemetery facilities 
including markers, monuments, roads, trees, shrubbery, and flowers. 


 
12.  All turf restoration must follow the guidelines set forth in Section 10 (23). 
 
 
Section 14:  Modifications and Amendments 
 
1. The City may, and it hereby expressly reserves the right, at any time or 
times, with or without notice to owners, to adopt new rules and regulations, or 
to amend, alter and/or repeal any rule, regulation and/or article, section, or 
paragraph and/or sentence in these Rules and Regulations. 
 
2. Special cases may arise in which the literal enforcement of a rule may 
impose unnecessary hardship.  The Cemetery, therefore, reserves the right, 
without notice, to make exceptions or modifications in any of the Rules and 
Regulations when in its judgement, the same appear advisable; and such 
temporary exceptions or modifications shall in no way be construed as 
affecting the general application of such. 
 
3. Any and all questions regarding the interpretation of these Rules and 
Regulations should be addressed with the appropriate Department of Public 
Works Staff located at 515 S. Fourth St, Stoughton, WI 53589, or call 608-
873-6677. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 


Cemetery Board Rules 
 


The Cemetery Board consists of three (3) citizen members, one (1) representative from the 
Public Works Committee, the Director of Public Works, the City Finance Director and the Public 


Works Administrative Assistant.  Citizen members are appointed to the Board by the Mayor. 
Citizen members shall serve three (3) year terms. The terms shall be staggered so as to have one 


member’s term expire each year. 


 
Duties 
The Cemetery Board shall operate subject to the general direction and control of the City of 


Stoughton Common Council. The Cemetery Board shall have the entire charge of all City 


cemetery operations, which include: 


1. The use of funds derived from the sales of cemetery lots. 


2. Use of funds appropriated for the benefit of the cemeteries by the Council.  


3. The use of all monies or property in any manner given, conveyed or devised to the City 


(including any officer or board of the City given to it in its capacity as City officer or 


board) in trust for ornamenting, caring for, keeping in repair, or maintaining any 
cemetery lot, building or infrastructure therein. 


4. Reviewing, on an annual basis, cemetery fees, rules and infrastructure needs and 
providing recommendations to the Common Council for action to be taken. 


 


Cemetery Use of Funds: 


The Cemetery Board shall use the funds outlined below according to its discretion in caring for 


and improving such cemeteries grounds and public monuments thereon. However, the Cemetery 
Board shall not have the power to create any debt against the City to be paid from any other 


fund. 


1. All funds derived from the cemetery grave or lot sales which includes perpetual care. 


2. All funds derived from gifts specifically given to the cemetery board. 


3. All funds appropriated by the Council for the general benefit of the cemeteries. 


 


Meetings 
Meetings are open to the public and are held on an as needed basis at least once per calendar 
year.  There must be at least 2/3 of the board members to constitute a quorum. 


 
 







 


 


Public Works Committee  
Tuesday March 20, 2018 @ 4:30 PM 
Hall of Fame Room, 381 E Main St 
 
Members Present:  Alderpersons Pat O’Connor, Michael Engelberger, Greg Jenson and Sid 
Boersma 


Absent/Excused:   


Staff:  Mayor Olson, Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel and 
Vickie Erdahl 


Guests:  Emily Barr, Alder Tim Swadley and City Arborist John Kemppainen 
 
Call to Order:  Jenson called the meeting to order 


1) Communications:     Hebert reported:  


 Downtown trash receptacles are being refurbished and will be completely installed by 
the end of this week. 


 Schefelker Park will conduct a prairie burn weather permitting 


 45 different roads in the city have been slated to be crack filled. 


 Crews installed drain tiles @ Dunkirk Ave Park in five areas.  There are several springs 
in the park south of the playground area, but the tiles are working. 


2) Reports:    Erdahl stated street openings permits were on schedule for this time of year.  The 
Yard Waste site will open on April 3rd with permits still priced @ $20.00 each.  


Old Business: 


 


3) Public Works Facility Update:  Hebert reported that there will be a preconstruction meeting 
with the contractor on March 22, 2018 to discuss the project.  The plan is to start the work in 
early April with occupancy by the end of 2018 or early 2019.   


 


New Business: 


 


4)    Approve February 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by O’Connor, seconded by 
Boersma to approve the minutes.  Motion carried 5-0 (Mayor voted yes) 


 


5)    Discussion and Approval of the 2018 Road Construction Budget Reallocation and 
Recommendation to Award Contract 1-2018 to Maddrell Excavating LLC:  Hebert stated 
there was only one bid received for Contract 1-2018 Road Construction Projects from Maddrell 
Excavating, LLC for $1,756,948.00.  This bid was higher than what was budgeted for by the 
amount of $461,820.00.  Monies from other CIP street and stormwater projects from previous 
years will be re-allocated to cover this shortfall.  


 Contract 2 is currently out for bid with bids due back by March 29th.  If these bids come in too 
high, plans can be shelved and rebid in 2019. 


 Contract 3 with Dane County already has firm pricing in place. 


 Motion by Engelberger, seconded by O’Connor to recommend to the Common Council 
to approve Contract 1 of the 2018 Road Construction and award the bid to Maddrell 
Excavating LLC for the amount of $1,756,948.00 after re-allocating $470,769.00 from 







 


 


unspent capital funds from previous street and stormwater construction projects.. 
Motion carried 5-0 (with the Mayor voting yes). 


 


6) Review and Approval of the City’s Annual DNR General Stormwater Permit:  Scheel 
discussed the application for the permit stating that we have updated ordinances, inspect our 
outfalls and continue other preventive maintenance for phosphorus removal.  The city also 
works with Yahara Wins. 


 Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Boersma to approve the Annual DNR General 
Stormwater Permit.  Motion carried 5-0 (with the Mayor voting yes). 


  Scheel left the meeting at 5:15 pm to attend another road construction meeting.  


 


7) EAB Tree Treatment Discussion and Recommendation by the Tree Commission:  Hebert 
explained that the city has a two year EAB budget for tree removal and replacement which will 
end this year. There has been a discussion at the Tree Commission on how best to utilize 
these funds and whether the city should continue treating its ash trees due to budgetary 
constraints and survivability which comes out of the regular operating budget.  Originally 140 
trees were treated since 2014 and only 97 have survived.   


 The city arborist developed four options and costs involved. Option 1) remove and replace all 
trees, Option 2a) Treat Trees with TreeAzin, Option 2b) treat trees with TreeAge (contracted), 
2c) treat trees (in-house), Option 3a) Remove and Replace over 16” treat remaining with 
TreeAzin, 3b) Remove and Replace over 16” and treat remaining with TreeAge (contracted), 
3c) Remove and Replace over 16” and treat remaining with TreeAge (in-house), Option 4a) 
Remove and Replace under 16” and treat remaining with TreeAzin, 4b) Remove and Replace 
under 16” and treat remaining with TreeAge (contracted), 4c) Remove and Replace under 16” 
and treat remaining with TreeAge (in-house). 


 The Tree Commission developed a fifth option which was to treat the remaining 97 ash trees 
with TreeAzin (which is plant based and environmentally friendly) and also plant 97 trees 
throughout the city now from the EAB funds to be proactive if the trees do not survive. 


 City Forester, John Kemppainen, stated that TreeAzin is not as effective as TreeAge and 
because these 97 trees are.01% of the urban forester the chemical would not affect the 
pollinators.  John stated that the city staff can now use TreeAge without a license but would 
have to purchase the equipment for the product and even with these costs it would be less 
costly than TreeAzin and more effective. With the TreeAge product the first year all the trees 
would be injected and after that they would need to be injected every other year. With 
TreeAzin the trees would have to be injected every year.   


 Committee asked questions regarding survivability and what other communities were doing. 
John stated other communities were already using the TreeAge and that the 97 trees are 
small to medium and have a good chance of survival if a better product was used.  These 
trees will be analyzed yearly as to their status. 


 Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Boersma to recommend Option 2c – treat the 
trees with TreeAge with yearly analysis by city forester.  Motion carried 5-0 (with Mayor 
voting yes). 


 


8) Discussion and Approval to modify the trash and recycling receptacles downtown to 
trash only: Hebert stated that the downtown trash cans are not being utilized properly.  These 
trash cans are divided to accept trash on one side and recyclables on the other.  Johns 
Disposal has noticed on their weekly pick up and stated that the trash side fills up and people 
are co-mingling trash in the recyclable side which makes them non-recyclable. 







 


 


 Currently there are 25 divided trash cans downtown which Hebert is requesting that they be 
modified to trash only. 


 Several members of the committee stated that they have gotten requests for a specific recycle 
can and would like there to be a few strategically placed downtown. 


 Directed staff to look into having separate recyclable trash cans and the cost involved 
and place on April’s agenda. 


 


9) Discussion and Approval to Accept the Cemetery Rules Draft Changes:  Hebert stated 
that he has modified and updated the Cemetery Rules and Regulations with formatting and tile 
changes and also made the following changes to Section d – Monuments, Markers and Vaults 
# v regarding contractors placing headstones be responsible for repairing the site when 
completion of headstone being placed and Section e – Conduct of the Public in Cemeteries # 
iv to now allow pets in the cemetery as long as they are contained. 


 Motion by O’Connor, seconded to by Engelberger to recommend to the Common 
Council to accept the revision to the Cemetery Rules and Regulations as presented.  
Motion carried 5-0 (with Mayor voting yes). 


    


6) Future Agenda Items:  PW Facility Update , 2018 Street Reconstruction, Trash Cans 


 


 Moved by Boersma seconded by O’Connor to adjourn the meeting at 5:50 pm.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 3/21/18. 







 


 


Cemetery Board Meeting Minutes 


Thursday, June 19, 2018 @ 3:00 PM 


Mayor’s Office, City Hall, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI  53589 
 


Members Present:  Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Odean Teigen, Jean Lamers and Dave Kalland, Public 
Works Director Brett Hebert 


Absent & Excused:  


Staff:  Mayor Tim Swadley and Administrative Asst. Vickie Erdahl  


Call to Order:  Meeting called to order by Hebert @ 3:02 PM 


1. Communications:  Hebert stated: 1) Six memory trees have been planted on the terrace 
surrounding the cemetery in lieu of filling urns  2) Received an email  from a Thomas Nicholls, 
son of Harlan Nicholls, one of the sites where the urn has been filed by the city for years 
asking why it wasn’t done and feels his father contributed a lot to the cemetery – Hebert will 
respond to him 3) Wick & Erdahl are continuing their work to clean up the cemetery records 
and determine graves that fit the criteria to be resold.  In order for the city to sell these lots, a 
process has to be followed according to the State Statues. 


2. Discussion and Possible Action on Cemetery Rules & Regulations and Cemetery 


Board:  Hebert stated that he had separated the rules/regulations and the Cemetery Board 
into two separate documents. After review of the documents the following changes were 
discussed and will be made. 


Rules/Regulations: Sec 1, Item 10 will be re-worded, Sec 2 – OK, Sec 3, Item 4 –Wheeler 


Prairie inserted, Sec 4 – Sec 6 – OK, Sec 7 – add item # 3 for fees incurred, Sec 8 -9, - OK, 


Sec 10 – Item 23 – wording for weather situations, Sec 11- Sec 14 – OK. 


Cemetery Board:  Under the Duties – duplications of the lots wording will be corrected. 


 


Motion by Kalland, seconded by Hebert to approve the Cemetery Rules & Regulations 


and Cemetery Board document with the noted changes.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 


3. Discuss Options for Cemetery Funds – Install Section Markers & Software: Hebert 
requested that the money from the account be used to purchase new cemetery signs with the 
updated Rules/Regulations in a larger font and remove the No Dogs allowed signed.  Also 
requested was the ability to purchase some type of section markers.  There have been several 
volunteer groups that are willing to help with the installation.  IT/ Media Services is working on 
obtaining and installing a update to the cemetery software program.  


 


Motion by Kalland, seconded by Lamers to approve the utilization of some of the 


cemetery funds to install section markers at Riverside Cemetery and purchase new 


signs with the updated Rules and Regulations.  Motion carried 5-0. 


New Business: 


4. Approval of minutes from March 8, 2018:  Motion by Teigen seconded by Lamers to 
approve the minutes.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 


5. Discussion / Possible Review of area Cemeteries Fee Structures as it pertains to the 


Sale of Lots, Graves and Perpetual Care:  Information wasn’t received from the funeral 
homes until Monday afternoon.  Hebert will clean up the information and email out to the 
committee for review. 







 


 


 


6. Future Agenda Items:  None stated. 
 
 


Moved by Bartlett, seconded by Kalland to adjourn meeting at 3:40pm.  Carried 5-0. 


 


Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl, staff member 6/20/18 





		16a-R-146-2018 Cemetery Rules - Resolution.pdf

		16b-PW Min March 20, 2018.pdf

		16c-Cemetery Min June 19, 2018.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving the Release and Re-establishment of Stormwater Management Easements for Lots 134 -


137 in the Nordic Ridge Plat, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Works Committee recommends Council approval  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-147-2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, stormwater management easements exist on Lots 134 – 137 of the Nordic Ridge Plat; and 


 


WHEREAS, more detailed stormwater management designs have now been completed as this portion of the 


Plat is ready for construction; and 


 


WHEREAS, the design now dictates the need to change the configuration of the stormwater management 


easements on these lots; and  


 


WHEREAS, on July 17, 2018 the Stoughton Public Works Committee reviewed the proposed changes to 


the easement configurations and recommends Common Council approval as presented;  now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council authorizes the release of the previously 


platted stormwater management easements on Lots 134-137 of Nordic Ridge conditioned upon the recording 


of the revised stormwater management easements for these Lots immediately following the recording of the 


Release of Easements for the same Lots.   


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                                     


Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  


  


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Vacate & Reinstate Stormwater Easements - Nordic Ridge.doc 







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: July 16, 2018


To: Public Works Committee


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Stormwater Management Easements – Nordic Ridge


When Nordic Ridge was originally platted in 2009, Stormwater Management Easements were
placed on Lots 134 – 137 based on the stormwater management design at that time. Since this
plat was not constructed until years later, the stormwater management design was changed to
address standards in place in 2018. The changes to the design requires the need to modify the
easement configuration on these lots. The process necessary is to release the easements as
originally platted and record new documents that implement the revised easement configuration
on these lots.


As resolution is provided along with the “Release of Easements” document and the new “Public
Stormwater Management Easements” to implement the recommended changes.


If you have any questions, please contact me.







RELEASE OF EASEMENTS 
 


 


The City of Stoughton does hereby release all rights, title and interest 


which it may have in: 


 


Those Stormwater Management Easements as dedicated and shown on 


Lots 134 and 135-137, Nordic Ridge, as recorded in Volume 59-074B of 


Plats on Pages 340-342, as Document No. 4613105, Dane County 


Registry: 


 


See Exhibit "A". 


 


This release of easements does not release or modify any other easements 


set forth on said plat. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, caused this release to be duly executed this            day of                                               


                                       , 2018. 


 


 


By:                                                                                                                                                           


 


Printed Name:   


 


 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN      ) 


                                             ) ss 


COUNTY OF DANE            ) 


 


  


Personally came before me this               day of                                                   , 2018, the above-named person to me 


known to be the person who executed the foregoing on behalf of the City of Sun Prairie and acknowledged the same. 


 


 


  


 


Printed Name:   


Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin 


My Commission                  
                                


   


 
 


 


 
This instrument drafted by Kevin Pape,  


D’Onofrio, Kottke & Associates 


FN: 17-05-156  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
      Return To: Kevin J. Pape 


 D’Onofrio, Kottke and Associates  


 7530 Westward Way 


 Madison, WI 53717 


 


Parcel Identification Number 







EXHIBIT A



AutoCAD SHX Text

130 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

132 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

133 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

HOEL  AVENUE ----  ------



AutoCAD SHX Text

CTH A  --- -



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORMWATER MANAGMENT EASEMENT TO BE RELEASED



AutoCAD SHX Text

ODEGARD DRIVE ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

F.N.: 17-05-156



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE: 04-19-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN BY: KJP



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/1705156/DRAWINGS/STORMWATER EASEMENT RELEASE LOT 113.DWG







EXHIBIT A



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

HOEL  AVENUE ----  ------



AutoCAD SHX Text

CTH A ----



AutoCAD SHX Text

ODEGARD DRIVE ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

S00°42'14"E 211.54'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S54°01'45"W51.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EASEMENT TO BE RELEASED



AutoCAD SHX Text

F.N.: 17-05-156



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale 1" = 60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE: 04-20-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN BY: KJP



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/1705156/DRAWINGS/STORMWATER EASEMENT RELEASE LOT 137.DWG







PUBLIC STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
EASEMENT  


 
 


Harvest Farms, LLC, a Limited Liability Company duly organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of State of Wisconsin (the 
“Owner”), being the owner of the property hereinafter described, in 
consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, and the 
benefits that will inure to the Owner by reason of the public storm 
water management facilities, does grant, set over and convey to the 
City of Stoughton, a municipal corporation (the “City”), their 
successors and assigns, a perpetual easement for public stormwater 
management purposes (“Easement”), including, but not limited to, the 
right of ingress and egress; the right to excavate, install, operate, 
maintain, repair, replace and modify the stormwater facilities and 
improvements; and the right to perform all work incidental thereto; in, 
on, under and through the “Easement Area”. 
 
The Easement Area is described on attached Exhibit A. 
 
 
The Easement Area is depicted on attached Exhibit B. 
 
This Easement is subject to the following conditions: 


1. The Owner and the City shall comply with all applicable laws, including, but not limited to, any laws, 
standards, regulations, or permit requirements relating to environmental pollution or contamination or to 
occupational health and safety. 


2. The Owner reserves the right to use and occupy the Easement Area in a manner not inconsistent with the 
rights herein conveyed, provided that such use and occupancy shall not interfere with or disturb the 
installation, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement and/or modification of any utility facilities and 
improvements. No buildings or structures of any kind shall be built over the Easement Area without the 
written permission of the City of Stoughton. 


3. After installation of the utility facilities, there shall be no grade change to the Easement Area without the 
written permission of the City of Stoughton. 


 
 
 
 
Dated this            day of                                                , 2018. 
 


HARVEST FARMS, LLC 
 
 


By:      
                               (signature) 
 
                                                                                                                                                    
                   (print name and title) 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN      ) 
COUNTY OF DANE            )S.S. 
 


Personally came before me this       day of                                 , 2018, the above named person to me 
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument as such member of the limited liability 
company and acknowledged the same. 
 
My Commission                                  
                               Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin. 
 
 
 
This instrument drafted by Kevin J. Pape 
D’onofrio, Kottke & Associates, Inc. 
7530 Westward Way 
Madison, WI 53717 
 
FN: 17-05-156  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
      Return To: Kevin Pape 
 D’onofrio, Kottke and Associates  
 7530 Westward Way 
 Madison, WI 53717 


0511-073-4134-2                


Parcel Identification Number 







EXHIBIT A 


 


Stormwater Management Easement Area 
 
Located on Lot 134, Nordic Ridge recorded in Vol 59-074B of Plats on pages 340-342 as Document 
No. 4613105, Dane County Registry described as follows: Beginning at the northeast corner of said 
Lot 134; thence S00°37'49"E, 527.98 feet along the east line of said Lot 134 to the north right-of-
way line of CTH "A"; thence S87°00'36"W, 143.18 feet along said north right-of-way line; thence 


N50°35’29”E, 63.09 feet; thence N17°34’18”E, 69.49 feet; thence N03°04’45”W, 128.36 feet; thence 


S86°59’22”W, 17.08 feet; thence N02°58’16”W, 30.49 feet; thence N89°29’05”W, 162.60 feet; 


thence N41°47’47”W, 6.27 feet to the east right-of-way line of Hoel Avenue; thence N02°59'24"W, 


23.94 feet along said east right-of-way line; thence S41°47’47”E, 18.29 feet; thence S89°29’05”E, 


155.06 feet; thence N02°58’16”W, 21.80 feet; thence N57°16’14”E, 17.47 feet; thence 


N02°58’16”W, 126.51 feet; thence N20°48’52”W, 48.11 feet; thence N66°35’09”W, 79.03 feet; 


thence N00°37’49”W, 20.51 feet to the north line of said Lot 134; thence N89°22’11”E, 176.61 feet 
to the point of beginning. Contains 52,418 square feet (1.203 acres). 







EXHIBIT B



AutoCAD SHX Text

130 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

132 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

133 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

HOEL  AVENUE ----  ------



AutoCAD SHX Text

CTH A  --- -



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING STORMWATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT (DOC NO. 4613105)



AutoCAD SHX Text

251.18'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PUBLIC STORMWATER MANAGMENT EASEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ODEGARD DRIVE ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

F.N.: 17-05-156



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE: 04-19-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN BY: KJP



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/1705156/DRAWINGS/STORMWATER EASEMENT LOT 134.DWG







PUBLIC STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
EASEMENT  


 
 


Harvest Farms, LLC, a Limited Liability Company duly organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of State of Wisconsin (the 
“Owner”), being the owner of the property hereinafter described, in 
consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, and the 
benefits that will inure to the Owner by reason of the public storm 
water management facilities, does grant, set over and convey to the 
City of Stoughton, a municipal corporation (the “City”), their 
successors and assigns, a perpetual easement for public stormwater 
management purposes (“Easement”), including, but not limited to, the 
right of ingress and egress; the right to excavate, install, operate, 
maintain, repair, replace and modify the stormwater facilities and 
improvements; and the right to perform all work incidental thereto; in, 
on, under and through the “Easement Area”. 
 
The Easement Area is described on attached Exhibit A. 
 
 
The Easement Area is depicted on attached Exhibit B. 
 
This Easement is subject to the following conditions: 


1. The Owner and the City shall comply with all applicable laws, including, but not limited to, any laws, 
standards, regulations, or permit requirements relating to environmental pollution or contamination or to 
occupational health and safety. 


2. The Owner reserves the right to use and occupy the Easement Area in a manner not inconsistent with the 
rights herein conveyed, provided that such use and occupancy shall not interfere with or disturb the 
installation, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement and/or modification of any utility facilities and 
improvements. No buildings or structures of any kind shall be built over the Easement Area without the 
written permission of the City of Stoughton. 


3. After installation of the utility facilities, there shall be no grade change to the Easement Area without the 
written permission of the City of Stoughton. 


 
 
 
Dated this            day of                                                , 2018. 
 


HARVEST FARMS, LLC 
 
 


By:      
                               (signature) 
 
                                                                                                                                                    
                   (print name and title) 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN      ) 
COUNTY OF DANE            )S.S. 
 


Personally came before me this       day of                                 , 2018, the above named person to me 
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument as such member of the limited liability 
company and acknowledged the same. 
 
My Commission                                  
                               Notary Public, Dane County, Wisconsin. 
 
 
 
This instrument drafted by Kevin J. Pape 
D’onofrio, Kottke & Associates, Inc. 
7530 Westward Way 
Madison, WI 53717 
 
FN: 17-05-156  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
      Return To: Kevin Pape 
 D’onofrio, Kottke and Associates  
 7530 Westward Way 
 Madison, WI 53717 


0511-073-4137-2 


0511-073-4136-2 


0511-073-4135-2                


Parcel Identification Number 







EXHIBIT A 


Stormwater Management Easement Area 
 
Located on Lots 135-137, Nordic Ridge recorded in Vol 59-074B of Plats on pages 340-342 as 
Document No. 4613105, Dane County Registry described as follows: Beginning at the southwest 


corner of said Lot 135; thence N00°42’14”W, 241.10 feet along the west line of said Nordic Ridge; 


thence N89°17’46”E, 41.80 feet; thence S00°42’14”E, 239.44 feet; thence S87°00’36”W, 41.83 feet 
along the north right-of-way line of CTH “A” to the point of beginning. Contains 10,043 square feet 
(0.230 acres). 
 







EXHIBIT B



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORDIC RIDGE ------ -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

HOEL  AVENUE ----  ------



AutoCAD SHX Text

CTH A ----



AutoCAD SHX Text

ODEGARD DRIVE ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

S87°00'36"W41.83'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PUBLIC STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EASEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

F.N.: 17-05-156



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale 1" = 60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE: 04-17-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN BY: KJP



AutoCAD SHX Text

U:/USER/1705156/DRAWINGS/STORMWATER EASEMENT LOT 137.DWG







 


 


Public Works Committee  
Tuesday, May 17, 2018 @ 7:15 PM 
Fire Station, Community Room, 401 E Main St 
 
Members Present:  Alderpersons Sid Boersma, Lisa Reeves, Tom Majewski and Matt Bartlett 


Absent/Excused:   


Staff:  Mayor Swadley, Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel and 
Vickie Erdahl 


Guests:   
 
Call to Order:  Bartlett called the meeting to order 


1) Communications:   Hebert stated 1) Dave Juve is retiring on September 7, 2018.  Human 
Resources is posting the position now 2) 229 trees were planted this spring in parkrows and 
parks. 


Old Business: 


2) Public Works Facility Update:  Scheel stated that the pre-cast panels were installed and in 
the next 30 days the metal roof will be installed.  The retaining wall has been installed. Paving 
will be done in the fall.  Only one change order has been made in the amount of $1,600.  Next 
month the utilities will be installed. The contractors stated the building will be finished by late 
December for move-in. 


 


3) Reports:   Erdahl stated that street opening permits are about the average amount for this 
time of the year.  Yard Waste permits are above of the normal amount sold for the first three 
months.  Hebert stated brush will be grinded next week.  


Several committee members stated that they are receiving calls regarding the yard waste site 
for 2019 – will it be @ the Public Dept., will fees be charged, concerns about the wetland area 
and how the site will be used. Hebert stated that the Public Works Dept. is working with their 
consulting engineer on permitting and site preparation.  The Public Works Dept would like to 
start using the site in the fall by city staff for leaves.  The plan for the general public will be 
brought back to the Public Works Committee for future consideration once a timeline for the 
site has been set. 


Request to place this issue as a future agenda item. 


At this time a discussion started on road construction – Scheel stated that there is construction 
on Academy (East St to Veterans Rd), East St and Vernon St (Academy to Kristi).  Comments 
were made that Gjertson St and wall looked nice and questions arose regarding the costs for 
curb/gutter, sidewalk and retaining walls future assessments. 


Request to place this issue as a future agenda item. 


 


New Business: 


 


4)    Approve May 17, 2018 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Boersma, seconded by Reeves to 
approve the minutes.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 







 


 


5)    Discussion and Approval to Award the 2018 Bridge Rehabilitation Contract to the 
Lowest Responsible Bidder, Norcon Corporation:  Hebert stated that the bridges were 
previously inspected in 2017 by a third party inspector hired by WisDOT.  The inspection 
revealed several preventative maintenance repairs that needed to be taken to the following 
bridges – Forton St (over Yahara River), 4th St (over Mill Race), 4th St (over Yahara River) and 
USH 51 (over Yahara River).  Bids were received from three companies – Norcon 
Corporation, Joe Daniels Construction Co., LLC and Zenith Tech, Inc. Hebert suggested 
accepting the low bid of $72,422 from Norcon Corporation as recommended by our consulting 
engineer firm, Strand and Associates. 


 Majewski inquired about the status of the Pedestrian Bridge. This bridge is currently slated for 
rehabilitation in the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan and the details of the bridge construction 
would be brought back for the committee to consider at a later date in 2019. 


  


 Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Boersma to recommend to the Common Council to 
award the bid in the amount of $ 72,422.00 to Norcon Corporation for the 2018 Bridge 
Rehabilitation.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 


6) Discussion on the Use of Traffic Calming Devices:  Majewski stated that he received calls 
from constituents on Academy St regarding traffic speed.  Majewski stated that the city has 
few traffic calming measures and would like this issue looked into and discussed /considered 
when road construction projects are being planned. Majewski mentioned that there have been 
previous discussion with Public Safety regarding this issue.  Scheel stated that this issue is 
definitely discussed with new road construction several roads have been narrowed to 
accommodate speed issues and that each street needs to be managed differently, evaluated 
and a determination made on what are the safety factors involved. 


 The residents on Academy St have requested speed limit signs be placed at this time and 
reviewed at a later date if not effective. 


 


7) Discussion on the Minimum Maintenance Standards for Publicly Owned Property:  
Bartlett stated the minimum maintenance should have been for privately owned property, not 
public.  Scheel addressed this issue stating there is a model from the Village of Oregon that is 
being reviewed to adopt for Stoughton to have a Minimum Maintenance Standard. Another 
consideration – is there enough staff to enforce the rules? 


 Reeves requested we also look at having a fee for rental properties. 


 Majewski stated to be mindful of the historic district when adopting these maintenance 
standards, 


 This issue is being placed on the August agenda. 


  


8) Recap of the Stormwater Quality Management Plan Presentation: Scheel emphasized 
that we need to continually improve on our methods to meet the requirements of the 
stormwater permit. The city already has a robust leaf collection and street sweeping program.  
Modifications to street sweeping frequency has already been changed from once a month to 
twice a month for sweeping the entire city.  Scheel stated he received a grant for the Bio- 
Swale to a Wet Detention Basin Conversion on East St. 


 


9) Nordic Ridge – Release of (Stormwater Management) Easements:   Scheel stated that 
Nordic Ridge was originally platted in 2009 with stormwater a management easements on 
Lots 134 through 137 based on designs at that time. There are different standards in place for 
2018, therefore the stormwater management easements designs need to be modified.  The 







 


 


changes to the design requires modifying the configurations on the lots.  Scheel is requesting 
to follow the process necessary is to release the easements as originally platted and record 
new documents that implement the revised configuration on these lots. 


 Motion by Boersma, seconded by Reeves to recommend to the Common Council to 
approve the release and re-establishment of Stormwater Management Easements for 
Lots 134 – 137 in the Nordic Ridge Plat, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.  
Motion carried 5-0 (with the Mayor voting yes). 


    


10) Future Agenda Items:  EAB Update, City Pool, Rules when parking lots are re-designed, 
Commercial Properties –vegetation issues, Curb/gutter, sidewalk and retaining walls costs, 
Ordinance – detention ponds, Yard Waste Site, Minimal Maintenance Standards - Rental 
Property Fees & Policy, 


 


 Moved by Boersma seconded by Reeves to adjourn the meeting at 8:26 pm.  Motion 
carried 4-0.  Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant –. 7/18/18 





		17a-R-147-2018 Vacate  Reinstate Stormwater Easements - Nordic Ridge.pdf

		17b-Public Works Committee 7-16-2018 - Release Stormwater Easements - Nordic Ridge - Package.pdf

		17c-PW Min July 17, 2018.pdf






Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, June 11, 2018 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, 
WI. 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Matt Bartlett, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; Phil 


Caravello; Greg Jenson; and Tom Selsor 


Members Absent: Tom Robinson 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development and Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator 


Press: None 


Guests: Tom Fohr; AJ Arnett; Tim Kunes; Jordan Tilleson; and Emily Bahr 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of May 14 and June 5, 2018.   


Motion by Bartlett to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 5 – 0 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Bartlett stated the Common Council approved an ETJ land division for Sime; conditional use 


permit for the apartment in Nordic Ridge; CSM for City land behind the hospital and a CSM for a 


property on Pine Street. 


 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the current developments as outlined in the packet of material. 


 


5. Request by Tom Fohr of Kunes Country Buick GMC of Stoughton, 1423 US Highway 51 to 


amend the zoning ordinance to allow pennant type signs to be placed on private light poles 


in the planned business district. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Barman arrived at 6:05 pm. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


Tim Kunes spoke in favor and stated Tom Fohr is on his way. 


 


Motion by Jenson to recess until Mr. Fohr arrives, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion carried 6 – 0. 


 


Tom Fohr arrived and public hearing was restarted and spoke in favor of the ordinance change. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Selsor stated he is opposed to the change. 


 


Barman questioned where these signs would be allowed if approved.  Scheel stated anywhere 


there is a Planned Business zoned property. 


 


Barman is concerned about having unlimited poles and the size of the signs. 


 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/18 


Page 2 of 4 


 


Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approve the ordinance as presented, 2nd by 


Bartlett.   


 


Jenson stated this would open the door too far and the request is for too many signs. 


 


Bartlett is concerned about the number of flag type signs that could be placed all the way to the 


downtown. 


 


Motion failed 6 – 0. 


 


6. Request by Matt Adams for design approval of an awning replacement within the downtown 


design overlay zoning district at 143 E. Main Street. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Barman stated the colors do not complement the building or adjacent buildings and the signage is 


inappropriate for the downtown.  The font and lettering are too large. 


 


Selsor agrees the signage is inappropriately large. 


 


Motion by Barman to deny the awning request, 2nd by Selsor.   


 


Jenson questioned if the Landmarks Commission should look at this.  Scheel stated the building is 


not a local landmark but is contributing to the historic district.  The Landmarks Commission only 


has jurisdiction over local landmarks. 


 


Barman stated the request is being denied because it does not meet the requirements of section 78-


517(6)i and j.  Barman recommends earth tone colors be used and would like to see consistency 


with all awnings on the building. 


 


Caravello also does not agree with the scale of the lettering. 


 


Barman withdrew his motion. 


 


Motion by Jenson to approved the resolution as presented, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion failed 0 – 6. 


 


Motion by Jenson to return to the public hearing for Agenda Item #5, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion 


carried 6 - 0. 


 


7. AJ Arnett of Norse View Holdings LLC requests certified survey map (CSM) and rezoning 


approval for property located at the southeast corner of N. Page Street and County Highway 


B. (Tabled July 11, 2016) 


Barman left at 6:30 pm. 


 


Scheel explained the request including a proposed CSM resolution and proposed rezoning 


ordinance.  The draft resolution is prepared to address specific items to be addressed before the 


CSM could be signed by the City and the rezoning would become effective. 


 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/18 


Page 3 of 4 


 


AJ Arnett explained his request. 


 


The commission expressed the following concerns to the applicant: 


 


 10-foot wide drive lane may not be enough for fire access; 


 Lack of pedestrian accessibility; 


 Safety concerns due to location of access point at Page Street with Highway B close to the 


north; 


 Need to understand how the property will be developed before approval of the CSM and 


zoning; 


 Lack of onsite parking. 


 


The Commissioners are comfortable with the resolution and ordinance with the conditions. 


 


Scheel stated the City Attorney still needs to review the resolution and ordinance prior to Council 


action. 


 


A lengthy discussion ensued. 


 


Motion by Selsor to Table the CSM and rezoning request, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 3 – 2 


(Swadley, Selsor and Caravello voted yes; Jenson and Bartlett voted noe) 


 


8. Request by AJ Arnett to discuss a conceptual group development at the southeast corner of 


N. Page Street and County Highway B. 


AJ Arnett explained the conceptual plan and asked for feedback from the Commission related to 


access. 


 


Jenson left at 7:20 pm 


 


The Commission discussed potential changes to the conceptual plan such as the potential use of 


Marie Drive for access. 


 


Scheel provided information related to the preliminary plat for Arnett’s Addition to Norse View 


Heights. 


 


The Commission would like the applicant to continue to work with staff and come back with more 


details of the plan. 


 


9. Request by City of Stoughton Public Works Department to construct a dumpster enclosure 


at Norse Park, 630 Kriedeman Drive. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Motion by Selsor to approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


10. Discuss future meeting dates for proposed ordinance amendments to section 78-517, downtown 


design overlay zoning district requirements. 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/18 


Page 4 of 4 


 


Scheel stated Attorney Dregne is not available until the second week in July.  Peggy Veregin has some 
availability in June. 
 
Mayor Swadley suggested a virtual tour of the downtown with Peggy Veregin in attendance.  The 
Commissioners agreed a virtual tour would be most convenient.  Staff will send out a meeting poll this 
week. 
 
Jordan Tilleson stated he was hoping a motion to remove 193 W. Main Street from the moratorium could 
go to Council. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated this subject is not on the agenda but can be added to the upcoming special meeting. 
 


11. Future agenda items. 


Arnett’s request for CSM and rezoning.   


 


Selsor expressed his disappointment in the approval of the conditional use for the apartment 


within Nordic Ridge.  The group discussed the change in State law that prompted the approval. 


 


12. Adjournment. 


Motion by Selsor to adjourn at 8:03 pm, 2nd by Bartlett.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


 


Michael Stacey  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  
T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2018\Planning Minutes  6-11-18.docx 







River and Trails Task Force Minutes. 
May 7, 2018 
 
Present: Larry Liebmann, Jon Lewis, Nancy Hagen, Bob Diebel, Joni Dean, Ralph Erickson, Dave Sharpe, 
Councilprrson Phil Caravello, Jim Wilcox, Parks and Rec. Director Dan Glynn  
 
1. Elections:  Motion by Dave seconded by John to nominate Ralph Erickson as chairperson. Carried 
    Motion by Bob seconded by Nancy to nominate Jim Wilcox as Vice-President. Carried  
 
2.  Motion by Bob seconded by John to approve March 5, 2018 minutes. Carried  
 
3. Communications: 
Stoughton Yahara Riverfront project reported on by Dan.   
A connection from Fourth Street heading to Water Street met with a positive reception from Uniroyal.  
Cost estimate for this link $120,000. To include 275’ board walk, 900’ asphalt trail and a protective wall 
around propane tanks on Uniroyal property.  Rapid area with bypass stream connection starting on west 
side of fourth Street and continuing to River east side of fourth Street cost estimates are $2,200,000.  
Details including fish ladder, perhaps pedestrian tunnel still being worked out. DNR grants looks likely 
along with RDA commitment to Riverwalk and pedestrian bridge in Mandt Park. Fundraising most likely 
needed, about $300,000 is the estimate.  Great addition to Stoughton. 
 
4.  Gary Lacey presentation on May 16, 2018 reviewing the River plan.  6:00 at the opera house. 
 
5.  Virgin Lake Trail boardwalk to be started this summer.  Maps were shared.  Volunteers from Cumins 
are doing the work and providing materials. Thank you Cumin’s! 
 
6.  Trail cleanup went well on April 21. Bike route signs will be installed sometime this spring. Thank you 
Phil for organizing this. 
 
7.  Amundsen trail from Stoughton Hospital to Ridge Street will be bidded with the Bjorn Park asphalt 
bid.  Some concerns about steep elevation behind hospital discussed.  Jon will continue to try and get a 
hold of IKI to discuss land donation. Dan also in contact with Bryant Foundation. To be revisited at next 
meeting. 
 
8.  Dane county signs linking Stoughton to the lower Yahara trail system will be installed this week. 
 
9.  Motion by Dave second by Jon to adjourn at 6:25. Carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Nancy Hagen 
 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\07-24-2018\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 6-14-18.doc 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday June 14, 2018 – 6:30 pm 


City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary; Kimberly Cook; Todd Hubing 


and Kristi Panthofer 


Absent: Alan Hedstrom and Tom Majewski 


Staff: Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Guests:  Emily Bahr 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:37 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of May 10, 2018.   


Motion by Hubing to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Panthofer.  Motion carried 4 – 0.   
 


3. Discuss 2019 budget request. 


Veregin explained the history of requesting funding through the budgeting process. 
 
The group discussed the min-grant program and future funding. 
 
Cook arrived at 6:50 pm. 
 
Veregin plans to provide an update to the Common Council regarding the mini-grant program. 
 
The group discussed funding needed for local landmark plaques.  $500 is needed to provide 
plaques. 
 
Stacey to check funds available in the landmarks account and report back. 
 
Veregin will summarize the budget request. 
 
Motion by Cook to recommend the Common Council approve $5,000 for the 2019 mini-grant 
program and $500 to purchase local landmark plaques, 2nd by Hubing.   
 
Veregin will summarize the request. 
 
Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 


4. Review 2019 mini-grant applications. 


The group discussed the 5 grant applications. 


 


It was decided that the Woodland Studio application is invalid because it does not meet the mini-


grant requirements.  The project was started without approval. 


 


Veregin stated the Cabibbo and Stoughton Area School District requests are good. 


 


The group discussed which applications are more appropriate for funding including what amount to 


provide. 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/14/18 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\07-24-2018\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 6-14-18.doc  


The group decided there is not a way to replace the windows at the Badger Theater that will 


provide energy efficiencies.  There may be other options to achieve energy efficiencies. 


 


Veregin summarized the letter that was sent to the applicants. 


 


The group discussed funding a specific item of Bill Weber’s request such as funding for the freight 


door replacement. 


 


Motion by Hubing to approve $1,500 toward the replacement of missing brick at 529 E main 


Street; $1,000 toward the Stoughton Area School District request and $2,500 towards the Cabibbo 


request, 2nd by Pigarelli.   


 


The group discussed the amounts of funding. 


 


Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


Cook left at 7:45 pm 


 


5. Discuss Main Street Outreach. 


Veregin stated the landmarks commission has been strongly encouraged to seek creating a local 


district within the downtown historic district. 


 


Hubing has agreed to have informational meetings at his building downtown.  Veregin plans to 


send information to all property owners prior to the meetings. 


 


The group discussed funding for creating the local district.  Veregin stated the commission could 


do some of the work and a consultant could be hired to take care of the design guidelines and 


potentially write the nomination.  A map would have to be drawn of the boundaries and pictures of 


each building would be necessary. 


 


The group discussed expanding the existing historic district boundaries from the Yahara River to 


the RR Tracks at E. Main Street. 


 


The group further discussed: 


 Positives of creating a local district such as creating a consistent uniform process for 


exterior work to downtown buildings.  Currently the zoning ordinance and landmarks 


ordinance conflict with each other. 


 Potential meeting dates should be when Veregin can work it into her schedule.  Possibly 2 


meetings on one day with one being a lunch time and the other at night. 


 The Common Council and Chamber Director should be invited. 


 Veregin plans to decide on a date; will create a letter to owners, create a proposed 


boundary map and create a powerpoint presentation.  Stacey will provide a mailing list. 


 Veregin to email dates to the commissioners. 


 


 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/14/18 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2018 PACKETS\07-24-2018\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 6-14-18.doc  


6. Commission Reports/Calendar.  


Discussed the contents of the landmarks handbook. 


 


Motion by Panthofer to approve up to $50 towards a get well gift for Alan Hedstrom, 2nd by 


Pigarelli.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


Panthofer plans to work on the get well gift. 


 


7. Future agenda items. 


Linderud photo exhibit. 


   


8. Adjournment. Motion by Pigarelli to adjourn at 9:10 pm, 2nd by Panthofer.   Motion carried 4 - 


0. 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 18, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


 


Location:   Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
 600 South Fourth Street 
 Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Citizen Member Kym Ackerman, Citizen Member David Erdman, 
Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Tim 
Swadley, Alderperson Nicole Wiessinger 


Excused: Alderperson Pat O’Connor 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl, CPA, Stoughton 
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz, P.E. 


Call to Order:  Citizen Member David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting to order at 5:11 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the 
Stoughton Utilities Committee consent agenda items.  Discussion followed.   


Citizen Member David Erdman was presented with the “Charlie Bradburn Pillar of Public Power” 
award that was given to him by the Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin at their recent annual 
conference in honor of his ten years of service to the public power industry. 


Motion by Alderperson Regina Hirsch, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to 
approve the following consent agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List 
Report, Draft Minutes of the May 14, 2018 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities 
April 2018 Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities April 2018 Statistical Report, Stoughton Utilities 
May 2018 Activities Report, Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, Communications.  The motion 
carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  
Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee that were approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report  


 Stoughton Utilities Committee April 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes  


 Stoughton Utilities March 2018 Financial Summary  


 Stoughton Utilities March 2018 Statistical Report 


 Presentation of the electric and water tax-stabilization dividends 


Mayor Tim Swadley joined the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 18, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


 


Cost analysis of an overhead to underground electric system conversion:  Stoughton Utilities 
staff provided an educational presentation on the potential costs and rate impacts associated with 
an overhead to underground electric system conversion within the City of Stoughton.  The benefits 
and challenges associated with underground distribution systems were discussed.   


A summary of studies conducted by other utilities and states was provided, including findings by 
the states of North Carolina and Florida that found system conversions would require rate increases 
of 80% to 125%, finding by the City of Anaheim that a conversion would require a 4% monthly 
surcharge for the next fifty years, and findings from other states that conversions would cost each 
customer several thousand dollars.   


An estimate of the potential cost impact to Stoughton Utilities customers if a system conversion 
were to be occur was provided, including: 


 A construction-only estimate of $131,000,000 for a conversion of the system within the City 
of Stoughton, which does not include engineering, legal, and obtaining easements, and 
excludes the entire rural distribution system; 


 A potential rate impact of a 27% increase within the first ten years, with continued annual 
increases of approximately 3% for the following 30 years; 


 A potential annual increase of $355 for residential customers, $10,270 for commercial CP-
1 customers, and $157,760 for industrial customers; 


 The rate impact on rural customers, who constitute over 25% of Stoughton Utilities customer 
base yet are excluded from the project scope, may result in a special rate; 


 Regulatory considerations, including Wisconsin Public Service Commission PSC 130.03 
prohibiting municipal regulations requiring ratepayer-funded underground facilities for 
aesthetic reasons, and PSC 112.05 requiring PSC approval of the construction of electric 
utility facilities. 


Discussion followed.  Alderperson Regina Hirsch requested that the information presented to the 
committee also be presented to the Stoughton Common Council at a future meeting. 


Stoughton Utilities personnel status update:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed 
recent personnel changes effective May 27, 2018, including the promotion of Kent Thompson to 
the position of Water System Supervisor, the promotion of Bryce Sime to the position of Electric 
System Supervisor, and the promotion of Tony Wieczorek to the position of Lead Journeyman 
Lineman.  Discussion followed. 


Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2017 Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the 2017 
CMAR.  Annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form (eCMAR) is required to be completed no 
later than June 30.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Regina Hirsch, the motion 
seconded by Citizen Member Kym Ackerman, to approve the 2017 Compliance Maintenance 
Annual Report and recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to 
the Stoughton Common Council on June 26, 2018.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 18, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  3 


 


Utilities Committee future agenda items:  Staff informed the committee that upcoming topics 
include governance, employee succession planning, and a presentation from WPPI Energy Senior 
Vice President of Member Services and Business Strategy Tom Paque.  Committee members 
requested future items include a discussion on lead service replacements, and a discussion about 
a partnership with the RDA to create a renewable energy showcase in the riverfront redevelopment 
project. 


Tour of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Building:  Stoughton Utilities staff invited the 
committee members to participate in a tour of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Building 
immediately following the meeting.  Discussion followed. 


Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member John Kallas, the motion seconded by Citizen Member 
Kym Ackerman, to adjourn the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:27 p.m.  The 
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


The tour of the Stoughton Utilities Administration Building did not occur due to committee members 
having other commitments. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







City of Stoughton 
Minutes of the Food Pantry Committee 


 


Date/ Time: April 19, 2018 
Location:  Hall of Fame Room 
Members :   Mike Heger, Judy Olson, Karol Castle, Amy Winters, Sandy Fleming 
Absent:  None 
Staff:  Kelli Krcma, Mayor Swadley, Lisa Aide, Tammy LaBorde 
Guests:  None 
 


Call to Order: 


Mike Heger called the meeting to order at 1:00pm 


Communications: 


Mike was invited to talk to the Stoughton Area Community Foundation earlier this week.  The 


foundation gave the Food Pantry a grant which paid for the holiday meal vouchers in 2017.  Mike 


thanked them for the grant and spoke about the mission of the Food Pantry. 


Approval of the Minutes of the February 22, 2018 meeting: 


Karol moved to approve the minutes and Judy seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 


Review of finances for 2017.  Discussion and possible action on budget: 


Mike stated that more money was spent last month but the fund balance remains in good shape. There 


has been a slight decrease in usage of the pantry.  Financially the pantry continues to do well because of 


large donations and decreased expenses.  The pantry has increased the amount of food offered to 


clients but is capable of doing far more.  The question was asked if clients know how to use the food 


they get, including proper handling/storing/thawing/cooking methods? Some ideas for changes: 


 Purchase ink and paper for copier 


 Implement higher nutritional value items (which tend to be higher cost) 


 Pantry has an overabundance of cookies/snacks, need to increase the distribution of these items 


 Balance out items based on family size (see below). 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Pantry Items Quantities Family Size  Proposed Changes Family Size 







           


           


 


  1-
2 


  3-
4 


  5-
6 


 7-
8    1-2   3-4   5-6  7-8  


Saltine Crackers 1 1 2 2  no change    


Jelly 1 1 1 1  1 1 2 2  
Peanut Butter 1 1 2 2  1 2 3 3  
Pancake Mix 1 1 2 2  no change    


Pancake Syrup 1 1 1 2  no change    


Soup 2 per family member  no change    


Vegetable 4 8 10 10  no change    


Ramen Noodles 2 per family member  no change    


Rice/Potatoes 1 1 1 2  1 2 2 3  
Mac and Cheese 2 3 4 5  no change    


Fruit 2 3 4 5  no change    


Spaghetti Sauce 1 2 2 4  1 2 3 4  
Juice 1 1 2 2  no change    


Ravioli 1 1 2 2  1 2 3 4  
Pork and Beans 1 1 2 3  1 2 3 4  
Beef Stew or Chicken 
Breast 1 1 2 2  no change    


Jell-O 1 2 3 3  1 2 3 4  
Pudding 1 2 3 3  1 2 3 4  
Corn Muffin Mix 1 1 2 2  no change    


Spaghetti Noodles 1 2 4 4  no change    


Sides - Potato /Rice/Pasta 1 2 2 2  1 2 3 4  
Tuna 2 3 3 3  2 3 3 4  
Bar Soap 1 1 2 2  no change    


Toilet Paper 2 4 4 4  no change    


Cereal 1 2 2 3  1 2 3 4  
Individual Snack 1 per family member   2 per family member 


Large Snack 1 per family    1 2 3 3  
Pick 3 3 per family   no change    


Milk 2 3 3 3  2 3 3 4  
Eggs 1 2 2 2  1 2 3 3  
Cheese 1 per family   1 1 2 2  
Yogurt 2 per family member  no change    


Butter/Margarine 2 sticks butter or 4 margarine no change    


Hot Dogs 1 1 1 2  1 2 3 3  
Meat 2 2 3 3  2 2 3 4  


 


 







Amy made a motion, seconded by Karol, to adopt this list as written.  All voted in favor. 


Amy made a motion, seconded by Mike, to put together a sub-committee to devise a point system for 


meat and tuna to be implemented as soon as practicable.  All voted in favor.   


An update on the Friends group was provided. The creation of a Friends group is to be able to work with 


Second Harvest by being a separate 501c3 organization.  There are a couple of concerns with this: one, 


what is the public perception of donations to the food pantry and how is that money spent; two, the 


public records/open meeting laws and how that applies to a Friends group; three, how to handle the 


flow of money (donations) from the Food Pantry to the Friends group in order to pay for items from 


Second Harvest.  There was some discussion with Lisa and Tammy from the Finance Department.  They 


requested a copy of the rules from Second Harvest and the original agreement between the City and the 


Food Pantry. 


Tammy, Lisa and Mayor Swadley left at 2pm. 


Commodity Supplement program for Seniors 60+ 


This is a federal government grant program that will provide free food to clients who are aged 60 and 


older.  The requirement for the income level is 130% of the poverty level (instead of 150% per TEFAP 


requirements) so all current 60+ aged clients will qualify.  The food comes in prepackaged boxes.  Clients 


only need to sign up and pick up their box of food at the Pantry.  All boxes will be delivered to the Food 


Pantry.  This food is a supplement to what is currently distributed, not a replacement.  There is also no 


choice of food involved – the food is prepacked with non-perishable items, although cheese may be 


offered at times.  Each person signed up receives a box (rather than each household).  Food Pantry staff 


will help by providing information on the program to eligible clients.  Others who may not be current 


clients of the food pantry can also sign up to participate.  It was suggested to work with the senior 


center to advertise not only about this program but about the Food Pantry in general. Sandy and Amy 


will work on increased communication about the pantry.  Amy made a motion, seconded by Mike, to 


participate in this program.  All voted in favor.  Mike will work to get the Pantry enrolled.   


 


Consideration and possible action on the addition of evening and/or Saturday hours 


Discussion was held on whether to add evening and/or weekend hours.  Most other pantries do offer 


extended hours.  It was noted that this was tried before and not well used.  The schedule could drop one 


regular weekday and add in one evening a week.  So far the volunteers seem interested in the idea and 


some are available to help during the additional hours.  Amy will do an informal survey of clients and the 


community to get their thoughts.  Mike will find out what volunteers are available and when for any 


additional hours.  One night and one Saturday a month will be chosen and open on a trial basis for at 


least 6 months.   


Consideration of setting up computer software to replace TEFAP and registration forms and computer 


purchase 


Discussion was had about tracking expenses, donations and food purchases, as well as protection of 


staff/volunteers from any future allegations of misconduct.  No action was taken at this time.  Verona 


has software to replace TEFAP forms that will also do auto reporting and end of month tallying.  They 







will share with our Food Pantry at no cost after May 1, when they complete revisions.  Mike made a 


motion, seconded by Karol, to ask Cummins to help purchase a new desktop computer.  All voted in 


favor. 


Discussion on the creation and set up of new website 


Kristi Schultz offered to set up website and provided an outline.  Kelli will talk to the IT department at 


City Hall to see about providing a link on the city’s website to connect to the new Food Pantry site. 


Adjournment and Next Meeting Date: 


There will be a special meeting held on May 21 at 1pm.   


The next regular meeting will be held on June 21 at 1pm.   


The meeting was adjourned at 3:20pm.  Karol made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Sandy, and all 


voted in favor. 


 







City of Stoughton 
Minutes of the Food Pantry Committee 


 


Date/ Time: May 21, 2018 
Location:  Hall of Fame Room 
Members :   Mike Heger, Judy Olson, Karol Castle, Amy Winters, Sandy Fleming 
Absent:  None 
Guests:  Rune Fleming, Sandy’s most adorable grandson 
 


Call to Order: 


Mike Heger called the meeting to order at 1:15pm. 


Discussion and possible action on the creation of a points system 


After doing some research, Amy reported that a points system is hard to implement based on what the 


Pantry gives out.  She suggested that it would be better to simply increase the quantity of food given 


out, based on family size, as was decided at the last meeting.   


Sandy arrived at 1:20pm. 


Mike noted that no complaints have been received from clients about the amount of food they receive. 


It was decided to leave as is for now, with no points system being created. 


Discussion and possible action on increasing food distributed over the summer for families with 
school aged children (5-18) 
Mike talked about the Lunches for Vikings program.  In 2017 approximately 180 lunches were given out 
per week, with 3 distribution sites.  In 2018 they hope to increase the amount of lunches distributed and 
are relocating one of the distribution sites to include Bay View Heights.  Mike worked out an 
arrangement with CAC to get free bread and snacks for the lunch program.  He will work with the 
coordinator of the lunch program to arrange pick up and/or delivery of this food.  In addition, the pantry 
will be increasing the amount of food given out to families with school-aged children like was done last 
year.  Items to be increased for the months of June, July and August are: 


 Peanut butter 


 Jelly 


 Cereal 


 Milk 


 Tuna 


 Bread 


 Crackers 


 Snacks 
 
 Review plans for senior food box program – review forms, procedures and who to contact 
Mike reviewed this program for clients who are aged 60 and over.  He explained the forms that will need 
to be filled out in order to participate in this program.  Clients can designate two other people to act as 
proxy and to pick up the food box on their behalf.  As a reminder this is a supplemental and voluntary 
program.  The boxes of food will come during the first week of the month beginning July 1, so client sign 
up can happen now.  The Senior Center offered to be a pick up site as well.  Clients have stated that they 







would feel less stigma by going to the senior center rather than the food pantry.  It is possible that the 
boxes of food could also be delivered with Meals on Wheels.  Mike will contact the Methodist Food 
Pantry so that they can let their clients know as well.  Once clients start signing up, Mike will keep track 
and will order boxes at the end of the month by contacting Dawn at CAC. Mike will email the volunteers 
to let them know the process for signing up the clients.   
 
Discussion and possible action on the addition of weekday evening and Saturday hours 
Mike notified the volunteers about the addition of hours.  Nine people have volunteered to work 
evenings and/or weekends.  Currently, the food pantry is open 23 hours a week, which is more than any 
other pantry in the county.  We could reduce day time hours, even eliminate one or two days, to 
accommodate the extra evening and weekend hours.  Amy did an informal survey on Facebook and 
received a lot of positive response for the possibility of new hours.   
Judy and Karol will work to come up with an updated schedule, and report back at the next meeting.   
 
Update on computerization of the pantry 
Mike donated a software update to the pantry computer.  Verona will also be giving the pantry software 
for tracking and will even send someone over to get it set up. 
Jim Alonzo and Cummins have allotted $500 for the purchase of a new computer.  Their committee will 
meet to approve the purchase, Jim will pick up and Mike will install the software.  We will need 
volunteers to input the current data into the tracking system.  The hope is to have this complete by the 
first week of June, and be up and running by the first of July. 
 
Miscellaneous 
The pantry is getting too much in donations of white bread from Kroger.  It is way more than can be 
distributed to the clients.  Mike asked them to stop donating it, especially as the pantry can get healthier 
bread from CAC.  There was some confusion over whether the refusal of this donation would cause 
problems with receiving other donations from Kroger.  Mike will stop in and talk to the manager and 
explain the situation. 
 
501c3 status for Friends group – The board has decided that it is not necessary to pursue a relationship 
with Second Harvest at this time. However, it would be nice to have the friends group with non-profit 
status to be able to obtain grants and other discounts.  The friends group will move forward with filing 
paperwork to obtain status as a 501c3.   
 
Adjournment 
Mike made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Amy.  Meeting adjourned at 2:50pm.   
 
The next meeting will be held on June 21 at 1pm. 
 







 


 


STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 


MEETING MINUTES 


June 20, 2018 @ 6:30 P.M. 


CARNEGIE ROOM, STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 


 


PRESENT: Ken Axe, Sandra Black, Sid Boersma, City Council Representative; Heather Danielson; Jeff 


Fimreite, Stoughton Area School District Representative; Petra Horst, Library Board President; Jean Ligocki; 


Mike Vienneau, Library Board Vice-President  


 


ABSENT: Linda Schaefer 


 


ALSO PRESENT: Richard MacDonald, Library Director; Sam Baughn 


 


I. Call to Order by President Petra Horst ~ President Horst called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. President 


Horst welcomed new Library Board member Ken Axe, and introductions were made. 


 


II. Review of Agenda ~ It was agreed by consensus to move Item VIII to immediately after Item II. 


 


[Ligocki arrived at 6:36 p.m.] 


 


VIII. Board In-Service: Sarah Bukrey, Library Circulation Supervisor 


Bukrey shared information about the use of Square to accept credit and debit card payments at the 


Circulation desk. She spoke about the history of obtaining Square, staff training, costs, ease of use, and about the 


lack of need for a printer. Bukrey also shared information about the self-check machines, Craft Club, Instagram, 


and showed samples of Shibori tie-dying. 


Boersma asked about possible upcoming innovations. Bukrey talked about RFID and automatic sorters for 


returned items. 


Boersma then asked if there were any things the library should be doing but is not. Bukrey replied that she 


felt that we seem to be offering what we should, and mentioned bike locks and charging cords. 


 


III. Review/Approval of Minutes of May 16, 2018 ~ It was moved by Ligocki and seconded by Vienneau to 


approve the minutes as corrected. Motion carried 8-0. 


 


IV. Recognition Opportunities ~ President Horst thanked Sam Baughn for his service as the first student 


representative on the Library Board. Director MacDonald mentioned the Stoughton Optimist Club and an 


anonymous donor for next time.  


 


V. Public Comment Period (limited to no longer than 5 minutes) 


 No members of the public shared comments. 


 


VI. Review/Discussion of Correspondence 


MacDonald shared communications about book group compliments, appreciation for numbers on teen series 


books, and about two classes Sarah Monette had completed. 


 


VII. Education Updates 


 Ligocki spoke about libraries as healing environments, shared examples, and talked about an article  titled, 


“Being There: The Library As Place” from the Journal of the Medical Library Association. MacDonald will 


email the article to the Library Board.  


 


IX. Review/Approval of Financial Statements for May 2018  ~ MacDonald presented. 


 A. Fund 215. Moved by Black, second by Fimreite, to approve the May 2018 financial statements for Fund 


215 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


 B. Fund 217. Moved by Boersma, second by Vienneau, to approve the May 2018 financial statements for 


Fund 217 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 







 C. Stoughton Area Community Foundation. The Board reviewed the financial statements for the SACF's 


pass-through account for the Library, which were accepted by consensus. 


 


X. Review/Approval of Bills for June 2018 ~ MacDonald presented. 


A. Fund 215. Moved by Black, second by Ligocki, to approve the June 2018 bills for Fund 215 as 


presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


B. Fund 217. Moved by Black, second by Fimreite, to approve the June 2018 bills for Fund 217 as 


presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


 


XI. Director's Report  


A. Statistics for May 2018 ~ MacDonald reviewed the statistics with the addition of  statistics for the May 


Memory Café, which had evidently been forgotten. 


B. Administration report 


In addition to the written report, MacDonald pointed out a sampling of new fiction; shared 


information about “Coffee with a Reporter;” reported that Library Board members may use their 


personal emails when for Library Board correspondence; reported that there will only be one artist at 


the Library for this year’s Art Walk; updated the Board on the progress for obtaining online access to 


the timesheets; and shared a letter from 1939 written by sixth grader Stella Dalsoren from Sunnyside 


School in Stoughton. 


 


XII. Committee Reports 


A. Development: Met June 4 – Danielson and Ligocki reported about progress on new planned giving 


brochure; the water bottles for the Art Walk, and other Art Walk activities. 


B. Finance: Did not meet and needs to schedule a meeting. MacDonald will attend to this via email. 


C. Personnel: Did not meet. Needs to schedule a meeting. MacDonald will attend to this via email. 


D. Planning: Met June 13 – Vienneau reported on the work with Russell Consulting which includes a 


random community survey that would be mailed. Boersma asked about inclusion of the surrounding 


towns, which is planned. Boersma also asked about an open-house event to launch the survey, which is 


not planned; but perhaps will be after the results are gathered to facilitate the organization of focus 


groups. 


E. Policies: Met June 19 – Black reported on the committee’s work on what has been called the “Pandemic 


Policy” and planned work on the Electronic Communications Policy. 


 


XIII. Friends of the Library Report  


Black reported that the latest booksale made less money than some sales, but more books were sold or 


distributed afterward. She also reported that the Friends will not be doing anything for the Art Walk. 


 


XIV. Old Business 


A. Election process for Library Board officers 


This item was discussed. It was moved by Fimreite and seconded by Axe to accept the proposed By-


Laws amendment with the addition of the words, “from the Board” in the sentence, “A nominating 


committee from the Board will be appointed…” Motion carried 8-0. 


B. Term limits for Library Board officers 


The Board discussed this issue, including past practice, and the use of a nominating committee vs. the 


potential roles of an executive committee. Ligocki encouraged the Policies Committee to consider the use of 


an executive committee. Baughn also asked about his re-appointment as student representative to the Board; 


President Horst replied that he would have to re-apply. 


 It was moved by Fimreite and seconded by Vienneau to accept the proposed By-Laws amendment to 


limit the terms of Library Board officers to two years. Motion carried 8-0. 


 


XV. New Business 


A. Director’s goals 


President Horst explained to the Board the origin of the goals that were presented to MacDonald. 


Discussion followed and included a question about past practice. It was the consensus of the Board that 


MacDonald share information about progress on his goals with the Personnel Committee at a meeting to be 


scheduled in July, after which they would be shared with the entire Board.  







B. Summary of Sunday hours program  ~ MacDonald reviewed the statistics. Discussion followed. 


C. Art Walk Day and request for Library Board volunteers (July 21, 9:00 am - 4:00 pm) 


Ligocki, as a member of the Development Committee, asked for volunteers to staff a table at which 


Library Board members would engage with the public to encourage people to express appreciation of the 


Stoughton Public Library, receive donations, give out water bottles (see below), and distribute Libraries 


Transform literature (also below). Discussion followed. Ligocki passed around a sign-up sheet. 


D. Request for undesignated funds to purchase water bottles 


Speaking for the Development Committee, Danielson explained that during the Art Walk, the plan is to 


give people a water bottle as a gift for a donation of $20 or more. Danielson explained why water bottles, 


shared cost information, and spoke about the revised giving brochure. 


It was moved by Danielson and seconded by Black to approve spending up to $500 from the Library 217 


Undesignated funds for this purchase. Motion carried 8-0. 


E. Request for undesignated funds to purchase Libraries Transform materials 


Ligocki shared information about the American Library Association’s Libraries Transform initiative, about 


promotional materials that are available, and how they could be used during the Art Walk. MacDonald 


distributed some promotional bookmarks from the program. Discussion followed. 


It was moved by Ligocki and seconded by Axe to spend up to $50 from the Library 217 Undesignated 


funds for the purchase of such promotional materials. Motion carried 8-0. 


F. Authorization of funds transfer not to exceed $4,250 from account 217 to appropriate budget lines, for 


Library intern program  


MacDonald reviewed the grant funding for the intern and said that the Board authorized a similar transfer 


after the first half of the intern program. He also reported that not all the intern hours were used, so the full 


amount would not be necessary at this time. Any unspent grant money for this could be used to help fund the 


next intern. Discussion followed. 


It was moved by Boersma and seconded by Vienneau to authorize a transfer of money not to exceed 


$4,250 from the Library 217 Designated account to cover the costs incurred for the intern from January 


through May of this year. Motion carried 8-0. 


G. Authorization for use of undesignated funds for hosting October Chamber of Commerce Lunch and 


Learn  


MacDonald explained the history of the Library hosting Chamber Lunch and Learns. Discussion 


followed. 


It was moved by Boersma and seconded by Danielson to authorize a transfer of money not to exceed 


$400 from the Library 217 Undesignated account to host the October 22 Chamber Lunch and Learn at the 


Fire Station Training Room. Motion carried 8-0. 


H. Assignment of Library Board committees  


President Horst reviewed the upcoming committee assignments and discussion followed. One more 


person is needed for the Planning Committee, and Horst requested that someone volunteer by the time of the 


next Library Board meeting (July 18): 


o Ad hoc Development: Danielson (chair), Horst, Ligocki  


o Finance: Schaefer (chair), Boersma, Horst 


o Personnel: Horst (chair), Fimreite, Axe 


o Planning: Vienneau (chair), Ligocki, __________ 


o Policies: Black (chair), Axe, Schaefer 


o Friends: Black 


 


XVI. Pending Agenda Items 


A. Method for re-appointment of student trustees  


B. Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure by Alice Sturgis 


C. Tour of High School Fab Lab 


 


XVII. Adjournment  


 At 8:41 p.m. it was moved by Ligocki and seconded by Vienneau to adjourn. Motion carried 7-1 with 


Boersma voting against.  


 


NEXT REGULAR MEETING: July 18, 2018 


 





		01-Planning Minutes  6-11-18.pdf

		02-River and Trails Task Force Minutes 5-7-18.pdf

		03-Landmarks Minutes 6-14-18.pdf

		04-Utilites Committee 6-18-2018.pdf

		05-FP 4-19-18.pdf

		06-FP 5-21-18.pdf

		07-2018 06 20 Library Board Minutes.pdf






 


 


     


 


 


 


 


 


 


LEASE AGREEMENT 


 


 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____  day of _________, 2008,  


by and between the CITY OF STOUGHTON, a municipal corporation of Dane County 


Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the City, and the STOUGHTON JUNIOR FAIR 


ASSOCIATION, a Wisconsin non-profit corporation of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, and hereinafter referred to as the Junior Fair, 


 


WITNESSETH 


 WHEREAS, the Stoughton Junior Fair Association is a non-profit organization 


created for the purpose of employing and conducting agricultural exhibitions, fairs, and 


shows to encourage the development of better agriculture and horticulture products 


through a system of awards, to conduct agriculture and horticulture exhibitions, so as to 


create and maintain a harmonious association between urban and rural citizens, by 


offering an annual exhibition and entertainment in Mandt Park located in the City of 


Stoughton; and, 


  


 WHEREAS, the Stoughton Junior Fair has been offering such entertainment since 


1925, and during such time has maintained and paid for certain structures located in said 


Mandt Park, together with improvements to the real estate such as landscaping, etc.; and, 


 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton and the Junior Fair 


Association wish to cooperate so as to provide the fullest development and expansion of 


said Mandt Park and to utilize the building and assets located therein to the best 


advantage; and, 


 


 WHEREAS, the Junior Fair has constructed and paid for the buildings and upon 


which they pay all Property insurance premiums; and, 


 


 WHEREAS, the City and the Junior Fair desire to clarify and document the City’s 


continuing ownership of the buildings and structures referred to in this Agreement and 


the terms of the City’s leasing of said buildings and structures to the Junior Fair, by 


amendment and extension of the lease agreement executed between the parties dated 


March 22, 2005. 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration and the mutual 


promises and agreements of the parties, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


  The City does hereby let to the Junior Fair the premises known and described as 


follows: The unplatted parcel of land lying in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, and generally known as Mandt Park, except those parts of such land as are 


presently used and occupied by the Wastewater Treatment Facility, by electric transfer 







 


 


     


 


 


distribution lines, by water and sewer mains, and such lands reserved for future 


expansion of the Wastewater Plant. Also, excepting, therefrom the site sold to the 


Stoughton Area School District, the parcel on which the Mandt Community Center is 


located, and the City Band Shell site.  
 


Along with the buildings and structures located on the above-described parcel, including 


the following: 


 


Building  Dimensions 


Dairy Barn   202x42 


Beef Barn   202x42 


Poultry/Rabbit  100x60 


Storage shed   18x34 


Display building  32x112 


Show arena   100X165 


Swine Barn   50x100 


Grandstand   1362 capacity 
 


Collectively the leased parcel of land and the buildings and structures are referred 


to herein as the “premises.” 


 


Said premises are to be used for the purpose of conducting and operating a 


festival celebration of such scope and character as heretofore established, at a 


time established by the Board of Directors of the Junior Fair, provided, however, 


that such time shall not conflict with any previously scheduled activity at said 


Mandt Park. 


 


2. This agreement shall commence as of __________, 2008, and extend to midnight 


on _________, 2018; it being understood that throughout a two-week period of 


each year, as the Junior Fair shall select, it shall have complete, absolute and 


exclusive control and use of the premises thereto for the operation of such 


festival, except for the Roadside Diamond that shall be available for City use ten 


days after the start of the two week period. (Weather permitting) 


 


3. The Junior Fair agrees to pay the City as and for the rental of said premises the 


sum of One Dollar ($1.00) per year, in advance on the first day of June of each 


year, during the term hereof. 


 


4.  It is the intent of the City and Junior Fair, that this agreement be of a long term 


nature. As long as the Junior Fair operations at Mandt Park continue to be 


economically viable, and as long as the City has no urgent need in the immediate 


future, it is expected this agreement will continue to be renewed every ten years, 


subject to any items renegotiated. However, to insure the Cities’ right to convert 


the leased premises to its’ own use should the need arise, this lease and agreement 


shall be deemed automatically renewed and extended upon all covenants and 


conditions herein set forth for an additional term to expire on                     , 2018, 


unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal by ___________, 







 


 


     


 


 


20018. Should the City elect to not renew this lease, compensation would be 


provided the Junior Fair based on an appraisal of the then current value of the 


buildings involved. Should the Junior Fair elect to discontinue its annual event on 


the premises, it shall be allowed up to one year to arrange for the dismantling and 


removal of its buildings, except buildings which the City desires to retain on the 


site.  


 


5. Subsequent to the execution of this agreement, the Junior Fair shall make repairs, 


alterations, and otherwise provide for the construction of new buildings on the 


premises in order to make the premises suitable for the Junior Fair purposes.  


Such alterations, remodeling, and new construction, shall be in accordance with 


plans prepared by the Junior Fair and approved by the City.  The City agrees that 


its approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


 


6.  As all buildings and other structures located upon the premises have been erected, 


paid for and maintained by the Junior Fair, it agrees, at its own cost and expense, 


to keep said buildings and other structures in good repair, including all buildings 


and structures it may hereafter erect.  The Junior Fair shall pay utility charges to 


serve the premises. 


 


  For as long as the Junior Fair shall continue to be an annual event operated by the 


Junior Fair Board, the Board shall have full control, authority and discretion to 


sub-lease the buildings and other structures erected and paid for solely by them 


and located on the premises to other parties for storage or other purposes. An 


exception to this exclusive Junior Fair control shall exist for any Grandstand 


facility now existing, or newly constructed. Any such Grandstand will be 


available for Community and City recreation activities, outside of the two week 


Junior Fair event as described elsewhere in this agreement, and shall not be rented 


or leased to other parties by the Junior Fair. The Junior Fair is responsible for the 


protection of all buildings including the Grandstand. The Junior Fair shall require 


all parties renting buildings for storage or other purposes to provide proof of 


insurance (broad form-comprehensive and general liability), with a certificate 


listing the City of Stoughton as an additional named insured, in an amount of at 


least $500,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate, as well as appropriate 


Physical damage coverage for any items stored in or on the premises. The Junior 


Fair shall be entitled to receive and retain such rentals as the same is necessary for 


the payment of erection, maintenance or other repair costs thereof, which they 


have assumed hereunder.  Further, the Junior Fair agrees that whenever such 


buildings or other structures are available and not otherwise occupied or leased, 


the City may have during the balance of said year, the right to use said buildings 


and other structures located thereon for City purposes without costs or other 


charge.  To this end, the Junior Fair agrees to use reasonable discretion and its 


best efforts to provide necessary space for general municipal functions, but 


specifically reserves the right to have the City and all other persons transfer such 


property to other buildings, so as to best afford reasonably adequate storage and 


protection throughout the different seasons of the year.   







 


 


     


 


 


8.  The Junior Fair shall be responsible for cleaning the park of all litter and debris, 


and repairing any damage created as a result of its annual festival.  All litter and 


debris remaining on the grounds after the annual festival shall be removed within 


two days after the close of said festival.  In addition, the Junior Fair agrees that 


upon request of the City, it shall provide containers for the purpose of receiving 


and collecting all straw, manure, and animal bedding in or in close proximity to 


the buildings housing animals.  The parties hereto acknowledge that the City may, 


if possible, make its equipment  available to the Junior Fair for the purpose of 


cleaning the premises and removing debris there from.  The City agrees to 


continue such cooperating with respect to equipment to the extent possible, except 


for prior demands which may require the presence of city equipment  at other 


locations.  In any event, the responsibility for the cleaning and removing of debris 


and repairing damage, shall remain with the Fair Board. 


 


9.  IT IS FURTHER AGREED that there shall be no change in the general plan, 


layout, construction, reconstruction or rebuilding of the grounds or buildings 


unless the same is agreed to by both parties. 


 


10.  IT IS FURTHER AGREED that in order to insure the best utilization of such 


facilities by all groups or organizations of the City, and the proper scheduling of 


events or games to avoid conflict, all applications for use of such grounds or 


facilities shall be made to the City Recreation Director who shall coordinate and 


facilitate with reasonable promptness approval of said requests. Said scheduling  


as to the use of such grounds and facilities shall insure the Junior Fair the 


complete, absolute and exclusive occupancy of all grounds and buildings during 


the two-week period for setting up, operating and cleaning up the grounds for the 


festival engagement.  No other event, performance, game or business enterprise or 


other attraction which might conflict or interfere with activities or profitable 


operation of the festival engagement, except the Roadside Diamond with approval 


of the Junior Fair, will be permitted to be operated during the Junior Fair period. 


 


11.  The City shall maintain all fences and streets installed by the City in said park 


area, and will mow and trim grassy areas. 


 


 12. The City shall provide property insurance for the buildings, but the Junior Fair 


shall reimburse the City for the cost of premiums for said property insurance . The 


Junior Fair shall also obtain special liability coverage, which is primary and 


noncontributing, during the two-week period it has exclusive control of said 


premises.  The City shall not be responsible for any damage which might result 


from the use of the premises by the Junior Fair.  The Junior Fair hereby 


indemnifies the City from any and all liability, claims, and damages which may 


result from use of the premises. 


 


 13. In case of damage by fire, tornado, windstorm, or other casualty to the premises, 


the proceeds of the above mentioned insurance policies shall be used for the 


restoration of the premises.  The restoration of such buildings together with the 







 


 


     


 


 


reconstruction and planning therefor shall be mutually agreed upon by the City 


and the Junior Fair.  The Junior Fair shall be solely responsible for the deductible 


or uninsured portion of all losses. 


 


 14. The Junior Fair agrees that any construction, maintenance, or other repairs thereof 


shall be in compliance with the statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations of the 


City of Stoughton, Dane County, State of Wisconsin, and that the operation of 


said Junior Fair shall, at all times, be in compliance with the statutes, ordinances, 


rules and regulations of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, and State of 


Wisconsin, having jurisdiction as to the premises or operation. 


 


 15. The Junior Fair agrees to surrender the leased premises at the end of the term in as 


good repair and condition as they were at the commencement of the term. 


 


 16. In the event  the Junior Fair defaults in the performance of any of the covenants of 


this lease and fails to correct such default within twenty (20) days after notice by 


the City, or if the Junior Fair files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or is 


adjudicated in bankruptcy, the City has the option to terminate this lease on ten 


(10) days notice in writing by registered mail addressed to the Junior fair. 


 


 17. The Junior Fair agrees to observe such rules and regulations as may be required 


by the Property insurance companies which insure the premises and to not act so 


as to raise or unreasonably increase the rates of insurance affecting the premises 


herein.  The Junior Fair will use reasonable care to preserve the premises from 


damage.  The Junior Fair shall permit the City, at reasonable times and during 


business hours, to enter Fair Board buildings for the purposes of inspection. 


 


18. In the event a dispute shall arise between the parties hereto which cannot be 


resolved by mutual agreement, the parties hereto agree to enter into voluntary 


mediation of the dispute. Upon the written request of either party to mediate a 


disagreement which may arise between the parties, the parties within ten days of 


the giving of such written request shall mutually select an individual mediator.  


The mediator shall hold a hearing upon at least ten days (10) written notice to 


both parties. In the event mediation does not resolve the dispute, each party 


reserves the right to pursue any available legal remedies. 


 


19. This Agreement shall supersede and replace the Lease Agreement executed 


between the parties dated March 22, 2005. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the 


day and year first above written. 


 


     CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


Date: __________________  By_________________________________ 


 







 


 


     


 


 


Date: __________________  By_________________________________ 


 


Date:___________________              By_________________________________ 


     


 


 


 


                                                            STOUGHTON FAIR BOARD 


 


 


 


Date: __________________  By_________________________________ 


 


Date: __________________  By_________________________________ 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


AGREEMENT 


THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of ______________,  2018, by 


and between the CITY OF STOUGHTON, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”), and 


THE STOUGHTON FAIR ASSOCIATION, INC., a Wisconsin non-stock corporation (the 


“Fair”). 


WITNESSETH 


A. The Fair is a non-profit organization that creates agricultural and horticultural 


educational exhibitions, and entertainment. 


B. Since 1925, the Fair has held an annual festival at Mandt Park in the City of 


Stoughton. The City is currently leasing to the Fair portions of Mandt Park pursuant to that certain 


Lease Agreement between the City and the Stoughton Junior Fair Association (now known as The 


Stoughton Fair Association, Inc.) dated October 8, 2008 (the “Lease”) 


C. Mandt Park is owned by the City of Stoughton. 


D. The Fair has paid for and maintained certain buildings located in Mandt Park.  


E. The Annual Fair is beneficial to the City and its residents. The City wishes to 


encourage the Fair’s use of Mandt Park as provided in this Agreement. 


F. The City and the Fair wish to amend and restate their agreement as provided herein. 


THEREFORE, the City and the Fair agree to use of the Premises on the following terms 


and conditions: 


1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to the terms used in this 


Agreement: 


(a) Premises. The term “Premises” means the unplatted parcel of land lying in 


the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, and generally known as Mandt Park as more 


particularly depicted by the map attached hereto as Exhibit A. The locations of the following 


features are as shown on Exhibit A: Grandstand, Road Side Diamond, Troll Beach, the Skate Park, 


Wastewater Treatment Facility, City Band Shell Site, Pickelball Court, Fourth St. Lot, Pavilion, 


Playground, and Mandt Community Center. 


(b) Buildings. The term “Buildings” means the following buildings located on 


the Premises: 







-2- 


Building   Dimensions 


Dairy Barn   202x42 


Beef Barn   202x42 


Poultry/Rabbit   100x60 


Storage Shed   18x34 


Display Building  32x112 


Show Arena   100x165 


Swine Barn   50x100 


Bathroom/Storage   25x25 


Wash Rack 


(c) Annual Fair. The term “Annual Fair” shall mean a two (2) week period that 


includes the dates selected by the Fair for its annual festival in Mandt Park as scheduled annually 


by the Fair. The Fair shall have the discretion to select the dates of its festival, and the Parties shall 


agree as to which additional days comprise the two week Annual Fair. 


2. Scope of Use. 


(a) Except as otherwise provided, during the Annual Fair, the Premises may be 


used by the Fair for conducting and operating a festival of the same scope and character as past 


festivals conducted by the Fair. Except as provided herein, during the Annual Fair, the Fair shall 


have complete, absolute, and exclusive control and use of the Premises. Operation of the Annual 


Fair shall, at all times, be in compliance with the statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations of all 


applicable jurisdictions. The Fair is responsible for obtaining any necessary licenses and permits. 


(b) During the Annual Fair, no event, performance, game, business enterprise, 


or other attraction which might conflict or interfere with activities or profitable operation of the 


festival engagement will be permitted to be operated at the Buildings, Roadside Diamond and 


Grandstand; provided, however, the Fair’s right to exclusive use of the Roadside Diamond shall 


be for ten (10) days following the start of the Annual Fair. The Fair acknowledges that the 


Wastewater Treatment Facility, School Bus Parking Lot, Electric Transport Distribution Lines, 


Mandt Community Center, Troll Beach, the Skate Park, Pavilion, the Pickelball Court and, except 


as agreed by the Parties, any future building constructed by the City within the Premises are not 


under the Fair’s control even during the Annual Fair.  Although the Pickelball Court will not be 


under the Fair’s control during the Annual Fair, the City agrees that it will be closed to the public 


for ten (10) days following the start of the Annual Fair. During the Annual Fair, the Fair may use 


the Troll Beach Parking lot between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and the close of the festival each 


evening.  


(c) By April 1 of each year of this Agreement, the Fair shall provide the City a 


list of tentatively scheduled events and activities for the Annual Fair. 


(d) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall have control 


over the Premises during times outside of the Annual Fair. The Fair’s control of the Buildings and 


Grandstand shall be as provided in Sections 6 and 7, below. Outside of the Annual Fair, use of the 


Premises shall be scheduled by the City Recreation Director. 







-3- 


3. Term. This Agreement shall commence _____________, 2018 and the initial Term 


shall extend for five (5) years.  This Agreement shall automatically renew at the end of each term 


for up to four (4) additional terms of five (5) years unless either Party gives the other written notice 


of termination at least six (6) months prior to the end of the then current term. If this Agreement 


continues through four (4) additional five (5) year terms, then following the expiration of the final 


term, the the City and the Fair agree to use good faith efforts to negotiate a new agreement. If, 


except for a reason beyond the control of the Fair which prevents the Fair from holding a festival 


in any single year, the Fair no longer holds a festival on the Premises, each Party has the option to 


terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the term, subject to Section 4 below. 


4. Termination. 


(a) If the Fair provides notice that it wishes to terminate the Lease at the end of 


a Term as provided in Section 3 above, the Fair shall have up to one (1) year following the 


expiration of the Term to arrange for the dismantling and removal of the Buildings from the 


Premises at the Fair’s sole cost and expense. If the Fair does not wish to relocate any one or more 


of the Buildings, it shall provide the City the option to retain such Building on site. If the City 


chooses not to exercise this option, the Fair shall remove the Building.     
 


(b) If the City provides notice that it wishes to terminate the Lease at the end of 


a Term as provided in Section 3 above, the City shall pay the Fair for the Buildings at the appraised 


value and the one-half the value of the Grandstand at its appraised value. If the Parties cannot agree 


on an appraiser to value the Buildings, each Party shall choose an appraiser and those chosen 


appraisers shall select a third licensed appraiser who will value the Buildings for purposes of this 


paragraph. 
 


(c) If this Agreement is terminated because the Fair does not hold a festival on 


the Premises during a calendar year, or because of the Fair’s breach of this Agreement, the Fair 


shall have up to one (1) year to arrange for the dismantling and removal of the Buildings from the 


Premises at the Fair’s sole cost and expense. If the Fair does not wish to relocate any one or more 


of the Buildings, it shall provide the City the option to retain such Building on site. If the City 


chooses not to exercise this option, the Fair shall remove the Building. 
 


5. Payment.  As consideration for the rights arising out of this Agreement, the Fair 


shall pay the City the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) on the first business day of June of each year 


during the term of this Agreement. 


6. Buildings. 


(a) The Buildings located on the Premises have been erected, paid for, and 


maintained by the Fair and are under the Fair’s control. The City hereby leases the real property 


on the Premises under the Buildings to the Fair for the term of this Agreement.  


(b) The Fair is responsible for making repairs, alterations, and otherwise 


providing for the upkeep of the Buildings during the term of this Agreement in compliance with 


all applicable laws. Any alterations or remodeling of a Building costing in excess of $5,000 shall 







-4- 


be in accordance with plans prepared by the Fair and approved by the City. The City’s approval 


shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


(c) The Fair shall have the authority to sublease the Buildings to third parties; 


provided, however, that no sublease or agreement may extend beyond the term of this Agreement.  


The Fair shall notify the City of any non-storage sublease. The Fair is responsible for any and all 


costs, fees, or damages arising out of the use of a Building for storage or otherwise by the Fair or 


tenant, licensee, or invitee of the Fair. The Fair hereby releases the City and agrees to indemnify 


the City from any and all liability incurred due to use of the Building.  


7. Grandstand.  The City and the Fair may use the Grandstand at times other than the 


Annual Fair. Rental of the grandstand shall be coordinated by the City and the Fair. 


8. Utilities.  The Fair shall pay for all utility services, including heat, gas, electricity, 


telephone, water and sewer services, if any, for the Buildings, and as necessary to operate the 


Annual Fair. Utility services provided to any separate structures operated exclusively by the City 


under the provisions of this Agreement shall be separately metered and paid for by the City. 


9. Annual Fair Cleaning. The Fair shall be responsible for dismantling the festival, 


cleaning the Premises of all litter and debris, and repairing any damage created as a result of the 


Annual Fair. 


(a) The City’s park maintenance staff will perform a pre-inspection of the 


Premises and document any damage that is evident no more than two (2) days prior to Annual Fair.  


The Fair will be notified of the inspection date and time and may attend.  Any damage that is 


identified during the pre-inspection will be documented and a copy of such documentation sent to 


the Fair. 


(b) The Roadside Diamond will be made playable by the Friday immediately 


following the festival.  The remaining Premises shall be restored within fourteen (14) days after 


the last day of the Annual Fair. The City’s Parks Maintenance Supervisor will notify the Fair of 


the post Annual Fair inspection date and time which they may attend.  The Fair shall have five (5) 


days following this inspection to prepare and send the City a plan of corrective action. 


(c) In the event that the Premises are not restored as required by this Section 


the City may clean and/or repair the Premises. All resulting labor, equipment and material costs 


will be invoiced to the Fair. 


(d) During the Annual Fair, the Fair agrees to provide containment for 


temporary storage of all straw, manure, and animal bedding in or in close proximity to the 


Buildings housing animals prior to removal.  


(e) The Fair will be responsible for restoring and maintaining turf up until 


germination. 







-5- 


10. Insurance. 


(a) The Fair shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining appropriate 


property insurance on the Buildings.  


(b) The Fair agrees to act reasonably so as to not unreasonably increase the 


City’s rates of insurance covering the Premises. 


(c) The Fair shall also obtain special liability coverage, which is primary and 


noncontributing, during the Annual Fair. The City shall be named as an additional insured. 


11. Indemnification.   


(a) The City shall not be responsible for any damage which results from the use 


of the Premises by the Fair. The Fair agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the City from any and 


all liability, claims, and damages which may result from this Agreement or the Fair’s use of the 


Premises. 


(b) The Fair shall not be responsible for any damage which results from the use 


of the Premises by the City. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Fair from any and 


all liability, claims, and damages which may result from the City’s use of the Premises. 


12. Casualty Loss.  In the event of casualty loss to the Premises, any insurance proceeds 


shall be used for the restoration of the Premises. The restoration of the Buildings shall be mutually 


agreed upon by the City and the Fair. The Fair shall be solely responsible for the deductible or 


uninsured portion of all losses to the Buildings. 


13. Default.  In the event the Fair defaults in the performance of any of the covenants 


of this Agreement and fails to correct the default within twenty (20) days after notice by the City, 


or if the Fair files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, the City has the option to terminate this 


Agreement on ten (10) days’ notice in writing by registered mail addressed to the Fair. 


14. Dispute Resolution. In the event a dispute arises between the Parties hereto which 


cannot be resolved by mutual agreement, the Parties agree to enter into voluntary mediation of the 


dispute. Upon the written request of either Party to mediate a disagreement which may arise 


between the Parties, the Parties within ten (10) days of the giving of the written request shall 


mutually select an individual mediator.  The Parties shall share the mediator’s cost.  In the event 


mediation does not resolve the dispute, each Party reserves the right to pursue any available legal 


remedies. 


15. This Agreement shall supersede any previous leases and agreements. 


[Signature Page Follows]  







-6- 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and 


year first above written. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 


 


 


By:        


      Name:       


      Title:       


 


 


THE STOUGHTON FAIR ASSOCIATION, INC. 


 


 


 


By:        


      Name:       


      Title:       


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


A-1 


EXHIBIT A 


DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 


 


 


 


 









		19a-Junior Fair Agreement 2008.pdf

		19b-Fair Agreement 2.27.18.pdf

		19c-20180720104327615.pdf






 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, July 10, 2018 @ 7:00 p.m. 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley and Nicole Wiessinger 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there were 11 alderpersons present. Hirsch was absent and 


excused. Johnson left the meeting at 9:00 p.m.  


 Stormwater Quality Management Plan Presentation by Strand  


 Kettle Park West Phase 2 Concept Presentation by Ron Henshue  


 Mr. Henshue presented options for Phase 2, which included adding more single 


family lots and the use of TIF  


 Duranczyk said that she supports smaller lots, and off-street bike and walking lanes. 


She said that she would not support TIF for a residential area and would like to see 


more parkland dedication.  


 Johnson said that she did not support using TIF money for a residential development 


 Reeves said she likes the idea of single-family residential, but will not support the 


use of TIF for the development.  


 Swadley said that the school district has been declining for several years and the 


council should take a long, hard look at what Phase 2 could be.  


 Bartlett said that he was in favor on the smaller lots. He said that he would be open 


to TIF, but not as much as originally was requested.  


 Johnson said that the City should propose a referendum.  


 


 Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


A.  Police and Fire Commission (4/9/2018), (4/30/2018), Finance Committee (6/12/2018), 


Public Safety Committee (5/23/2018)  


 


Public Comment Period:  


Ryan Schultz, 326 N. Pine St., Janesville, spoke regarding R-127-2018. He asked the council to approve 


his operator license.  


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. June 26, 2018 Council Minutes 


B.  R-125-2018 – Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue 


Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 10-0 with 


Boersma abstaining.  


  


 







 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


   


  


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-126-2018-Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 


for the Coffee Break Festival  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Riley to approve R-126-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper city 


official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to 


the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce for the Coffee Break Festival.  Boersma stated that alcohol was 


not necessary at a coffee festival. Duranczyk agreed that alcohol did not need be served. Laura Trotter 


said that alcohol sales encourage people to stay and enjoy the event through the afternoon. Motion 


carried with 8-3 with Boersma, Johnson and Duranczyk voting ‘no’.  


 


R-127-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue an Operator License to Ryan 


L Schultz  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by O’Connor to approve R-127-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official (s) to issue an Operator License to Ryan L Schultz.  Chief Leck stated that the original 


criminal history had an error. The 4th OWI charge was reduced to a misdemeanor and there was no 


homicide. Schultz said that he attended AA and has not been in trouble since his 4th OWI conviction. 


Motion carried 8-3 with Wiessinger, Boersma and Caravello voting ‘no’.  


 


R-128-2018-Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue an Operator License to 


Danielle Boushea   


 


Motion by Jenson, second by O’Connor to approve R-128-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official (s) to issue an Operator License to Danielle Boushea.  Motion failed on a vote of 0-11.  


 


R-129-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the liquor license renewal 


for Dhwani Lodging, LLC DBA Brickhouse  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Johnson to approve R-129-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official(s) to approve the liquor license renewal for Dhwani Lodging, LLC DBA Brickhouse with the 


contingency that the applicant enter into an agreement with City to reopen by September 1, 2018. 


Motion carried 10-0 with Boersma abstaining.  


 


R-130-2018- Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve and restructure 


the Finance Department combining the City and Utilities finance departments into one centralized 


department implementing the approved attached organizational chart  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-130-2018 authorizing and directing the proper 







 


 


City official(s) to approve and restructure the Finance Department combining the City and Utilities 


finance departments into one centralized department implementing the approved attached organizational 


chart. HR Director Gillingham presented the proposed organizational for the chart. Duranczyk noted that 


the money was available in the undesignated fund balance.  Motion carried 10-0 (Johnson left the 


meeting.)  


 


R-131-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the newly created Finance 


Director/Comptroller position description and grade level  


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Riley to approve R-131-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official(s) to approve the newly created Finance Director/Comptroller position description and grade 


level. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


R-132-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Assistant Finance 


Director/City Treasurer position description with a grade level of 17 and pay rate of $40.00 per hour 


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-132-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official(s) to approve the Assistant Finance Director/City Treasurer position description with a 


grade level of 17 and pay rate of $40.00 per hour. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


R-133-2018- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the promotion of Jamin 


Friedl to the newly approved position of Director of Finance /Comptroller at grade level 21 and with the 


recommended pay rate    *** The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 


19.85(1) (c) for the purposes of considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance 


evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or 


exercises responsibility.*** 


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Boersma to go into closed session at 9:26 p.m. On roll call vote, 


motion carried 10-0. 


 


Motion to open by O’Connor, second by Duranczyk to go into open session at 9:42 p.m. Motion carried 


10-0.  


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Duranczyk to approve R-133-2018 Authorizing and directing the proper 


city official(s) to approve the promotion of Jamin Friedl to the newly approved position of Director of 


Finance /Comptroller at grade level 21 and with the recommended pay rate of $54.79.  Motion carried 


10-0. 


. 


R-134-2018-Authoizing the proper City official(s) to contract outside building inspection services for 


approximately 8 weeks  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-134-2018 Authorizing the proper City official(s) 


to contract outside building inspection services for approximately 8 weeks using $10,000 from 


contingency. Motion carried 11-0. 


 







 


 


Discussion regarding Lifting the Council imposed moratorium on the Kittelson building located 


at 315 E.  Main Street (Presented by Alder Boersma)  


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Duranczyk to lift the Council imposed moratorium on the Kittelson 


Building located at 315 E. Main Street. Majewski said that the moratorium exists because there are 


ordinances that conflicting. He added that until the ordinances are amended, the City cannot lift the 


moratorium. Majewski said that the building is in disrepair and that is a shame. Duranczyk said that the 


council had let this building go for a year and a half and that is too long. Johnson said that the building 


should have never gotten this far in despair.  Bartlett asked what would happen if the moratorium was 


lifted. Dregne said that the application would need to be amended and it would have to go back to 


planning.   


 


Point of order was raised by Riley that the agenda was not properly noticed as it did not say discussion 


and possible action and therefore the item should not be voted on.  Mayor Swadley stated the he thought 


that the agenda item was properly noticed and ruled that the council vote on the item.  Motion by 


O’Connor, second by Duranczyk to affirm the chair’s ruling. Motion failed 3-8 with Boersma, Jenson, 


and Wiessinger voting ‘yes’. 


 


The item will be on the agenda for the July 24, 2018 Council meeting.  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by O’Connor, second by Jenson to second at 9:44 p.m. Motion carried 10-0. 








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-135-2018 


 
Date Introduced:   July 24, 2018 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from the 


following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


REBECCA ARVOLD   STOUGHTON VFW 


KIMBERLY SCHUMACHER  KWIK TRIP 


RENEE BREKKEN    KWIK TRIP 


MELISSA NEWTON     


CHARLES MJ JOHNSON   NAUTI NORSKE 


CHRISTINE DROESSLER   VIKING LANES/TAILGATERS 


 


 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an Operator 


Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 16, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location:   Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
 600 South Fourth Street 
 Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Citizen Member 
John Kallas, Alderperson Pat O’Connor, Mayor Tim Swadley, Alderperson 
Nicole Wiessinger 


Excused: Citizen Member Kym Ackerman  


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, CPA, Stoughton 
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz, P.E., Stoughton Utilities Operations Technician Marty Seffens, WPPI 
Energy Senior Vice President of Member Services and Business Strategy 
Tom Paque, WPPI Energy/Stoughton Utilities Energy Services Manager Cory 
Neeley 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting to order at 5:06 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton 
Utilities Committee consent agenda items.  Discussion followed.   


Former Stoughton Utilities employee Tim Strandlie and his sons Tyler and Ethan were recognized for their 
volunteer landscaping work completed at Water Tower II on Furseth Road. 


Motion by Alderperson Pat O’Connor, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to approve the 
following consent agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report, Draft Minutes 
of the June 18, 2018 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Financial Summary, 
Stoughton Utilities May 2018 Statistical Report, Stoughton Utilities June 2018 Activities Report, Utilities 
Committee Annual Calendar, Communications.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 
Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 
approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report  


 Stoughton Utilities Committee May 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes  


 Stoughton Utilities April 2018 Financial Summary  


 Stoughton Utilities April 2018 Statistical Report 


 Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2017 Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 



bhoops

Highlight







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 308351/VO for check batch: 


308351


EP001624 516 WELLS FARGO BANK6/7/2018  82,025.08


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Renewable 


Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar Credit/WPPI-Buy 


Back Solar Credit/WPPI-Shared 


Savings/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support


/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support+


HC001625 009 WPPI6/28/2018  880,733.10


Gordon Flesch-June Ach/Gordon Flesch-June 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-June Ach/Gordon Flesch-June 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-June Ach/Gordon Flesch-June 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-June Ach/Gordon Flesch-June 


Ach


HC001626 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.6/30/2018  183.71


Charter Comm-June Ach/Charter Comm-June 


Ach/Charter Comm-June Ach/Charter Comm-June 


Ach/Charter Comm-June Ach/Charter Comm-June 


Ach/Charter Comm-June Ach/Charter Comm-June 


Ach


HC001627 547 Charter Communications-Ach6/30/2018  418.78


AT&T-June Ach/AT&T-June Ach/AT&T-June 


Ach/AT&T-June Ach


HC001628 952 AT&T6/30/2018  133.76


Us Cellular - June Ach/Us Cellular - June Ach/Us 


Cellular - June Ach/Us Cellular - June Ach/Us 


Cellular - June Ach/Us Cellular - June Ach/Us 


Cellular - June Ach/Us Cellular - June Ach


HC001629 004 Us Cellular - Ach6/30/2018  766.07


Pitney Bowes-June Ach/Pitney Bowes-June 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-June Ach/Pitney Bowes-June 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-June Ach/Pitney Bowes-June 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-June Ach/Pitney Bowes-June 


Ach


HC001630 318 PITNEY-BOWES INC-PURCHASE POWER6/30/2018  180.00


TDS Metrocom - June Ach/TDS Metrocom - June 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - June Ach/TDS Metrocom - 


June Ach/TDS Metrocom - June Ach/TDS 


Metrocom - June Ach/TDS Metrocom - June 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - June Ach


HC001631 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach6/30/2018  462.69







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


Delta Dental - June Ach/Delta Dental - June 


Ach/Delta Dental - June Ach/Delta Dental - June 


Ach/Delta Dental - June Ach/Delta Dental - June 


Ach


HC001632 001 Delta Dental - Ach6/30/2018  1,053.14


First Data-June Ach/First Data-June Ach/First 


Data-June Ach/First Data-June Ach/First Data-June 


Ach/First Data-June Ach/First Data-June Ach/First 


Data-June Ach


HC001633 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES6/30/2018  30.52


EBC-Flex- June Ach/EBC-Flex- June 


Ach/EBC-Flex- June Ach/EBC-Flex- June 


Ach/EBC-Flex- June Ach/EBC-Flex- June 


Ach/EBC-Flex- June Ach/EBC-Flex- June Ach


HC001634 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach6/30/2018  1,953.61


Alliant Energy - June Ach/Alliant Energy - June 


Ach/Alliant Energy - June Ach/Alliant Energy - June 


Ach/Alliant Energy - June Ach/Alliant Energy - June 


Ach/Alliant Energy - June Ach/Alliant Energy - June 


Ach/Alliant Energy - June Ach/More...


HC001635 003 Alliant Energy - Ach6/30/2018  660.65


Dept of Rev-June Ach/Dept of Rev-June Ach/Dept 


of Rev-June Ach/Dept of Rev-June Ach


HC001636 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach6/30/2018  41,413.43


State Taxes-June Ach/State Taxes-June Ach/State 


Taxes-June Ach/State Taxes-June Ach/State 


Taxes-June Ach/State Taxes-June Ach


HC001637 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach6/30/2018  11,009.60


Federal Taxes-June Ach/Federal Taxes-June 


Ach/Federal Taxes-June Ach/Federal Taxes-June 


Ach/Federal Taxes-June Ach/Federal Taxes-June 


Ach/Federal Taxes-June Ach/Federal Taxes-June 


Ach


HC001638 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach6/30/2018  55,057.72


Client Anaylsis-June Ach/Client Anaylsis-June 


Ach/Client Anaylsis-June Ach/Client Anaylsis-June 


Ach/Client Anaylsis-June Ach/Client Anaylsis-June 


Ach/Client Anaylsis-June Ach/Client Anaylsis-June 


Ach


HC001639 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach6/30/2018  11,221.20


Copier-Customer Refund/Copier-Customer RefundVC025555 886 COPIER & REPAIR LLC6/20/2018 -159.27


WI SCTF-June A Support/WI SCTF-June A SupportCK025637 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/1/2018  40.00


WI SCTF-June A Support/WI SCTF-June A SupportCK025638 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/1/2018  272.00


WI SCTF-June A Support/WI SCTF-June A SupportCK025639 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/1/2018  176.77







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


Harvest Farms-Empbedded Credit/Harvest 


Farms-Empbedded Credit


CK025640 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC6/6/2018  920.00


Pro Electric-West Substation/Pro Electric-West 


Substation


CK025641 276 PRO ELECTRIC, INC.6/6/2018  16,927.75


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-TrenchingCK025642 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC6/6/2018  8,262.50


SHC Sugar Hill-Scada Work/SHC Sugar Hill-Scada 


Work


CK025643 729 SHC SUGAR HILL CONSULTING, LLC6/6/2018  5,238.00


Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/Elster-Me


ters/Elster-Meter Batteries/Elster-Meter 


Batteries/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meter 


Batteries/Elster-Meter 


Batteries/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters


VC025644 774 ELSTER HOLDINGS US6/6/2018  0.00


Solenis-Polymer GBT/Solenis-Polymer GBTCK025645 090 SOLENIS LLC6/6/2018  3,847.20


TCIC-West Sub/TCIC-West Sub/TCIC-West 


Sub/TCIC-West Sub


CK025646 201 TCIC, INC.6/6/2018  239.00


Strand-2018 Utility const/Strand-2018 Utility 


const/Strand-Nordic Ridge/Strand-Nordic 


Ridge/Strand-Nordic Ridge/Strand-Nordic 


Ridge/Strand-Uniroyal Discharge/Strand-Uniroyal 


Discharge/Strand-Nordic Ridge/Strand-Nordic 


Ridge/Strand-Lateral Observations+


CK025647 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.6/6/2018  6,034.62


Seiler-Gps maint.CK025648 485 SEILER INSTRUMENT & MFG. CO. INC.6/6/2018  889.00


Elster-Meter Batteries/Elster-Meter 


Batteries/Elster-void ck 


025644/Elster-correction/Elster-void ck 


025644/Elster-correction/Elster-correction/Elster-cor


rection/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/Elster-void ck 


025644/Elster-void ck 025644/Elster-Meters+


ZC025649 774 ELSTER HOLDINGS US6/6/2018  0.00


Elster-Meter Batteries/Elster-Meter 


Batteries/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/Elster-Meters/


Elster-Meters


CK025650 746 ELSTER SOLUTIONS, LLC6/6/2018  810.00


S Steinle-Customer Refund/S Steinle-Customer 


Refund/S Steinle-Customer Refund/S 


Steinle-Customer Refund/S Steinle-Customer 


Refund/S Steinle-Customer Refund


CK025651 265 SARA STEINLE6/12/2018  276.06







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


Utiltiy Service-Qtr Twr/Utiltiy Service-Qtr TwrCK025652 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC6/12/2018  4,985.50


EFI-Lights/EFI-LightsCK025653 979 EFI INC6/12/2018  750.00


Inkworks-Supplies/Inkworks-Supplies/Inkworks-Ads/


Inkworks-Ads/Inkworks-Supplies/Inkworks-Supplies/


Inkworks-Supplies/Inkworks-Supplies


CK025654 166 INKWORKS, INC.6/12/2018  547.08


Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Supplies/Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Supplies


CK025655 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY6/12/2018  423.85


Rosenbaum-Dirt Limestone/Rosenbaum-Dirt 


Limestone


CK025656 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.6/12/2018  739.64


Amer Test-Testing/Amer Test-TestingCK025657 443 AMERICAN TEST CENTER, INC.6/12/2018  845.00


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/In


sight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel


CK025658 451 INSIGHT FS6/12/2018  838.28


Kunz Gloves-Gloves/Kunz Gloves-Gloves/Kunz 


Gloves-Gloves/Kunz Gloves-Gloves


CK025659 358 KUNZ GLOVE CO., INC.6/12/2018  247.95


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory/R


esco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Re


sco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resc


o-Supplies


CK025660 400 RESCO6/12/2018  56,006.38


WI Dnr-Environmental fees/WI Dnr-Environmental 


fees


CK025661 651 WISCONSIN DNR - ENVIRONMENTAL FEES6/12/2018  6,466.50


WI DNR-Wa Use Fees/WI DNR-Wa Use FeesCK025662 747 WISCONSIN DNR6/12/2018  125.00


A Skinner-Customer Refund/A Skinner-Customer 


Refund/A Skinner-Customer Refund/A 


Skinner-Customer Refund/A Skinner-Customer 


Refund/A Skinner-Customer Refund


CK025663 465 AARON SKINNER6/12/2018  129.09


AC Eng-West Sub work/AC Eng-West Sub workCK025664 496 A.C. ENGINEERING COMPANY6/12/2018  14,325.50


Vining Sparks-Safekeeping/Vining 


Sparks-Safekeeping


CK025665 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.6/12/2018  72.00


L Peterson-Customer Refund/L Peterson-Customer 


Refund


CK025666 637 LINDA PETERSON6/12/2018  14.15







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


R Williamson-Customer Refund/R 


Williamson-Customer Refund


CK025667 871 ROBERT WILLIAMSON6/12/2018  312.48


City Stoton-May Wa Twr Rent/City Stoton-May Wa 


Twr Rent/City Stoton-June Life Ins/City Stoton-June 


Life Ins/City Stoton-Toxicology Svc/City 


Stoton-Toxicology Svc/City Stoton-Toxicology 


Svc/City Stoton-Toxicology Svc/City Stoton-June 


Life Ins/More...


CK025668 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON6/13/2018  35,727.34


Woodward-Ads/Woodward-AdsCK025669 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA6/13/2018  205.20


WI SCTF-June B Support/WI SCTF-June B SupportCK025670 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/14/2018  272.00


WI SCTF-June B Support/WI SCTF-June B SupportCK025671 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/14/2018  40.00


WI SCTF-June B Support/WI SCTF-June B SupportCK025672 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/14/2018  176.77


GLS - May Locates/GLS - May Locates/GLS - May 


Locates/GLS - May Locates/GLS - May 


Locates/GLS - May Locates


CK025673 727 GLS UTILITY LLC6/20/2018  9,152.30


City Stoton-Stormwater/City Stoton-StormwaterCK025674 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON6/20/2018  43,925.51


Diggers Hotline-Locates/Diggers Hotline-LocatesCK025675 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.6/20/2018  2,206.40


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching


CK025676 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC6/20/2018  689.00


J Post-Solar Credit Refund/J Post-Solar Credit 


Refund


CK025677 158 JAMES POST6/20/2018  47.17


B Andre-Solar Credit refund/B Andre-Solar Credit 


refund


CK025678 494 BRUCE ANDRE6/20/2018  146.42


C Cain-Customer Refund/C Cain-Customer 


Refund/C Cain-Customer Refund/C Cain-Customer 


Refund/C Cain-Customer Refund/C Cain-Customer 


Refund/C Cain-Customer Refund/C Cain-Customer 


Refund


CK025679 676 CHRISTOPHER CAIN6/20/2018  454.93


C Harkins-Solar Credit Refund/C Harkins-Solar 


Credit Refund


CK025680 858 CASEY HARKINS6/20/2018  167.22


S Felio-Solar Credit Refund/S Felio-Solar Credit 


Refund


CK025681 964 STEVE FELIO6/20/2018  373.25







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


6 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


Nelson-Curb & Gutter/Nelson-Curb & GutterCK025682 049 NELSON & NELSON CONCRETE6/20/2018  650.00


Crescent-Supplies/Crescent-SuppliesCK025683 134 CRESCENT ELEC. SUPPLY CO.6/20/2018  315.85


Inkworks-Inserts/Inkworks-Inserts/Inkworks-Inserts/I


nkworks-Inserts/Inkworks-Inserts/Inkworks-Inserts/I


nkworks-Inserts/Inkworks-Inserts


CK025684 166 INKWORKS, INC.6/20/2018  337.62


Border States-Inventory/Border States-InventoryCK025685 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY6/20/2018  2,983.68


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Re


sco-Supplies


CK025686 400 RESCO6/20/2018  616.39


Copier-to void ck 025555/Copier-to void ck 


025555/Copier-Customer Refund/Copier-Customer 


Refund


ZC025687 886 COPIER & REPAIR LLC6/20/2018  0.00


A Alquraishi-Customer Refund/A 


Alquraishi-Customer Refund


CK025688 304 AMIR AL-QURAISHI6/20/2018  159.27


G. Fox-Mill Fab/G. Fox-Mill FabCK025689 959 G. FOX & SON, INC.6/27/2018  1,790.00


Power Sys-Geometric support/Power 


Sys-Geometric support


CK025690 041 POWER SYSTEM ENGINEERING, INC.6/27/2018  360.00


WI SCTF-June C Support/WI SCTF-June C 


Support


CK025691 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/27/2018  40.00


WI SCTF-June C Support/WI SCTF-June C 


Support


CK025692 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/27/2018  272.00


Assoc Trust-Rev Bonds/Assoc Trust-Rev 


Bonds/Assoc Trust-Rev Bonds/Assoc Trust-Rev 


Bonds


CK025693 171 ASSOCIATED TRUST CO.-TRUST OPERATIONS6/27/2018  950.00


TCIC, INC.-twr II w sub/TCIC, INC.


-Engineering/TCIC, INC.-Engineering/TCIC, INC.


-twr II w sub/TCIC, INC.-Engineering/TCIC, INC.


-Engineering/TCIC, INC.-Engineering/TCIC, INC.


-Engineering/TCIC, INC.-Engineering/TCIC, INC.


-Engineering/More...


CK025694 201 TCIC, INC.6/27/2018  4,217.62







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


7 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


M Davis-Customer Refund/M Davis-Customer 


Refund/M Davis-Customer Refund/M 


Davis-Customer Refund/M Davis-Customer 


Refund/M Davis-Customer Refund/M 


Davis-Customer Refund/M Davis-Customer Refund


CK025695 064 MARI DAVIS6/27/2018  183.85


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midw


est-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenchin


g/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tr


enching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Mid


west-Trenching+


CK025696 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC6/27/2018  3,507.00


D Haroldson-Customer Refund/D 


Haroldson-Customer Refund


CK025697 697 DANA HAROLDSON6/27/2018  28.57


Wilson-Padlocks/Wilson-PadlocksCK025698 931 THE WILSON BOHANNAN PADLOCK CO.6/27/2018  121.55


K Comstock-Construct ref/K Comstock-Construct 


ref


CK025699 942 KEITH COMSTOCK6/27/2018  354.83


M Lynch-Customer Refund/M Lynch-Customer 


Refund


CK025700 340 MARSHALL LYNCH6/27/2018  27.07


J Van Lare-Customer Refund/J Van Lare-Customer 


Refund


CK025701 558 JACOB & CALLIE VAN LARE6/27/2018  98.29


C Decharms-Customer Refund/C 


Decharms-Customer Refund


CK025702 664 CORY & ADRIENNA DECHARMS6/27/2018  120.08


Azura-Customer Refund/Azura-Customer 


Refund/Azura-Customer Refund/Azura-Customer 


Refund/Azura-Customer Refund/Azura-Customer 


Refund/Azura-Customer Refund/Azura-Customer 


Refund


CK025703 791 AZURA HARBOR HOLDINGS6/27/2018  1,588.01


D Mauer-Customer Refund/D Mauer-Customer 


Refund


CK025704 866 DOUGLAS & LEAH MAUER6/27/2018  135.61


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory/R


esco-Inventory/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Re


sco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies


CK025705 400 RESCO6/27/2018  1,085.74


City Stoton-June Retirement/City Stoton-June 


Retirement/City Stoton-June Retirement/City 


Stoton-June Retirement/City Stoton-June 


Retirement/City Stoton-June Retirement


CK025706 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON6/27/2018  29,239.24







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


8 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


WI SCTF-June C Support/WI SCTF-June C 


Support


CK025707 133 WISCONSIN SCTF6/27/2018  176.77


Border States-Inventory/Border 


States-Inventory/Border States-Inventory/Border 


States-Inventory/Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Supplies


CK025708 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY6/27/2018  1,370.88


Div of Energy-Customer ref/Div of Energy-Customer 


ref


CK025709 851 DIVISION OF ENERGY HOUSING AND COMM. RESOURCES6/27/2018  787.94


Boardman-Atty fees/Boardman-Atty 


fees/Boardman-Atty fees/Boardman-Atty fees


CK025710 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP6/27/2018  784.47


Great West-June A Def Comp/Great West-June A 


Def Comp


CK101669 463 GREAT-WEST6/1/2018  4,120.00


N Shore Bank-June A Def Comp/N Shore 


Bank-June A Def Comp


CK101670 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.6/1/2018  450.00


Forster-West/East subs/Forster-West/East 


subs/Forster-Tech Assistance/Forster-Tech 


Assistance/Forster-Flash Updates/Forster-Flash 


Updates/Forster-Tech Assistance/Forster-Tech 


Assistance/Forster-West Sub/Forster-West 


Sub/Forster-West Sub/More...


CK101671 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.6/6/2018  16,335.85


Great West-June B Def Comp/Great West-June B 


Def Comp


CK101672 463 GREAT-WEST6/14/2018  4,120.00


B & H - WW Plant Mowing/B & H-Well 6 Mowing/B 


& H-Well 6 Mowing/B & H - WW Plant Mowing/B & 


H - Well 4 Mowing/B & H - Well 4 Mowing/B & H - E 


Sub Mowing/B & H - E Sub Mowing/B & H-Admin 


Mowing/B & H - Twr II Mowing/B & H-Admin 


Mowing/More...


CK101673 519 B & H LAWN CARE6/14/2018  1,405.00


N Shore Bk-June B Def Comp/N Shore Bk-June B 


Def Comp


CK101674 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.6/14/2018  450.00


Infosend-Bills Mailing & Print/Infosend-Bills Mailing 


& Print/Infosend-Bills Mailing & Print/Infosend-Bills 


Mailing & Print/Infosend-Bills Mailing & 


Print/Infosend-Bills Mailing & Print/Infosend-Bills 


Mailing & Print/Infosend-Bills Mailing & Print


CK101675 852 INFOSEND, INC6/14/2018  3,662.18


Hanson-Pest Maint.CK101676 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT6/28/2018  28.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


01:21PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


9 of 9


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 7/2/2018


Monday, July 02, 2018


Description


Great West-June C Def Comp/Great West-June C 


Def Comp


CK101677 463 GREAT-WEST6/28/2018  4,070.00


Seera-CTC Funds/Seera-CTC FundsCK101678 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP6/28/2018  5,365.60


J Scheller-Solar Credit/J Scheller-Solar CreditCK101679 647 JOHN & REBECCA SCHELLER6/28/2018  489.49


N Shore Bk-June C Def Comp/N Shore Bk-June C 


Def Comp


CK101680 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.6/28/2018  450.00


B Johnson-Solar Credit/B Johnson-Solar CreditCK101681 732 BROOK JOHNSON6/28/2018  281.59


Company Total  1,405,018.64























Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Overall Summary:


 - The May 2018 results are reasonable in comparison to the April 2018 and


   May 2017 results. Detailed analysis is provided below.


Electric Summary:


 - Electric sales increased $186,600 compared to April due to a 14% increase in consumption 


   and a 60% increase in peak demand


 - Purchased power costs increased $159,800 compared to April due to a


   13% increase in kWh purchased and a 43% increase in maximum demand


 - Operating expenses increased $39,500 compared to April due to paying over the 


    1st installment of the gross revenue tax 


 - Unrestricted cash balances are at 5.10 months of sales (Goal is 6 months)


 - ROR is 1.41% compared to 1.48% this time last year


Water Summary:


 - Water sales increased $6,600 compared to April due to a 9% increase in consumption


 - Operating expenses decreased $4,600 compared to April mainly due to $4,600 in DNR


    required testing costs incurred in April


 - Unrestricted cash balances are at 1.79 months of sales (Goal is 6 months)


 - ROR is 0.98% compared to 1.14% this time last year


 - Amounts in construction in progress to date that will be expensed at 


   year-end:


20,000$                        


Wastewater Summary:


 - Wastewater sales increased $8,900 compared to April due to a 9% increase


   in sales consumption


 - Other operating revenues decreased $4,000 compared to April due to the fact


   Colorcon and Uniroyal have not been billed for May surcharges as of the date of this report


 - Operating expenses increased $5,100 compared to April mainly due to annual DNR


   environmental fees paid in May


 - Unrestricted cash balances are at 10.64 months of sales (Goal is 6 months)


Submitted by: 


Jamin Friedl, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


May 2018-YTD







Electric Water Wastewater Combined


Assets


Cash & Investments 7,207,863$          1,335,279$          3,113,974$          11,657,116$        


Customer A/R 1,369,218            191,909               195,389               1,756,516            


Other A/R 48,905                 152                      4                          49,062                 


Other Assets 952,837               275,705               165,082               1,393,624            


Plant in Service 26,287,328          15,528,269          29,541,600          71,357,197          


Accumulated Depreciation (13,726,353)        (5,289,339)           (11,347,529)        (30,363,222)        


Plant in Service - CIAC 3,451,976            7,589,175            -                       11,041,151          


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,729,733)           (2,109,591)           -                       (3,839,324)           


Construction Work in Progress 3,235,612            81,598                 90,138                 3,407,348            


GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 457,351               157,142               173,873               788,366               


Total Assets 27,555,003$        17,760,298$        21,932,532$        67,247,833$        


Liabilities + Net Assets


Accounts Payable 268,013$             63,782$               45,079$               376,873$             


Payable to City of Stoughton 624,939               602,805               -                       1,227,744            


Interest Accrued 17,447                 3,890                   7,927                   29,264                 


Other Liabilities 676,619               99,242                 128,074               903,935               


Long-Term Debt 5,138,833            2,703,378            4,568,264            12,410,475          


Net Assets 20,607,063          14,208,915          17,095,430          51,911,408          


GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 222,090               78,286                 87,758                 388,134               


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,555,003$        17,760,298$        21,932,532$        67,247,833$        


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of May 31, 2018







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 5,717,485$              830,997$                 819,245$                 7,367,728$              


Other 54,467                      26,818                      31,653                      112,938                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 5,771,951$              857,816$                 850,898$                 7,480,665$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 4,208,190                -                             -                             4,208,190                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 742,937                    369,663                    372,434                    1,485,034                


PILOT 186,665                    182,500                    -                             369,165                    


Depreciation 463,790                    205,500                    352,915                    1,022,205                


   Total Operating Expense: 5,601,581$              757,663$                 725,349$                 7,084,594$              


     Operating Income 170,370$                 100,153$                 125,549$                 396,072$                 


Non-Operating Income 281,542                    19,082                      35,820                      336,444                    


Non-Operating Expense (52,534)                     (21,290)                     (51,125)                     (124,949)                  


      Net Income 399,378$                 97,944$                    110,244$                 607,567$                 


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 5,547,788$              826,519$                 803,189$                 7,177,496$              


Other 53,443                      25,086$                    33,306$                    111,835                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 5,601,231$              851,605$                 836,495$                 7,289,331$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 4,141,806                -                             -                             4,141,806                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 701,594                    351,526                    396,167                    1,449,287                


PILOT 165,000                    175,415                    -                             340,415                    


Depreciation 414,940                    191,960                    339,585                    946,485                    


   Total Operating Expense: 5,423,340$              718,901$                 735,752$                 6,877,993$              


     Operating Income 177,891$                 132,704$                 100,743$                 411,338$                 


Non-Operating Income 281,095                    30,956                      40,717                      352,768                    


Non-Operating Expense (55,947)                     (39,165)                     (56,250)                     (151,362)                  


      Net Income 403,039$                 124,495$                 85,210$                    612,744$                 


May 2017


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


May 2018


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







 May 2018  April 2018 


 Change from Prior 


Month  May 2017 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 1,189,756$              1,003,178$              186,577$                 1,122,101$              


Other 664                           2,810                        (2,146)                       1,647                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 1,190,420$              1,005,988$              184,432$                 1,123,748$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 876,755                   716,932                   159,822                   829,571                   


Expenses (Including Taxes) 151,672                   112,215                   39,457                      162,605                   


PILOT 37,333                      37,333                      -                            33,000                      


Depreciation 92,758                      92,758                      -                            82,988                      


   Total Operating Expense: 1,158,518$              959,239$                 199,279$                 1,108,164$              


     Operating Income 31,902$                   46,750$                   (14,848)$                  15,584$                   


Non-Operating Income 19,705                      18,001                      1,705                        19,477                      


Non-Operating Expense (9,899)                       (9,879)                       (20)                            (10,585)                    


      Net Income 41,709$                   54,871$                   (13,163)$                  24,475$                   


 May 2018  April 2018 


 Change from Prior 


Month  May 2017 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 171,789$                 165,161$                 6,628$                      168,337$                 


Other 5,297                        5,278                        19                              5,026                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 177,086$                 170,439$                 6,647$                      173,363$                 


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 74,247                      78,838                      (4,591)                       66,364                      


PILOT 36,500                      36,500                      -                            35,083                      


Depreciation 41,100                      41,100                      -                            38,392                      


   Total Operating Expense: 151,847$                 156,438$                 (4,591)$                    139,839$                 


     Operating Income 25,239$                   14,001$                   11,238$                   33,524$                   


Non-Operating Income 2,670                        1,853                        817                           3,676                        


Non-Operating Expense (4,258)                       (4,258)                       -                            (7,833)                       


      Net Income 23,651$                   11,597$                   12,054$                   29,367$                   


 May 2018  April 2018 


 Change from Prior 


Month  May 2017 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 170,387$                 161,463$                 8,924$                      167,730$                 


Other 3,877                        7,902                        (4,025)                       6,651                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 174,264$                 169,366$                 4,898$                      174,381$                 


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 82,979                      77,846                      5,132                        83,588                      


Depreciation 70,583                      70,583                      -                            67,917                      


   Total Operating Expense: 153,562$                 148,429$                 5,132$                      151,505$                 


     Operating Income 20,703$                   20,937$                   (234)$                        22,877$                   


Non-Operating Income 2,824                        2,155                        669                           821                           


Non-Operating Expense (10,225)                    (10,225)                    -                            (11,250)                    


      Net Income 13,301$                   12,867$                   435$                         12,448$                   


ELECTRIC


WATER


WASTEWATER


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Detailed Monthly Income Statements


May 2018







 


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 170,370$            100,153$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 25,754,172         15,446,352         


Average Accumulated Depreciation (13,560,524)        (5,106,776)          


Average Materials and Supplies 186,464              40,608                


Average Regulatory Liability (121,884)             (188,258)             


Average Customer Advances (149,261)             -                      


Average Net Rate Base 12,108,967$       10,191,926$       


May 2018 Rate of Return 1.41% 0.98%


May 2017 Rate of Return 1.48% 1.14%


December 2017 Rate of Return 6.46% 3.22%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.00% 5.25%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Rate of Return


Year-to-Date May 2018







Electric May 2018


Unrestricted (5.10 months sales) 5,832,945$           


Bond Reserve 460,722$              


Redemption Fund (P&I) 131,423$              


Depreciation 25,000$                


Designated 757,772$              


Total 7,207,862$           


Water May 2018


Unrestricted (1.79 months sales) 298,225$              


Bond Reserve 252,000$              


Redemption Fund (P&I) 58,012$                


Depreciation 25,000$                


Designated 702,042$              


Total 1,335,279$           


Wastewater May 2018


Unrestricted (10.64 months sales) 1,742,960             


DNR Replacement 1,146,154             


Redemption Fund (P&I) 66,943                  


Depreciation 33,283                  


Designated 124,633                


Total 3,113,973             


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Cash and Investments Summary


 As of May 31, 2018


$5,832,945 , 81%


$460,722 , 6%


$131,423 , 2%


$25,000 , 0%


$757,772 , 11%


Electric Cash - May 2018


Unrestricted (5.10 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


$298,225 , 22%


$252,000 , 19%


$58,012 , 4%


$25,00
0 , 2%


$702,042 , 53%


Water Cash - May 2018


Unrestricted (1.79 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


1,742,960 , 56%
1,146,154 , 37%


66,943 , 2% 33,28
3 , 1%


124,63
3 , 4%


Wastewater Cash - May 2018


Unrestricted (10.64 months sales) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation
Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2017 KwH Purchased 2017 2018 KwH Purchased 2018 Peak 2017 Peak 2018


January 12,379,222 12,812,545 12,609,523 13,204,183 23,662 24,195


February 10,691,419 10,759,773 11,167,697 11,394,593 21,934 22,984


March 11,785,378 11,607,813 11,302,081 11,305,664 20,399 20,886


April 9,553,672 10,048,660 10,338,769 10,759,236 18,091 19,558


May 10,496,558 10,622,971 11,788,886 12,169,996 21,934 31,336


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 54,906,249 55,851,762 57,206,956 58,833,672


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2017 Gallons Pumped 2017 2018 Gallons Pumped 2018 2017 2018


January 37,110,000 43,748,000 35,560,000 44,660,000 1,629,000 1,668,000


February 34,905,000 41,145,000 33,594,000 41,438,000 1,780,000 1,711,000


March 38,893,000 40,725,000 36,877,000 40,980,000 1,542,000 1,449,000


April 33,884,000 39,290,000 35,745,000 40,572,000 2,105,000 1,583,000


May 38,370,000 41,634,000 38,957,000 43,612,000 1,732,000 2,087,000


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 183,162,000 206,542,000 180,733,000 211,262,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2017 Gallons Gallons 2017 2018 Gallons Gallons 2018 2017 2018


January 25,221,000 33,337,000 25,668,000 31,460,000 2.43 2.15


February 23,196,000 27,663,000 23,717,000 30,781,000 1.34 3.54


March 26,255,000 29,882,000 25,915,000 28,544,000 2.69 0.75


April 23,309,000 32,828,000 24,842,000 28,602,000 6.80 1.87


May 26,366,000 34,190,000 26,989,000 34,919,000 3.62 8.12


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 124,347,000 157,900,000 127,131,000 154,306,000 16.88 16.43


2018 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Lifting of Council-Imposed Demolition Moratorium for 305-315 E. Main Street 


Committee Action: 
 
None 


 
Fiscal Impact: $0 


 
File Number: 


 
R-136- 2018 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 24, 2018 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council has placed a temporary moratorium on processing 


any applications for demolition of any structure within any historic district listed on the National Register 


of Historic Places, and 


 


WHEREAS, the property at 305-315 E. Main Street (the “Property”) is located in such a historic district, 


and 


 


WHEREAS, when the Main Street Historic District was created, the Property was designated as 


contributing to the historic designation of the Main Street Historic District, and  


 


WHEREAS, the owner of the Property seeks City approval to demolish the building on the Property 


pursuant to the Downtown Design Overlay District zoning regulations, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Common Council must lift the temporary moratorium before the application for 


demolition of the building on the Property may be further processed or approved; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council hereby lifts the temporary demolition moratorium from the 


property at 305-315 E. Main Street. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2018 - 305-315 E Main Street - Demolition During Moratorium.docx 








, Stafford Rosen ba u FII *p
åtlr]r:lçys


Menber of LEGUS Intemational Netuork of Lau Fims


To Mayor Donna Olson
Common Council


From Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney


Date August 4,2017


Re Project Review Approval Process - 305-315 East Main Street


INrRopucrroN


At its Jlly 26, 2017 meeting, the Common Council directed me to provide
responses to a number questions relating to the project review approval process, and how
that process has unfolded regarding the property located at 305-315 East Main Street (the
"Property"). This memorandum addresses those questions.


STATBiT¿BNT OF FACTS


The Property is zoned CB - Central Business, and is located in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The Property is located in a "National Register of Historic
Places Historic District." The Property has not been designated as a local landmark
under Chapter 38 of the Municipal Code, and is not located in a locally designated
historic district.


On approximately September 26, 2016, following complaints regarding the
condition of the building, City of Stoughton Zoning Administrator Michael Stacey
contacted building owner Tim Homar. Problematic conditions included deterioration of
the roof and paint peeling off exterior walls. Mr. Homar told Mr. Stacey that he believed
repairing the building was not economically feasible. On September 27, 2016,
Mr. Homar submitted an application to the Planning Department for a permit to demolish
the building. Because the Property contributes to a National Register of Historic Places
District, on September 27,2016, Mr. Stacey sent notice of the proposed demolition to the
State Historical Society.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\l\4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


1200 North May{airRoad
Suite 410


Milwaukee, \íisconsin
y226-)282


222 \flest \flashington Avenue


P,O. Box 1784


Madison, Visconsin


5370t-17U


608,256,0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


wwrv,staffordlaw.com


4r4.982.2850
888.655.4752


Fax414j822889
www.staffordlaw.com







In early November 2016, Mr. Stacey learned that Dennis and Amy Kittleson
purchased the Property, and wanted the City to continue processing the pending
application for a permit authorizing demolition.


On January 9, 2017, the Plan Commission considered the following agenda item:
"Dennis and Amy Kittleson request project review approval to demolish the building at


315 E. Main Street." At the meeting, the Kittlesons said they intended to'oremove the
building and have a public gathering park-like greenspace." After some discussion, the
Plan Commission tabled the matter and requested that the City Attorney review the
request. The January 9 meeting did not include a public hearing on the application.


Following the January 9 Plan Commission meeting, I issued a memorandum dated
January 20, 2017. The memorandum contained the following summary in its
introducto ry p ar agr aph


This memo addresses two questions relating to the proposed
demolition of a building in the downtown design overlay
zoning district. One question asks what procedure applies to
a request to demolish a building in the downtown design
overlay zoning district. In my opinion, the procedures
applicable to conditional use permits must be followed,
except where Sec. 78-913 specifies a different procedure.
The second question asks whether demolition of the building
and converting the site to open space (rather than replacing
the building) is allowable under existing regulations. In my
opinion, such demolition is allowable if approved by the plan
commission.


Following the issuance of my January 20, 2017 memorandum, Mr. Stacey
determined that the Kittlesons should submit a new application using the standard
conditional use permit form included as an appendix to the City's ordinances.


On January 24, 2017, Dennis Kittleson submitted the standard conditional use
permit application form, and paid the standard conditional use permit application fee of
$400. The application included the following statement:


I (Dennis Kittleson) am writing this letter to address the form
that is used for the Conditional Use Permit for the property at
the address of 305 - 315 East Main Street Stoughton WI
53589. The intention is to remove the existing building and
then convert the property into a gathering area style of park.
The intended use is to keep it as an open area that could be
used for various activities. It will be privately owned with the


2
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143







intention that it will be open to the public to use as long as it
is respected.


A public hearing on the Kittleson's application was scheduled for a March 13 Plan
Commission meeting. The public hearing could not be conducted at that time due to
overlapping meetings.


On March 17,2017, following further discussions with City Staff, I sent a letter to
Dennis Kittleson requesting that he supplement his application with additional
information required by City ordinances. On April 6, 2017, Dennis Kittleson provided
additional information to the City.


On April I0, 2016, the Plan Commission conducted a public hearing on the
application. Following the public hearing, the Plan Commission adopted a resolution that
concluded as follows:


Be it resolved by the City of Stoughton Planning Commission
that the application for Project Approval to demolish the
structure at 305-315 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI is


approved contingent on the applicants bringing a detailed
landscaping plan back to the Planning Commission for
approval.


On July 25, 2017, the Common Council discussed a variety of issues regarding
this matter. The Council asked me to respond to several questions. The Council also
asked City staff to verify whether the Property is or is not located in a locally designated
historic district created in accordance with Chapter 38 of the Municipal Code.


DrscussroN


Has the processíng of the Project Review demolition request been improper
because Tím Homar applíed þr a demolítion permít, but the Kíttlesons did
not?


The Council asked me to determine whether the processing of the Kittleson's
request for Project Review is in some way defective or improper on the grounds that the
Kittlesons did not apply for such review. There apparently is a belief that Tim Homar's
September 27 ,2016 application was transferred or assigned to the Kittlesons, and that the
Kittlesons did not submit their own application.


As discussed above, the Kittlesons submitted an application for Project Review
and paid a $400 application fee on January 24, 2017. Consequently, at least from
January 24, 2017, this matter has proceeded based on the application submitted by the


I


aJ
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143







Kittlesons and not based on the application submitted by Tim Homar. All of the
substantive actions that have been taken on this matter by the Plan Commission were
taken after January 24,2017 .


Because the Kittlesons did apply for Project Review approval, it is not necessary
in this case to determine whether the Kittlesons could have proceeded based on the
application submitted by Tim Homar. There also is no basis for challenging the actions
taken on the Kittleson's application, based on a claim that they did not apply for project
review.


Must all procedurøl requìrements applicable to condítíonal use permits be


þllowed in connectíon wíth an applicationfor "Project Review" under Sec.


7B-9 I 3?


"Project Review" approval is required to demolish a structure in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The procedure for "Project Review" is discussed in multiple
sections of Section 78-913. First, Sections 78-913 (3Xc) and 78-913(aXc) each provide a
detailed (and almost identical) description of the roles of the zoning administrator,
landmarks commission and plan commission in conducting a project review. Section 78-
913(a)(c) states as follows:


Applications which involve modification to the physical
configuration of a locally recognized propertyl (such as the
erection of a new building, the demolition of an existing
building, or the addition or removal of bulk to an existing
building) are subject to project review by the zoning
administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan
commission. The zoning administrator shall serve as the
liaison between the applicant, the landmarks commission, and
the plan commission in facilitating the thorough and
expedient review of an application, and shall ensure that the
technical and procedural requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance are met. The landmarks commission shall serve as


the recommending body to the plan commission for locally-
recognized landmarks. The plan commission shall serve as


the final discretionary review body on aesthetics and site
design, and shall focus its review on the application's
compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and
economic revitalization practices. In part, this effort shall be


I The purpose of this reference to "locally recognized property" is unclear. This specific language is not
included in Sec. 78-913(3)(c), It is also clear from the remaining language in this section and elsewhere that project
review is not limited to locally recognized landmarks.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090MEMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143


2


4







guided by the comprehensive plan. (Refer to the procedure
summary chart in Appendix F).


It is significant that Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (4Xc) each clearly and
unambiguously state that the zoning administrator, landmarks commission and plan
commission are the city official and city commissions that are responsible for conducting
Project Reviews. These sections also expressly state that the plan commission "shall
serve as the final discretionary review body...." It is also significantthat this section
provides no role for the common council in the Project Review process.


Section 78-913(4)(c) also expressly states that the reader should "refer to the
procedure summary chart in Appendix F." Appendix F outlines the procedure for each of
the three types of review that can be required in the Downtown Design Overlay District.
Appendix F describes the roles to be played by the zoning administrator, landmarks
commission and plan commission, and provides no role for the common council in any of
those reviews.


Section 78-913(5) also addresses the roles of the zoning administrator, landmarks
commission and plan commission. That section expressly authorizes these specific
officials to make recommendations or require modifications to applications. Again, this
section makes no reference to the common council playing any role in the Project Review
process.


Notwithstanding the above-described language, procedural questions have been
raised because of language in Section 78-913(a)(c)1., which states that "project review
proposals shall follow procedures for conditional use permits, refer to section 78-905."
There are at least two important ways in which the procedures for conditional use permits
are in conflict with Project Review procedures specifically described in Sec. 78-913.
First, the conditional use permit procedure provides for the plan commission to make a


recommendation to the common council, and for the common council to make a final
decision. That process is directly contrary to the express provisions of Sec. 78-913,
which state that the plan commission "shall serve as the final discretionary review
body...." Second, the conditional use permit procedure provides no role for the
landrnarks commission. That too would be directly contrary to the express language of
Sec. 78-913, under which the landmarks commission serves "as the recommending body
to the plan commission for locally-recognized landmarks."


'Where two parts of an ordinance that apply to the same subject are in conflict, it is
necessary to resort to rules of statutory construction to determine legislative intent. In the
interpretation of ordinances, the rules of statutory construction apply. Marrís v. Cíty of
Cedarburg, 176 Wis. 2d 14,32,498 N.W.2d 842 (1993).


5
I-:\DOCS\005649\002090\NiIEMOS\3DR8805. DOCX
0804171 143







Under one rule of statutory construction, where there is conflicting language, the
more specific language applies. State v. Anthony D.8,2000 WI 94 T 11, 237 Wis.2d I.
The express language of Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (aXc) provides a more specific
statements regarding which officials have authority over Project Review than the
statement that project review shall follow procedures for conditional use permits. The
language in those sections is more specific than the directive to "follow procedures for
conditional use permits." The more specific language should therefore control.


The Wisconsin Supreme Court has provided the following additional guidance for
interpreting statutes and ordinances:


Context is important to meaning. So, too, is the structure of
the statute in which the operative language appears.
Therefore, statutory language is interpreted in the context in
which it is used; not in isolation but as part of a whole; in
relation to the language of surrounding or closely related
statutes; and reasonably, to avoid absurd or unreasonable
results.


State ex rel. Kalal v. Círcuit Court þr Dane County,2Tl Wis. 2d 633 (2004) (citations
omitted).


The requirement that project review proposals follow procedures for conditional
use permits must be understood within the context and structure of Sec. 78-913. Multiple
elements of that ordinance clearly say that Project Review is conducted by the zoning
administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan commission, and provide no role
for the colnmon council. The requirement to follow conditional use permit procedures
cannot be read in isolation, and must be construed within the broader context of Sec. 78-
913. If the ordinance is read in isolation to require full compliance with conditional use
procedures, then other important and express language in Sec. 78-905 would be rendered
meaningless. In particular, the landmarks commission would not serve as a


recommending body to the plan commission (because that is not part of the conditional
use process), and the plan commission would not serve as the final discretionary review
body (because under the conditional use process the plan commission is purely advisory
to the common council). Interpretations that render express provisions of the ordinances
meaningless should be avoided. Beldingv. Demoulin,2014 WI 8,ll 17,352 Wis. 2d359.


Finally, the common council specifically requested that I consider the fact that the
ordinance uses the word "shall," in saying that Project Review proposals "shall follow
procedures for conditional use permits." It was pointed out that under Sec. 78-013, the
word "shall" is characterized as mandatory.


6
L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804t71 t43







The use of the word "shall" in this context does not change my interpretation of
the ordinance. First, Section 78-013 begins by stating as follows:


The interpretation of this Chapter shall abide by the
provisions and rules of this Section, except where the context
clearly requires otherwíse, or where the result would clearly
be ínconsistent with the apparent intent of thß Chapter.


(Emphasis added.) As discussed above, in context, it is not appropriate to interpret the
ordinance to require full compliance with the conditional use permit process, and doing
so would be inconsistent with the express and specific language of Sec. 78-913,
Furthermore, Sections 78-913(3)(c) and (a)(c) also use the word ooshall." They say that
the landmarks commission "shall" serve as the recommending body to the Plan
Commission on locally-recognized landmarks, and that the plan commission "shall"
serve as the final discretionary review body. Clearly, the use of the word "shall," with
reference to the conditional use process, does not mean that the conditional use process
trumps the remaining language in the ordinance, which also uses the wordooshall."


For all of the above reasons, in my opinion, Project Review must follow the
procedures for conditional use permits, except where Sec. 78-913 expressly and
specifically prescribes a different procedure. The notice and hearing requirements that
apply to condition use permits must be followed. The plan commission makes the final
decision.


3. How can the Property be used after the buildíng ís removedfrom the síte?


Questions have been raised about how the Property can be used after the building
is removed from the site. In particular, questions have been raised about language in the
Kittleson's application indicating that the Property would be open to the public for use as


a park of some kind. In my opinion, the Property may lawfully be maintained as a vacant
lot. I also conclude that public use of the Property for passive (or active) recreational
purposes (as one might expect in a "park") is not an expressly recognized permitted use
of the Property. Consequently, that use would not be permitted without a formal
determination by the Zonine Administrator that it is a permitted use on the Property.


The Property is zoned CB - Central Business, and is located in the Downtown
Design Overlay District. The use of land in the CB District is governed by multiple
sections of the Zoning Ordinance, as follows:


Section 78-105(4)(c) sets forth a list of (1) principal land uses permitted by
right, (2) principal land uses permitted as a conditional use, (3) accessory
land uses permitted by right, (4) accessory land uses permitted as


conditional uses, and (5) allowable temporary uses.


a.


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3 DR8805.DOCX
0804171 143 7







Section 78-206 states that land uses that are not listed in the Zoning
Ordinance are not necessarily excluded from locating in a particular zoning
district. The zoning administrator has the authority to determine whether a
specific land use is lawful on a site, even if that land use is not listed as a
permitted or conditional use in that zoning district. The procedures and
standards relating to such a determination are set forth in Zoning Ordinance
$ 78- e1 1.


All land uses are subject to the general land use requirements in Section 78-
206, the general requirements of the specific zoning district in which they
are located, and any additional requirements applicable to an overlay
district (such as the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District). Zoning
Ordinance Section 7 S-202(l).


This memorandum evaluates two possible scenarios for how the Property might be
used after the building is removed. First, the Property is evaluated as a vacant lot
following removal of the existing building. Second, the Property is evaluated assuming
the owner allows the public to enter the Property and engage in "passive outdoor
recreation" as that use is defined in Zoning Ordinance $ 78-206(3)(a).


Under the first scenario, the building on the Property is removed from the site, and
the site is rnaintained as a vacant lot. No business, commercial, residential, industrial,
recreational or other activities occur on the Property. Maintaining a vaçafit lot is not a
recognized land use in the Zoning Ordinance. See Zoning Ordinance $ 78-206. I have
identified two ways that this circumstance might be evaluated under the Zoning
Ordinance. Under one interpretation, maintaining avacant lot is not a "use" of property.
If it is not a "use" of property, then it is not subject to regulation as a use of property.
Under a second interpretation, maintaining avacan| lot is ause of property. If it is ause
of property, it is only lawful if it is authorized by the Zoning Ordinance.2


In my opinion, maintaining a vacant lot is not a use of property. I have several
reasons for this conclusion. First, Íhe Zoning Ordinance defines "use" as "[t]he purpose
or activity for which land or any building thereon is designed, arranged, or intended, or
for which it is occupied or maintained." Zoning Ordinance $ 78-015. This definition
indicates that oouse" requires some kind of activity on the property. Under this scenario,
there is no activity taking place on the property. Second, maintainin g a vacant lot is not a


expressly recognized, allowable land use in the Zoning Ordinance. Consequently, if
maintainingavacant lot is a "use" of land, then every vacant lot in the City is currently in


z ¡ use may be authorized by the Zoning Ordinance either expressly, or by a determination of the Zoning
Administrator pursuant to $ 78-91 1.


b


c


Lr\DOCS\005649\002090\MEMOS\3DR8805.DOCX
0804 l7l 143 8







violation of the Zoning Ordinance. I don't think that result is intended by the Zoning
Ordinance.


An analogous situation is presented by the site of the former Marathon Station on
Main Street. The RDA purchased that site and demolished the building. The site has
been vacant for a number of years, while the RDA has attempted to find a buyer. If
maintaining a vacant lot is a "use" of property, then that property has been used in
violation of the Zoning Ordinance for years. I don't think that result is intended by the
Zoning Ordinance.


Under the second scenario, the site is maintained as an open grassed area that may
include additional plantings or a garden, and the owner allows the public to use the
Property for passive recreational purposes. The Zoning Ordinance establishes a land use
category called "passive outdoor public recreational," defined as follows:


Passive outdoor public recreational land uses include all
recreational land uses located on public property which
involve passive recreational activities. Such land uses include
arboretums, natural areas, wildlife areas, hiking trails, bike
trails, cross country ski trails, horse trails, open grassed areas
not associated with any particular active recreational land use
... picnic areas, picnic shelters, gardens, fishing areas, and
similar land uses.


Passive outdoor public recreation is a permitted use in the CB Central Business
District. However, the definition of this land use indicates that it needs to take place on
"on public property." Consequently, this land use is not expressly recognized as a
"permitted use" on private property. That is not necessarily the end of the story,
however. The Zoning Administrator has the authority, under $ 78-911, to interpret the
Zoning Ordinance, and to determine that a particular land use is allowable, even where
that land use is not expressly authorized. Until such a determination is made, use of the
Property for passive outdoor public recreation is not allowed.


CoNcr.usroN


The Kittlesons applied for Project Review approval. The Plan Commission is
responsible for acting on the Project Review application. If the building is removed, the
Property may lawfully be maintained as a vacant lot. It may not be used for passive
outdoor public recreation unless and until the Zoning Administrator determines that such
use is allowable.


9
L:\DOCS\005649\00209o\l\4EMOS\3DR8805. DOCX
0804171154







, Stafford Rosen ba u ffì 
'rpÅlE+rcieryr


Member of LEGUS Internttional Netuork of Law Fims


To Mayor Donna Olson
City of Stoughton Common Council


From Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney


Date September 7 ,2017


Re Project Review - 305-315 East Main Street


INrRorucrroN AND SUMMARY


On August 4, 2017,I provided a memorandum to the City regarding the "project
review" procedure under the Zoning Ordinance, and the proposal to demolish the
structure located at 305-315 Main Street. The Common Council asked me to address
additional questions. A summary of my conclusions regarding the additional questions is
as follows:


The Applicants are entitled to have their January 24,2017 application processed
based on the regulations in effect at that time, notwithstanding the moratorium.
However, there are at least two problems with the January 24 application: it was
incomplete, and it said that the property would be open to the public for park-like
uses, which is not an allowable use.


The moratorium adopted on March 12,2017, is valid and enforceable. In addition,
the City likely cannot process amendments to the January 24 application while the
moratorium is effective.


The Plan Commission approved demolition on the condition that a detailed
landscaping plan be submitted and approved. The Plan Commission cannot
approve a landscaping plan submitted post-moratorium, so the condition attached
to the April 10 motion cannot be satisfied. Although it is unnecessary to do so, the
Plan Commission could rescind its April 10 motion.


I


2


aJ


L :\DOCS\005649\002090\\4EMOS\3E46075.DOCX
0907 t7t4ts


Madison Office


222 ìíest \íashington Avenue


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \X/isconsin


5370t.17U


Milwaukee Office


608.256.0226


888.615.4752


Fax608.259.2600


www.staffordlaucom


1200 North Mayfair Road


Suite 410


Milwaukee, \X/isconsin


53226-1282


414982.2850


888.655.4752


Fax414982.2889


www.staffordlaw.com







BacrcRou.tn INpoRMATIoN


On January 24,2017, Dennis and Amy Kittleson (the "Applicants") submitted the
standard conditional use permit application form. The application included the following
statement:


I (Dennis Kittleson) am writing this letter to address the form
that is used for the Conditional Use Permit for the property at
the address of 305 - 315 East Main Street Stoughton WI
53589. The intention is to remove the existing building and
then convert the property into a gathering area style of park.
The intended use is to keep it as an open area that could be
used for various activities. It will be privately owned with the
intention that it will be open to the public to use as long as it
is respected.


On March 14,2017, Common Council adopted the following motion


"[N]o further applications or requests for demolition of any
structure within any existing city designated historic district,
within any historic district listed on the National Register of
Historic Places, or within the Downtown Design Overlay
District, or a curiently city designated landmark or structure
listed on the National Register of Historic Places, be
processed, and that the demolition of the Stoughton Highway
Trailer Building not proceed, until the City Council has
considered possible changes to demolition related ordinances,
and lifted this temporary moratorium."


On April 10, 2016, the Plan Commission conducted a public hearing on the
Applicants' application. At the meeting, Commissioner Engelberger said that the
Applicants were proposing a "private, public park," and questioned whether that was
allowable. Commissioner Truehl expressed uncertainty about what would be on the
property after demolition, and asked whether the Applicants were proposing a public
park.


Following the public hearing, the Plan Commission adopted the following
resolution:


Be it resolved by the City of Stoughton Planning Commission
that the application for Project Approval to demolish the
structure at 305-315 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI is


Lr\DOCS\005649\002090\\4EMOS\3E46075.DOCX
0907 t7 t41s 2







approved contingent on the applicants bringing a detailed
landscaping plan back to the Planning Commission for
approval.


DrscussroN


The Applicants are entítled to have theír January 24, 2017 application
processed based on the rules ffictive at that time.


Under Wisconsin law, if a person submits an application for approval of a building,
zoning or other activity related to a project, the City is required to approve, deny or
conditionally approve the application solely based on existing regulations, unless the
applicant and the City agree otherwise. V/is. Stat. $ 66.10015(2). Consequently,
notwithstanding the adoption of the moratorium on March 14, 2017, the Applicants are
entitled to have their January 24 application processed under the regulations that were in
effect on that date. As discussed below, however, approval of that application may not be
possible.


The moratorium is enforceable, and líkely prohíbits the processíng of
amended or modified applications.


There is no statutory or common law authority that specifîcally authorizes a City to adopt
a moratorium of the type at issue here. However, we think the City had the power to
adopt the moratorium under its statutory and constitutional home rule powers.


Cities enjoy both constitutional and statutory grants of authority . Wísconsín Carry, Inc. v.


City of Madíson, 2017 WI 19, n 63,373 Wis. 2d 543,892 N.W.2d 233. The Wisconsin
Constitution provides that "fc]ities and villages organized pursuant to state law may
determine their local affairs and government, subject only to this constitution and to such
enactments of the legislature of statewide concern as with uniformity shall affect every
city or every village."'Wis. Consl art. XI, $ 3.


Additionally, the City has statutory home rule powers to act for the health, safety, welfare
and convenience of the public. Wis. Stat. $ 62.11(5). Under Wis. Stat. $ 62.11(5), the
City Council has broad authority to act "for the government and good order of the city,
for its commercial benefit, and for the health, safety, and welfare of the public . . ..."


The legislature can limit the City's home rule powers. While the legislature has
authorízed local moratoria under circumstances not present here, it has not prohibited the
type of moratorium at issue here. Consequently, we think the moratorium is likely valid.


I


2


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\MEMOS\3E46075.DOCX
090'7 t1 1415 J







The next question asks whether the moratorium applies to not only new applications, but
also to amendments (or supplements) to the January 24 application. The moratorium
states that oono further applications or requests for demolition" may be processed. Does
"further applications" mean only new applications submitted after the adoption of the
moratorium, or does it also include a supplement or amendment to an existing
application?


At the March 14 meeting at which the moratorium was adopted, Alderperson Tom
Majewski (who made the motion establishing the moratorium) said that, because of the
statute that entitles the Applicants to have their January 24 application processed based
on existing regulations, he did not intend for the moratorium to apply to a previously
submitted application. Consequently, I interpret the moratorium to apply to applications
that are not protected by Wis. Stat. $ 66.10015(2). As noted above, that statute protects
only the January 24 application, and provides no protection to changes to the application
made after the moratorium was adopted. I believe the moratorium was intended to apply
as broadly as possible, given the statutory constraints. In my opinion, therefore, the
moratorium prevents the processing of changes or amendments to the January 24
application.


Approval of a landscaping plan (as an amendment to the pending
applicatíon) ß not allowable under the moratorium, so the conditíon
attached to the April l0 motion cannot be satisfied. Although ít ís
probably unnecessary to do so, the Plan Commissíon could rescínd íts
Apríl l0 motíon.


As discussed above, the Applicants are entitled to have their January 24 application
processed and decided on the basis of the regulations effective on January 24. The
moratorium does not apply to the January 24 application. However, it is likely not
possible to approve the January 24 application, because that application did not include
an acceptable landscaping plan. In addition, the January 24 application states that the
Applicants' intended use of the property is to create a"gathering area style of park...
with the intention that it will be open to the public to use as long as it is respected." As
noted in my August 4,2017 memorandum, this appears to be an impermissible use of the
property under the Zoning Ordinance.


The Plan Commission's April 10 motion approved the application, "contingent on the
applicants bringing a detailed landscaping plan back to the Planning Commission for
approval." Because no amendment to the application can be processed under the pending
moratorium, the Plan Commission should not approve the January 24 application based
on a proposed amendment to that application.


3


L:\DOCS\005649\002090\À4EMOS\3E4ó07s.DOCX
0907 I't t415 4







If the Plan Commission takes no further action on the January 24 application, then the
Applicants will have "conditional approval" of their application, but will not be able to
satisff the condition of approval. As a practical matter, the Applicants will not able to
pursue a new or amended application until the moratorium is lifted. Consequently, there
is no practical reason for the Commission to rescind its April 10 motion. However, so


long as a meeting agenda gives proper notice, I see no legal impediment to rescission of
the April 10 motion.


CoNcrusroN


While the Applicants are entitled to a decision on their January 24 application, that
application likely cannot be approved. The March 12 moratorium bars the City from
processing amendments to the January 24 application. The Applicants will not be able to
proceed further while the moratorium is pending.


I would be happy to answer any further questions the City may have regarding this
matter.


L :\DOCS\005 649\002090\À4EMOS\3E46075.DOCX
0907 l7 1415 5





		14a-3DV5147-Memo re Council Questions (8-4-17).PDF

		14b-3E56501-Memo to Common Council re Project Review of 305-315 East Main Street (9-7-17).PDF






RESOLUTION 


R-137-2018 


RESOLUTION DESIGNATING PROPOSED BOUNDARIES AND APPROVING 


A PROJECT PLAN FOR TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 8, 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton (the “City”) has determined that the use of Tax 
Incremental Financing is necessary to promote development and redevelopment within the 
City; and 


WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 8 (the “District”) is proposed to be created by 
the City in accordance with the provisions and requirements of Wisconsin Statutes Sections 
66.1105; and 


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (Redevelopment 
Authority) has prepared a project plan that includes: 


● A statement listing the kind, number and location of all proposed public 
works or improvements within the district; 


● an economic feasibility study; 
● a detailed list of estimated project costs; 
● a description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs; 
● the time when the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred; 
● a map showing existing uses and condition of real property in the district; 
● a map showing proposed improvements and uses in the district; 
● proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, if any, maps, building 


codes and city ordinances; 
● a list of estimated non-project costs; 
● a statement of the proposed method for the relocation of any persons to be 


displaced; 
● an indication as to how creation of the tax incremental district promotes the 


orderly development of the city; 
● an analysis of the overlying taxing districts; 
● a map showing the district boundaries; and 
● an opinion of the city attorney advising whether the plan is complete and 


complies with s. 66.1105(4)(f), Wisconsin Statutes. 


WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of said hearing was sent to 
Dane County, the Superintendent of the Stoughton Area School District, the Madison Area 
Technical College, and any other entities having the power to levy taxes on property located 
within the District, in accordance with the procedures of the law; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law, the 
Redevelopment Authority, on June 26, 2018 held a public hearing concerning the project plan and 
boundaries and proposed creation of Tax Incremental District No. 8, provided interested parties a 
reasonable opportunity to express their views thereon; and 







City Council Resolution Creating TID #8 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: by the Common Council of 
the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin that: 


1. The boundaries of “Tax Incremental District No. 8, City of 
Stoughton” are hereby established as specified in Exhibit A 
(Map 1) of this resolution. 


2. The District is created effective as of January 1, 2018. 
3. The Common Council finds and declares that: 


a. Not less than 50% of the area occupied by real 
property within Tax Incremental District No. 8 is 
blighted and in need of redevelopment. 


b. The improvement of Tax Incremental District No. 8 
is likely to significantly enhance the value of 
substantially all the other real property in the district. 


c. The project costs relate directly to eliminating blight 
and promoting redevelopment, consistent with the 
purpose for which the district is created. 


d. The equalized value of taxable property of Tax 
Incremental District No. 8, plus the value increment 
of all existing districts, does not exceed 12% of the 
total equalized value of taxable property within the 
City. 


e. Creation of the District promotes orderly development 
in the City. 


4. The Project Plan for “Tax Incremental District No. 8, City of 
Stoughton (attached as Exhibit A) is approved, and the City 
further finds the Plan is feasible and in conformity with the 
master plan of the City. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the City Clerk is hereby authorized 
and directed to apply to the Department of Revenue, in such form as may be 
prescribed, for a “Determination of Tax Incremental Base”, as of January 1, 2018 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.1105(5)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the City Assessor is hereby 
authorized and directed to identify upon the assessment roll returned and examined 
under Section 70.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes, those parcels of property which are 
within the District, specifying thereon the name of said District, and the City Clerk 
is hereby authorized and directed to make similar notations on the tax roll made 
under Section 70.65 of the Wisconsin Statutes, pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. 


. 
Dated this 24th day of July, 2018. 


OFFERED BY: APPROVED BY: 


Council Member Mayor 







City Council Resolution Creating TID #8 


SECONDED BY: ATTESTED: 


Council Member City Clerk 







 


 


97 
130 


129 


107 


114 


96 


Legend 
TID #8 Boundary 


TID 8 Parcels 


1 0 0  2 0 0  3 0 0  0 


35 
40 


43 39 


42 
44 


90 
92 8 91 94 85 


93 83 


108 


112 


111 


105 


110 103 


 


104 


ID! OR 


132 


[ 11_ 


6 


9 
10 7 


73 
79 


86 


89 
87 


t SOUDIST 


82 


115 


Feet 


Source- Dane County Land Information Office Prphareri hv C;WR Profpssionnl Servirec 


©2017 CALIPER; ©2016 HERE 


February 10, 2018 
Revised March 16, 2018  


_-1.101011TIT_ 


Map 1 


TID #8 Boundary and Parcels 


City of Stoughton, WI 


TID #8 Boundary 








RESOLUTION 


R-138-2018 


RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BOUNDARY AND APPROVING A 3-YEAR 


LIFE EXTENSION FOR TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 


5, CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton (the “City”) has determined that the use of Tax Incremental 


Financing is necessary to promote development and redevelopment within the City; and 


WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 5 (the “District” or “TID #5”) was created by the City 


in accordance with the provisions and requirements of Wisconsin Statutes Sections 66.1105 and which 


currently has a decrement exceeding $1 million; and 


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (Redevelopment Authority) 


was asked by the City Council of the City of Stoughton to prepare a plan correcting the financial situation 


of TID #5 while still promoting blight elimination and redevelopment within the District; and 


WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Authority recommends subtracting the southern riverfront area 


from TID #5 and creating a new tax incremental district from the subtracted territory and extending the 


life of TID #5 by three years as provided in Wisconsin Statutes Sections 66.1105(7)(am)1,2,3; and 


WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was sent to the 


County Executive of Dane County, the Superintendent of the Stoughton Area School District, the 


Madison Area Technical College, and any other entities having the power to levy taxes on property 


located within the District, in accordance with the procedures of the law; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law, the 


Redevelopment Authority, on June 26, 2018 held a public hearing concerning the boundary amendment 


and life extension of Tax Incremental District No. 5, providing interested parties a reasonable opportunity 


to express their views thereon; and 


WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Redevelopment Authority adopted, and subsequently 


recommended approval to the City Council an amended boundary and three-year life extension for the 


District; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 


Dane County, Wisconsin that: 
1. The Common Council finds and declares that: 


a. Not less than 50% of the area occupied by real property within the amended TID #5 


boundary is blighted and in need of redevelopment. 


b. TID #5 cannot repay project costs within its maximum life without a boundary 


amendment and life extension 


c. The improvement of Tax Incremental District No. 5 as amended is likely to significantly 


enhance the value of substantially all the other real property in the district. 


d. The project costs relate directly to eliminating blight and promoting redevelopment, 


consistent with the purpose for which the district was created. 







e. Amendment of the District promotes orderly development in the City. 


2. The boundaries of “Tax Incremental District No. 5, City of 


Stoughton” are hereby established as specified in Exhibit A (Map 


2) of this resolution. 


3. The District life is extended by three years to the year 2040. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the City Clerk is hereby authorized 


and directed to apply to the Department of Revenue, in such form as may be 


prescribed, for a “Determination of Tax Incremental Base”, as of January 1, 2019 


pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.1105(5)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the City Assessor is hereby 


authorized and directed to identify upon the assessment roll returned and examined 


under Section 70.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes, those parcels of property which are 


within the District, specifying thereon the name of said District, and the City Clerk 


is hereby authorized and directed to make similar notations on the tax roll made 


under Section 70.65 of the Wisconsin Statutes, pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) 


of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


. 


Dated this 24th day of July, 2018. 


OFFERED BY: APPROVED BY: 


Council Member Mayor 


SECONDED BY: ATTESTED: 


Council Member City Clerk 







 


 


ad. 5 4 3 2 


 3 5  


— 43 79 


44 


72 


77 70 


36 


73 
79 


86 
10 


87 831 39 


92 94 91 85 83 


1 
103 


82 


93 83 


115 


116 


nrtf 


©2017 CALIPER; ©2016 


Map 1 


Parcels To Be Subtracted From TID #5 


City of Stoughton, WI 


Legend 


February 8, 2018 


TID #5 Original Boundary 


TID #5 Parcel TID #5 Subtraction Parcel 
0 300Feet 


&AM 


Prepared by GWS Professional Services 


2' Wetland (Wis. DNR Wetland Inventory 10/07) 
Source: Done County Land Information Office 







 


 


 


 


 _______  71 


/ 8 ,  


7 0  1 1  


N M I  Amended TID #5 Boundary 


A w e ! ,  i d e  S u m  
P a r k  


ANERSIDE DR 


44moreky.___ 


MnfldtPar% 


i v  


GRES ST 


2 


N.QM. . 57  


.E•WASHINGTON ST 


..E JEFFERSON ST 


11 


127 


CLAY ST 


M C  


02017 CALIPEF RE 


P 


2 3 . 6  


3 8  


Map 2 


Amended Boundary and Parcel Identification 


TID #5, City of Stoughton, WI 


Legend 


Wetland (Ws. DNR Wetland Inventory 10/07) 
Source: Dane County Land Information Office 


February 14, 2018 


0 300Feet 


Prepared by GWB Professional Services 


&NB 
IR I li t,111 !ILI( i1 





